SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO & VECTOR
CONTROL DISTRICT

Protecting public health since 1916

1351 Rollins Road
Burlingame, CA 94010

phone (650) 344-8592
fax (650) 344-3843

www.smcmvcd.org

REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
May 10, 2023, 6:00 PM

AGENDA

All public members seeking to observe and/or to address the local legislative body in person or otherwise electronically
can do so in the manner described below.

HOW TO OBSERVE THE MEETING:
In-person: Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held on the 2" Wednesday of each calendar month
at 6:00 p.m. in the Board Room of the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District, 1351 Rollins Road,
Burlingame, California.
All Trustees are required to attend the meeting in person unless a valid exception applies under AB
2449 or existing Brown Act requirements.
Telephone: Listen to the meeting via Zoom at (408) 636-0968 or (669) 900-6833.
Enter the Meeting ID# 650-344-8592 followed by the pound (#) key. If the line is busy, more phone numbers can
be found on Zoom’s website at https://zoom.us/u/abb4GNs5xM.

Computer: Watch the live streaming of the meeting from a computer by navigating to

https://zoom.us/j/6503448592 using a computer with internet access that meets Zoom’s system requirements (see

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux)

Mobile: Log in through the Zoom mobile app on a smartphone and enter Meeting ID# 650-344-8592.

HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS:
Live Participation: Public comments may be made by members of the public via Zoom. During the meeting, the
Board President or designee will publicly announce the opportunity to comment. Use the “raise hand” feature (or
press *9 to “raise hand” on the phone) during the public comment period for the agenda item you wish to address.
The Zoom host will call on people to speak by the name provided or the last four digits of the phone number for
dial-in attendees.

Written Comments: Public comments may be submitted by email to comments@smcmved.org, write “Public

Comment” in the subject line. In the body of the email, include the agenda item number and title, as well as your
comments. If you want your comment read aloud at the meeting (not to exceed three minutes at staff’s cadence),
prominently write “Read Aloud at Meeting” at the top of the email. All comments received before 12:00 PM, the

day of the meeting, will be included as an agenda supplement on the District’s website under the relevant meeting

Page 1|5



https://zoom.us/u/abb4GNs5xM
https://zoom.us/j/6503448592
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux
mailto:comments@smcmvcd.org

date and provided to the Trustees at the meeting. Comments received after this time will be read aloud at the
meeting.

ACCESSIBILITY INFORMATION:
Board Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities and others who need assistance. Individuals who need
special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation (including auxiliary aids or services) to
observe and/or participate in this meeting and access meeting-related materials should contact Brian Weber, District

Manager, at least 48 hours before the meeting at (650) 344-8592 or bweber@smemvcd.org. Advanced notification

will enable the District to resolve such requests to ensure accessibility swiftly.

PUBLIC RECORDS:
Public records that relate to any item on the open session agenda for a meeting are available for public inspection.
Those records distributed after the agenda posting deadline for the meeting are available for public inspection at the
same time they are distributed to all or a majority of the members of the Board. The Board has designated the District’s
website at https://www.smcmvcd.org/board-meetings as the place to make those public records available for

inspection. The documents may also be obtained by calling the District Manager.

CEQA NOTICE:
Unless expressly stated otherwise on the agenda (that an MND or EIR is being considered), discretionary actions taken
on agenda items will include a finding by the Board that the action is exempt under CEQA. More information about

the CEQA determination can be found in the corresponding staff report.

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL

e Announcements/Consideration and Approval of Requests by Trustees to
Participate Remotely Pursuant to AB 2449 (Government Code 54943(f)).

e Trustee Parker will attend remotely pursuant to an ADA accommodation.

e Secretary of the Board will take roll call.
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS



mailto:bweber@smcmvcd.org

This time is reserved for public members to address the Board relative to matters of
the District, not on the agenda. No action may be taken on non-agenda items unless
authorized by law. Comments will be limited to three minutes per person (or six
minutes where a translator is used). Speaker cards are available for those making a

public comment.

S. CONSENT CALENDAR

All items on the Consent Calendar will be considered by one (or more) action(s)
of the Board unless any Trustee would like to discuss any item listed, in which

case, it may be pulled from the Consent Calendar.

A. Approval of Resolutions
Consider adopting Resolution M-020-23, Authorizing Participation in and Approving the
Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Fire Risk Management Services

Joint Powers Authority
B. Approval of Purchases

1. Approve the purchase of BVA 2 Larvicide Oil in the amount of $40,000 from

Azelis Agricultural and Environmental Solutions

2. Approve the purchase of thirteen iPad's in the amount of $9,440.21 from Verizon

Wireless
C. Approval of Contracts

1. Approve contract with the City of San Mateo for the District to provide rodent
control services in the amount of $24,617.60 annually for a term of three years

2. Approve contract for aerial mosquito control application services with Ag-Air not
to exceed $45,000

ACTION: Motion to approve the Consent Calendar



REGULAR AGENDA

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS

6. Receive a presentation from SCI Consulting Group regarding the Engineer’s Report

calculating the Assessment(s) and Consider the Adoption of Resolution M-021-23.
Presenter: John Bliss, Project Analyst, SCI Consulting Group

ACTION: Motion to approve Resolution M-021-23 approving the Preliminary
Assessment Diagram and Engineers Report and State the Intention
to Continue to Levy the North and West County Mosquito and
Disease Control Assessment District.

7. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

The Chair of each committee listed below will provide a report on the committee’s

actions and present any recommendations to the Board.

A. Finance Committee Reports

1. Finance Committee Report — May 1, 2023
Report by: Mason Brutschy, Committee Chair

B. Review the Financial Report for FY 2022-23 as of March 31, 2023
Report by: Finance Director, Richard Arrow, CPA

ACTION: Motion to approve Financial Report FY 2022-23 as of March 31,
2023

C. Presentation of FY 23-24 Budget and Estimates for FY 22-23
Report by: Finance Director, Richard Arrow, CPA
ACTION: Motion to approve the FY 23-24 draft budget

D. Staff Report on recommended reserve levels as of June 30, 2023

Report by: Finance Director, Richard Arrow, CPA



ACTION: Motion to approve the transfer of FY 22-23 General Fund
anticipated excess of $ 886,416 to the Real Property Acquisition
Reserve for a balance of $ 2,003,086 to finance future construction
costs at 1415 North Carolan.

E. Ad hoc Electric Vehicle Committee Report — April 18, 2023
Report by: Catherine Carlton, Committee Chair
F. Ad hoc Board Officer Nominating Committee Report - April 25, 2023
Report by: Donna Rutherford, Committee Chair

G. Ad-Hoc Committee on Real Estate Meeting Report - April 20, 2023

Report by: Paul Norton, Committee Chair

8. STAFF REPORTS
A. Operations Director Casey Stevenson will provide an update on Field Operations.
B. Laboratory Director Angie Nakano will provide an update on Laboratory activities.

C. Public Health Education and Outreach Officer Rachel Curtis-Robles will provide an
update on the District Public Outreach Program

D. Information & Technology Director Matthew Nienhuis will update the District

technology matters.
9. MANAGER’S REPORT
Manager Weber will provide an update on relevant District information.
10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

11. ADJOURNMENT



San Mateo County MVCD
Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

AGENDA ITEM 5A.1

SUBJECT: Consider adopting Resolution M-020-23, Authorizing Participation in and
Approving the Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Fire
Risk Management Services Joint Powers Authority

BACKGROUND:

The Fire Districts Association of California Employment Benefits Association (FDAC EBA)
and Fire Agencies Self Insurance System (FASIS) will consolidate, effective July 1, 2023,
to form Fire Risk Management Services (FRMS). FRMS is a multi-line risk pool providing
eligible fire districts and public agencies that provide emergency services employee
benefits coverage and workers’ compensation to eligible fire districts in California.

DISCUSSION:

The FDAC EBA and FASIS Consolidation Advisory Committee has met regularly over the
past twelve months to work toward streamlining the financial and administrative
services via a consolidation of the two programs. At the Special Board of
Directors Meeting on February 22, 2023, the FASIS and FDAC EBA Boards
unanimously approved the FRMS Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement (JPA),
effective July 1, 2023.

In accordance with the Joint Powers Agreement: Creating the FDAC Fire Benefits Authority,
Article 14:

“This Joint Powers Agreement may be amended by an amendment in writing
signed by two-thirds of the Agencies then parties to this Agreement.”

Attached is the Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Fire Risk
Management Services. The Agreement requires approval under Section 31: Execution in
Counterparts and must be received in our office no later than June 20, 2023.

Signatories to the Agreement will require approval from their respective governing
bodies. To aid in this endeavor, attached are sample resolutions for use by either 1)
members of FDAC EBA only; or 2) members of both FASIS and FDAC EBA. The sample
resolutions allow for approval of the Agreement and authorize the designated executive
officer to execute, thus enabling participation in FRMS, effective July 1, 2023.

The Finance Committee unanimously approved this item at their May 1, 2023 meeting.



San Mateo County MVCD
Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees approve Resolution M-020-23, Authorizing
Participation in and Approving the Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Fire
Risk Management Services Joint Powers Authority.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution M-020-23 Joint Powers Agreement of Fire Risk Management
Services
2. FRMS Joint Powers Agreement & Approval Memo



Resolution No M-020-23

RESOLUTION OF THE FIRE AGENCIES SELF INSURANCE SYSTEM AND THE SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN AND
APPROVING THE AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT OF
THE FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Fire Agencies Self Insurance System (FASIS) was formed in 1984 for the purpose
of jointly funding losses and providing risk management services to reduce such losses by and
among California fire protection and community services districts; and

WHEREAS, the FDAC Employment Benefits Authority (FDAC EBA) was formed in 2005 to
establish, operate, manage, and administer health and welfare benefit programs for the benefit
of the existing and retired officers, employees and members of the legislative body of the
California public agencies who are members of FDAC EBA; and

WHEREAS, following the exploration and in-depth analysis of a strategic partnership, the Board
of Directors of FASIS and FDAC EBA directed the merger of the two programs, effective July 1,
2023, to provide comprehensive and cost-effective coverage programs through a responsive risk
pool for fire service agencies; and

WHEREAS, FASIS and FDAC EBA have agreed that FASIS will change its name to Fire Risk
Management Services (FRMS) and adopt an amended and restated joint exercise of powers
agreement, and that FDAC EBA will assign its rights and liabilities to FRMS and adopt the same
agreement as its own; and

WHEREAS, the amended and restated agreement allows FRMS to operate the programs
previously operated by both FDAC EBA and FASIS, and admit members that would have been
eligible to join either FDAC EBA or FASIS in the past; and

WHEREAS, The San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District is currently a member of
both FASIS and FDAC EBA, and the Board of Trustees of The San Mateo County Mosquito and
Vector Control District finds it in the best interest of the District to continue participating in and
obtaining coverage and risk management services from FRMS; and

WHEREAS, FRMS requires the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District to pass a
resolution expressing the desire and commitment of the District approve the amended and
restated joint exercise of powers agreement of FRMS and continue participation in FRMS, which
requires a new three-year minimum participation period.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the San Mateo County Mosquito and Control District of
approves the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for FRMS, as
presented; and



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees authorizes the District Manager to sign the
Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement that shall enable the San Mateo
County Mosquito and Vector Control District to continue participating in the joint self-insurance
and risk management programs provided by FRMS.

THIS RESOLUTION DULY PASSED this day of , 2023.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Kati Martin, Chair

Attest:

Brian Weber, District Manager



FDAC FRMS

Fire Risk Management Services

B

EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AUTHORITY

TO: FDAC EBA Member Districts
FROM: Carmen Berry, FDAC EBA Executive Director
DATE: March 2, 2023

SUBJECT: = AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT OF FIRE
RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES (formerly FDAC Employee Benefits
Authority)

The Fire Districts Association of California Employment Benefits Association (FDAC EBA) and
Fire Agencies Self Insurance System (FASIS) will consolidate, effective July 1, 2023, to form Fire
Risk Management Services (FRMS). FRMS is a multi-line risk pool providing eligible fire districts
and public agencies that provide emergency services employee benefits coverage and workers’
compensation to eligible fire districts in California.

The FDAC EBA and FASIS Consolidation Advisory Committee has met regularly over the past
twelve months to work toward streamlining the financial and administrative services via a
consolidation of the two programs. At the Special Board of Directors Meeting on
February 22, 2023, the FASIS and FDAC EBA Boards unanimously approved the FRMS Amended
and Restated Joint Powers Agreement (JPA), effective July 1, 2023.

In accordance with the Joint Powers Agreement: Creating the FDAC Fire Benefits Authority, Article
14:

“This Joint Powers Agreement may be amended by an amendment in writing signed

by two-thirds of the Agencies then parties to this Agreement.”

Attached is the Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of the Fire Risk Management
Services. The Agreement requires approval under Section 31: Execution in Counterparts and must be
received in our office no later than June 20, 2023. Signatories to the Agreement will require
approval from their respective governing bodies. To aid in this endeavor, attached are sample
resolutions for use by either 1) members of FDAC EBA only; or 2) members of both FASIS and
FDAC EBA. The sample resolutions allow for approval of the Agreement and authorize the
designated executive officer to execute, thus enabling participation in FRMS, effective July 1, 2023.

Upon approval from your district’s governing body, the Agreement under Section 31 (page 20) must
be executed using one of the following options:

1. Original Signature: print Section 31 (page 20) of the Agreement, sign and return via USPS.
Electronic Signature - Email: print Section 31 (page 20) of the Agreement, sign, scan, and
return via email.

3. Electronic Signature - Acrobat Sign: electronically access the Agreement, sign, and submit.

Serving the Workers’ Compensation Insurance Needs for Fire Districts in California Since 1984


https://na2.documents.adobe.com/public/esignWidget?wid=CBFCIBAA3AAABLblqZhCQRSxlQncTf0jjH8NgGVKUlVtvwcaDtWSqSjzm_lqkLPw8TOdTcFVPqaOScbOUfFQ*

When utilizing options #1 or #2 above, please submit the executed Agreement via USPS, email, or
fax to:

Melissa Feltz, FDAC EBA Coordinator
c¢/o SMA
808 R Street, Suite 209
Sacramento, CA 95811
FAX: (916) 231-2141
mfeltz@firebenefits.org

Your attention to this important matter is appreciated. If you have any questions or require additional
information, please contact Melissa Feltz at (916) 231-2143 or mfeltz@firebenefits.org.

Attachments:
1. Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of Fire Risk Management Services
2. Sample Resolution Authorizing Participation in Fire Risk Management Services — FASIS

3. Sample Resolution Authorizing Participation in Fire Risk Management Services — FASIS &
FDAC EBA

Serving the Workers’ Compensation Insurance Needs for Fire Districts in California Since 1984



AMENDED AND RESTATED JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT
OF FIRE RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES
(Formerly Fire Agencies Self Insurance System (FASIS))

This Amended and Restated Joint Powers Agreement of Fire Risk Management Services
(“FRMS”) (“Agreement”), formerly known as the Fire Agencies Self Insurance System (“FASIS”)
is made and entered into by and among the public agencies organized and existing under the laws
of the State of California who have or may hereafter execute this Joint Powers Agreement (the
“Members”) pursuant to the authority conferred by Government Code Section 6500 et seq.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, each of the Members who have executed this Agreement is a “public agency”
as that term is defined in Section 6500 of the California Government Code; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. provides that two or more
public agencies may by agreement jointly exercise any power common to the contracting parties;
and

WHEREAS, California Labor Code Section 3700 (c) authorizes public agencies, including
members of a pooling arrangement under a joint powers authority, to fund and self-insure for their
Worker’s Compensation claims liability; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.4 provides that a local public
agency may self-insure, purchase insurance through an authorized carrier, purchase insurance
through a surplus lines broker, or any combination of these; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Sections 989 and 990 authorize a local public
agency to self-insure itself and its employees against tort and inverse condemnation liability; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.8 provides that two or more local
public agencies may, by a joint powers agreement, provide insurance for any purpose by any one
or more of the methods specified in Government Code Section 990.4; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 990.6 provides that the cost of such
insurance or self-insurance is an authorized and appropriate expenditure of public funds; and

WHEREAS, California Government Code Sections 53200, 53201(a), 53202, 53202.2,
65205, 53205.1, 53205.16, 53206, 53208 and Health and Safety Code Section 13800 et seq.
provide that a local public agency may provide for any health and welfare benefits for the benefit
of its existing and retired officers, employees, and members of its legislative body, which health
and welfare benefits include, but are not limited to medical, hospital surgical, disability, legal
expense, dental, vision, life, and income protection insurance or benefits, whether provided on an
insurance basis, self-funded basis, or some combination of insurance and self-funding; and



WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53202 states that in providing such health and
welfare benefits, a public agency may approve self-funded plans or may contract with one or more
admitted insurers, health service organizations or legal service organizations for such plans of
health and welfare benefits as the public agency determines to be in the best interest of the public
agency and its existing and retired officers, employees and legislative body; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 53205 provides that the legislative body of a public
agency may expend public agency funds for the premiums, dues or other charges for health and
welfare benefits of its existing and retired officers, employees, and members of its legislative body;
and

WHEREAS, each of the Members which are parties to this Agreement desire to join
together with other Members in order to collectively establish, operate, manage, administer and
fund programs of insurance and/or self-insurance for workers’ compensation benefits,
employment benefits, general liability, property damage, and other coverages to be determined;
and

WHEREAS, each of the Members which are parties to this Agreement find it to be to its
mutual advantage and in the public benefit to utilize any power common to them, and all those
powers available to a Joint Powers Authority pursuant to the Joint Powers Act at Government
Code Section 6500 et seq. (the “Act™), to fulfill the purposes of this Agreement specified in Section
3 hereof, including establishing pools for self-insured losses and purchasing excess or re-insurance
and administrative services in connection with the Joint Protection Programs (the “Coverage
Programs”) for the collective benefit of the Members; and

WHEREAS, certain Members have previously executed that certain Amended Joint
Powers Agreement of FASIS dated October 13, 2005 (the “FASIS JPA”), which agreement such
Members desire to amend and restate by this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, this Amendment and Restatement is intended to allow members of Fire
Districts Association of California Employment Benefits Authority (“FDAC EBA”) to join FRMS
and share in consolidated administration and governance of programs by amending and restating
its existing Joint Powers Agreement to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the governing body of each Member has determined that it in the best interests
of the Member, and in the public interest, to execute this Agreement and participate in FRMS as a
Member;

WHEREAS, it is to the mutual advantage of and in the best interest of the parties to this
Joint Powers Agreement to continue and expand this Joint Powers Authority for the purposes
stated.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of all of the mutual benefits, covenants and
agreements contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:



SECTION 1:
DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall apply to the provisions of this Agreement:

1.

“Act” means Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5,
Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code, as amended.

“Administrator” shall mean the employee or third-party contractor who is appointed by
the Board of Directors to manage the business and affairs of FRMS under the policy
direction of the Board of Directors.

“Assessment” means an amount additional to a Member’s initial contribution or annual
contribution, which the Board of Directors determines, in accordance with this
Agreement and/or the Bylaws, that a Member or Former Member owes on account of its
participation in a Coverage Program for a given Program year.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” shall mean the governing body of FRMS.

“Bylaws” means the Bylaws of FRMS adopted by the Board of Directors, as they may
be amended from time to time.

“Claim” shall mean a demand made by or against a Member or Former Member which
is or may be covered by one of the Coverage Programs approved by the Board of
Directors.

“Contribution” shall mean the amount determined by the Board of Directors to be the
appropriate sum of money which a Member must pay at the commencement of or during
a Program Year in exchange for the benefits provided by a Coverage Program.

“Coverage Program” shall mean the specific type of Joint Protection Program as set forth
in the terms, conditions and exclusions of the Coverage Documents for insured or self-
insured losses, and the purchasing of excess or re-insurance and administrative services
with respect to such losses. On the effective date, FRMS will operate two (2) Coverage
Programs, the Workers’ Compensation Coverage Program for workers’ compensation
claims, and the Employment Benefits Coverage Program for claims related to medical,
hospital surgical, disability, legal expense, dental, vision, life, and income protection
insurance or benefits. FRMS may add additional programs later.

“Coverage Documents” shall mean the Declarations, Memorandum of Coverages,
Coverage Agreements, Endorsements, Policies of Insurance or any other documents that
provide the terms, conditions, limits and exclusions of coverage afforded by a Coverage
Program.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

“District” shall mean a special district and political subdivision of the State of California
as defined in Government Code Section 56000 et seq.

“Duly Constituted Board Meeting” shall mean any meeting of the Board of Directors
noticed and held pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act and at which a quorum is
determined to be present at the beginning of said meeting.

“Estimated Contribution” shall mean the amount which the Board of Directors estimates
will be the appropriate contribution for a Member’s participation in a Coverage Program
for a Program Year.

“Excess or Re-Insurance” shall mean that insurance that may be purchased on behalf of
FRMS and/or the Members to protect the funds of the Members or Former Members
against catastrophic losses or an unusual frequency of losses in a particular Coverage
Program during a Program Year in excess of any self-insured retention maintained by
FRMS for that Coverage Program.

“Fiscal Year” shall mean that period of 12 months which is established by the Board of
Directors as the fiscal year of FRMS.

“Former Member” shall mean a Member which was a signatory to this Agreement (or
the prior FASIS Agreement) but which has withdrawn from, or been involuntarily
terminated from participation in FMRS.

“Joint Protection Program” shall mean a Coverage Program offered by FRMS, separate
and distinct from other Coverage Programs, wherein Members shall jointly pool their
losses and claims, jointly purchase excess or re-insurance and administrative and other
services including claims adjusting, data processing, risk management consulting and
brokerage, loss prevention, legal, accounting and auditing and related services.

“Member” shall mean a public agency which has signed this Agreement, which qualifies
as a Member under the provisions of this Agreement and the Bylaws, and which has been
approved for membership by the Board of Directors.

“Memorandum of Coverage” shall mean a document issued by FRMS for each Coverage
Program specifying the coverages and limits provided to the Members participating in
that Coverage Program.

“Pooling” shall mean group self-insurance as permitted by Government Code Section
990.8, Labor Code Section 3700 and Government Code Section 53202.

“Program Year” shall mean a 12-month period of time determined by the Board of
Directors, during which a particular Coverage Program is in effect.



21. “Retained Earnings” shall mean an account reflecting the accumulated earnings of a
Coverage Program after payment of all losses, expenses and obligations of that Coverage
Program.

22. “Risk Management” shall mean the process of identifying, evaluating, reducing,
transferring and eliminating risks. Risk Management includes, but is not limited to,
various methods of funding claims payments, purchasing insurance, legal defense of
claims, controlling losses, and determining self-insurance retention levels and the amount
of reserves for potential claims.

SECTION 2:
FRMS AS SUCCESSOR TO AND EXPANSION OF FASIS

FASIS was originally formed on July 1, 1984, pursuant to the provisions of Government Code
Section 6500 et seq. as a joint powers authority to provide a program of pooling of self-insured
workers’ compensation losses of its members, which members were defined as California fire
protection districts formed and operating under the provisions of California Health and Safety
Code Section 13800 et seq. and California community services districts providing fire suppression
and emergency services formed and operating under the provisions of California Government
Code Section 61000, et seq. FASIS has continued to provide this self-insurance program up to the
effective date of this Agreement.

As of the effective date of this Agreement, the Fire Agencies Self Insurance System shall be known
as Fire Risk Management Services, referred to herein as FRMS. Pursuant to Government Code
Sections 6506 and 6507, from its inception, FRMS has, is, and shall be a public entity separate and
independent from the Members which is governed exclusively by its Board of Directors (“Board”).

FDAC EBA was originally formed on July 1, 2005, pursuant to the provisions of Government
Code Section 6500 et seq. as a joint powers authority to provide employment benefits programs
including medical, hospital surgical, disability, legal expense, dental, vision, life, and income
protection insurance or benefits, whether provided on an insurance basis, self-funded basis, or
some combination of insurance and self-funding, to any California public agency including special
districts, cities, and joint powers authorities which were formed with the power to provide fire
suppression and emergency services. FDAC EBA has continued to provide this employment
benefits program up to the effective date of this Agreement.

This Agreement is being amended and restated in part to allow members of Fire Districts
Association of California Employment Benefits Authority (“FDAC EBA”) to join FRMS and
share in consolidated administration and governance of programs. Accordingly, as of the effective
date of this Agreement, the membership of FRMS shall consist of the members of FASIS, as well
as the members of FDAC EBA that have approved this Agreement. Future membership in FRMS
is open to public agencies throughout California that meet the membership requirements specified
herein and in the Bylaws and are approved for membership by the Board of Directors.



SECTION 3:
PURPOSE

This Agreement is entered into by the Members pursuant to Government Code Sections 989, 990,
990.4, 990.6, 990.8, 52200 et seq., 6500 et seq. and Labor Code Section 3700, et seq., in order to
provide, subject to the Coverage Documents, workers’ compensation and employment benefits
coverages, and/or coverages for other risks which the Board of Directors may determine.

Additional purposes of this Agreement are: (1) to reduce the amount and frequency of losses, and
to decrease the costs incurred by Members in the handling and litigation of claims; (2) to expand
the breadth and reduce the costs of health and welfare benefits including, but are not limited to
medical, hospital, surgical, disability, legal expense, dental, vision, life, and income protection
insurance or benefits, whether provided on an insurance basis, self-funded basis, or some
combination of insurance and self-funding. These purposes shall be accomplished through the
exercise of the powers of the Members jointly in the creation of a separate public entity, Fire Risk
Management Services (“FMRS”) to establish and administer Coverage Programs as set forth
herein and in the Bylaws.

It is also the purpose of this Agreement to provide for the inclusion at subsequent dates of such
additional Members organized and existing as California public agencies as may desire to become
parties to this Agreement and Members of FRMS, subject to approval by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4:
MEMBERSHIP

Each Member which is a party to this Agreement must be a public agency which is duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of California with the power to provide at least one of the
following services: (1) fire suppression services, (2) emergency medical services, including
emergency disease response, prevention and control services; (3) hazardous material response
services (4) medical transport and/or ambulance services, including emergency transportation
services (5) rescue services; (6) any other emergency response services provided pursuant to the
California Emergency Services Act (Government Code Section 8550 et seq.). “Emergency” is
defined as any condition of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and/or property
caused by such conditions as air pollution, fire, flood, hazardous material incident, storm,
epidemic, riot, drought, plant or animal infestations or disease, earthquake, terrorism, or sudden
and severe energy shortage. Each Member must be approved for participation in the Authority in
the manner provided in the Bylaws of the Authority.

There shall be two (2) classes of Membership: (1) Voting Members; and (2) Non-voting Members.
Voting Members shall be public agencies organized as a fire protection district formed and
operating pursuant to the terms of California Health and Safety Code Section 13800 et seq. All
other Members shall be Non-voting Members.

The rights and obligations of Voting Members shall be as described in the Bylaws.



SECTION S:
PARTIES TO AGREEMENT

Each Member which has signed this Agreement certifies that it intends to and does contract with
FRMS, and with all other parties who have signed this Agreement, and, in addition, with such
other parties which may later be added as a party to and may sign this Agreement. Each party to
this Agreement, which has or may hereafter sign this Agreement, also certifies that the withdrawal
of any party from this Agreement by voluntary withdrawal, involuntary termination, or otherwise,
shall not affect this Agreement nor such party’s intent to contract with the other remaining parties
to this Agreement.

SECTION 6:
TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective as to existing Members of FASIS on the later of July 1,
2023, or the date on which the last of two-thirds of such Members have executed this Agreement
(“effective date™). This Agreement shall become effective as to existing Members of FDAC EBA
on the later of Julyl, 2023 or the date on which two-thirds of its members have executed this
Agreement.

This Agreement shall become effective as to each new Member upon: (1) approval of its
membership by the Board of Directors of the FRMS; (2) execution of this Agreement by the new
Member and by FRMS; and (3) by payment by the new Member of its initial contribution for
participation in one of the Coverage Programs offered by the FRMS.

SECTION 7:
POWERS OF FRMS

FRMS shall have all the powers common to its Members and all additional powers set forth in the
Joint Powers Authority Act, and is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary for the exercise of
said common powers, including, but not limited to, any or all of the following:

(1) to make and enter into contracts, including the power to accept the assignment of
contracts or other obligations which relate to the purposes of FRMS, or which were
entered into by a Member or Former Member prior to joining FRMS, and to acquire
assets, incur liabilities, and resolve and make claims;

(2) to accept an assignment from the FDAC EBA of all its assets, obligations and liabilities
(including claims and contracts in existence at the time of consolidation) in order to
benefit the Members and Former Members participating in the FDAC EBA employment
benefits coverage program; provided, that except for the fair and equitable allocation of
administrative and overhead expenses, funds from such assignment shall not be
commingled and shall be separately accounted for as provided in this Agreement and the
Bylaws;



)

4

©)
(6)

(7

(8)
)
(10)
(11)

(12)
(13)

(14)

(15)

to incur debts, liabilities or other obligations; including those which are not debts,
liabilities or other obligations of the Members or Former Members, or any of them;

to charge and collect Contributions and Assessments from Members or Former Members
for participation in a Coverage Program;

to employ agents and employees and/or to contract for services from third-party
consultants;

to receive grants and donations of property, funds, services, and other forms of assistance
from persons, firms, corporations and government entities;

to acquire, hold, lease or dispose of property, funds, contributions, donations, and any
other forms of assistance from persons, firms, corporations and government entities;

to acquire property by gift, grant, exchange, devise, or purchase;

to hold, lease, convey, sell, encumber, or dispose of property;

to sue and to be sued in its own name;

to issue or caused to be issue bonded and other indebtedness, and pledge any property or
revenues as security to the extent permitted by law by Articles 2 and 4 of the Act or
otherwise, including, but not limited to, bonds or other evidences of indebtedness issued
on behalf of FRMS or its Members;

to obtain in its own name all necessary permits, licenses, opinions and rulings;
whenever necessary to facilitate the exercise of its powers, to form and administer
nonprofit corporations to perform one or more of the functions which FRMS is
empowered to perform, or to perform any other proper corporate function, and to enter
into agreements with such nonprofit corporations;

to exercise all powers necessary and proper to carry out the terms and provisions of this
Agreement (including the provision of all other appropriate ancillary coverages for the

benefit of Members or Former Members, or otherwise authorized by law or the Act; and

to exercise all powers and perform all acts as otherwise provided in the Bylaws.

Said powers shall be exercised pursuant to the terms hereof, and in the manner provided by law
and in accordance with Section 6509 of the Act. The foregoing powers shall be subject to the
restrictions upon the manner of exercising such powers pertaining to the Member or Former
Member designated in the Bylaws.



SECTION 8:
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

All powers of FRMS shall be exercised by, and its property controlled and its affairs conducted by
and through its Board of Directors. Said Board of Directors is hereby designated as the agency to
administer and execute this Agreement pursuant to Government Code Section 6506.

The Board of Directors shall be composed of no more than fifteen (15) and no less than eleven
(11) individuals, each of whom is elected by a majority vote of Voting Members participating in a
Coverage Program, as specified in the Bylaws. Each member of the Board of Directors shall have
one vote. The terms for Directors, procedures for electing Directors, and the composition of the
Board of Directors shall be as set forth in the Bylaws. The Board of Directors shall have the
authority to conduct all business and govern all affairs of this Joint Powers Authority under the
provisions hereof and pursuant to law and shall have such powers and functions as are provided
for herein, in the Bylaws, or by law.

SECTION 9:
POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors shall have such powers as provided in this Agreement and the Bylaws and
such additional powers as necessary or appropriate to fulfill the purposes of this Agreement and
the Bylaws, including, but not limited to the following:

(a) Exercise all powers and conduct all business of this Joint Powers Authority.
(b) Determine the details of and select the Coverage Programs to be offered by FRMS;

(c) Provide for and develop various services including, but not limited to, financial
administration, insurance consulting and brokerage services; claims adjustment services,
loss control and risk management services; accountancy, auditing and actuarial services;
and legal and legislative advocacy services, either through its own employees or contracts
with third parties.

(d) Appoint and provide policy direction to the Administrator, appoint committees, appoint
staff, and employ such persons as the Board of Directors deems necessary for the
administration of this Joint Powers Authority.

() Determine and purchase all necessary insurance coverage, including Excess insurance,
Re-insurance, liability insurance, director’s and officer’s liability insurance, and such
other insurance as FRMS may deem necessary or proper to carry out the Coverage
Programs offered by the Authority, and to protect the employees of FRMS and the
employees of the Members.

(f) Fix and collect Contributions and Assessments from participating Members in
consideration for participation in the Coverage Programs offered by FRMS.

9



(2

(h)

(1)

W)

(k)

)

(m)

(n)

(0)
(p)

(@
(r)
(s)

Deposit all funds received in appropriate separate bank accounts in the name of Fire Risk
Management Services.

Invest funds on hand in any manner authorized by law for the investment of funds of a
public agency.

Direct the payment, adjustment, compromise, settlement and defense of all claims as
provided for in the Coverage Documents involving a Member during their period of

membership in and participation in a Coverage Program.

Expend funds of FRMS only for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of the
Agreement and the Bylaws as they now exist or may hereafter be amended.

Obtain a fidelity bond in such amount as the Board of Directors may determine for any
person or persons who have charge of or the authority to expend funds of the FRMS.

Acquire property by gift, grant, exchange, devise, or purchase; or hold, lease, convey,
sell, encumber, or dispose of all property necessary or appropriate to carry out the powers
and operations of FRMS.

Establish policies and procedures for the operation of FRMS.

Enter into any and all contracts or agreements necessary or appropriate to carry out the
purposes and functions of FRMS.

To prepare the annual operating budget of FRMS for each fiscal year.

To engage, retain and discharge agents, representatives, firms or other organizations as
the Board of Directors deems necessary for the administration of FRMS.

To exercise general supervisory power and policy control over the Executive Director.
To transact any other business which is within the powers of the Board of Directors.
Elect officers of FRMS.

SECTION 10:
OFFICERS

The officers of FRMS shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant
Treasurer, and Administrator. The position of Treasurer shall be filled by a person who either is
the treasurer of a Member, a certified public accountant, or one of the officers, employees, or
contracted consultants of FRMS. The Treasurer shall have no vote unless the Treasurer is also a

Director.

10



The Treasurer shall serve at the discretion of the President. The Treasurer shall be the depository
of and have custody of all the funds of FRMS, from whatever source. The Treasurer shall comply
with the duties and responsibilities of the office as set forth in subdivisions (a) to (d), inclusive, of
Section 6505.5 of the Government Code. The Board shall require the Treasurer to file with FRMS
an official bond in the amount to be fixed by the Board. FRMS shall pay the cost of bond premiums
required by this section.

In lieu of the designation of a treasurer and auditor as set forth in Government Code Section
6505.5, FRMS elects to appoint the Treasurer of FRMS to said positions under the provision of
Government Code Section 6505.6. FRMS further elects to be governed by and incorporates herein
all other provisions contained within Government Code Section 6505.6, including but not limited
to the requirement that the Treasurer shall cause an independent audit to be made by a certified
public accountant, or public accountant, in compliance with Section 6505. The treasurer, or the
treasurer’s designee, shall maintain or cause to be maintained all accounting or other financial
records FRMS and shall file all financial reports required of FRMS and shall perform such other
duties as the Board may specify.

All offices shall be filled and have the powers and responsibilities as prescribed in the Bylaws.

SECTION 11:
RESTRICTIONS ON POWER

Such powers enumerated in Section 8 hereof are subject to the restrictions upon the manner of
exercising power by the California public agency which is a Member and which is named in the
Bylaws, pursuant to California Government Code Section 6509.

SECTION 12:
COMPLIANCE WITH THE BROWN ACT

All meetings of the Board, including regular, adjourned regular and special meetings shall be
called, noticed, held and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act,
California Government Code section 54950 et seq.

SECTION 13:
BYLAWS

The Board shall promulgate Bylaws to govern day-to-day operations of FRMS. The Board may
amend the Bylaws from time to time as provided for in the Bylaws. The initial Bylaws of FRMS,
a copy of which is attached hereto and marked Exhibit A, are hereby adopted as the initial Bylaws
of FRMS. Each party to this Agreement by the execution hereof agrees to be bound by and to
comply with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement and of said Bylaws as they now exist
or may hereafter be amended, and agrees that any violation of the Bylaws shall be a violation of
this Agreement. FRMS shall operate and conduct its business and affairs pursuant to the terms of

11



this Agreement and said Bylaws. In the event any provisions of the Bylaws conflict with a
provision of this Agreement, the provision contained in this Agreement shall control.

SECTION 14:
COVERAGE PROGRAMS

FRMS shall maintain such types and levels of coverage for Coverage Programs as determined by
the Board of Directors. The coverage afforded under one or more Coverage Programs may include
protection for workers’ compensation liability, employment health and welfare benefits, and any
other risks which the Board of Directors may determine to be advisable. More than one type of
coverage may be afforded under a single Coverage Program. FRMS shall describe the coverage
and operation of each Coverage Program in writing utilizing documents such as Memorandums of
Coverage, Master Program Documents, or other written policies and procedures.

The Board of Directors may arrange for purchase of Excess or Re-insurance. FRMS shall not be
liable to any Member or to any other person or organization if such excess or re-insurance policies
are terminated, cancelled or non-renewed without prior notice to one or more Members, or if there
is a reduction in the type or amounts of coverage afforded under a Coverage Program by reason of
any change in coverage in a succeeding excess or re-insurance policy, even if such reduction occur
without prior notice to one or more Members.

SECTION 15:
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE COVERAGE PROGRAMS

The Board of Directors shall establish the coverage afforded by each Coverage Program, the
amount of Contributions and Assessments, the precise cost allocation plans and formulas, provide
for the handling of Claims, and specify the amounts and types of Excess or Re-insurance to be
obtained. The Contributions and Assessments for each Coverage Program shall be determined by
the Board of Directors as set forth herein, in the Bylaws, or in the controlling documents for each
Coverage Program.

SECTION 16:
ACCOUNTS AND RECORDS

(a) Annual Budget. FRMS shall, pursuant to the Bylaws, annually adopt an operating
budget, including budgets for each Coverage Program.

(b) Funds and Accounts. FRMS shall establish and maintain such funds and accounts as
required by the Board of Directors and as required by generally accepted accounting
principles, including separate funds and accounts for each Coverage Program. Books and
records of FRMS shall be open to any inspection at all reasonable times by authorized
representatives of Members, or as otherwise required by law.

(c) Investments. Subject to the applicable provisions of any indenture or resolution
providing for the investment of moneys held thereunder, FRMS shall have the power to

12



(d)

(e)

invest any money in the treasury that is not required for the immediate necessities of
FRMS, as the Board determines advisable, in the same manner as local agencies pursuant
to Government Code Section 53601 et seq. as such provisions may be amended or
supplemented.

No Commingling. The funds, reserves, and accounts of each Coverage Program shall
not be commingled and shall be accounted for separately; provided, however, that
administration and overhead expenses of FRMS not related to a specific Coverage
Program may be fairly and equitably allocated among Coverage Programs as determined
by the Board of Directors. Investments and cash accounts may be combined for
administrative convenience, but separate accounting shall be made for balances of
individual funds and Coverage Program revenues and expenses.

Annual Audit. The Board shall provide for a certified, annual audit of the accounts and
records of FRMS, in the manner prescribed in the Bylaws.

SECTION 17:
SERVICES PROVIDED BY FRMS

FRMS may provide, in the discretion of the Board of Directors, the following services in
connection with this Agreement:

(2)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

®

(2

(h)

To provide or procure coverage, including but not limited to self-insurance funds and
commercial insurance, as well as Excess or Re-insurance and umbrella insurance, by
negotiation, bid or purchase;

To assist Members in obtaining insurance coverage for risks not included within the
coverages of FRMS;

To assist risk managers with the implementation of risk management functions as they
relate to risks covered by the Coverage Programs offered by FRMS;

To provide loss control and safety consulting services to Members;

To provide claims adjusting and subrogation services for Claims covered by the
Coverage Programs;

To provide loss analysis and control through the use of statistical analysis, data
processing, and record and file retention services, in order to identify high exposure

operations and to evaluate proper levels of self-insured retention and deductibles;

To conduct risk management and claims audits relating to the participation of Members
in the Coverage Programs;

To provide such other services as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

13



SECTION 18:
RESPONSIBILITIES OF MEMBERS

Members or Former Members shall have the following responsibilities, which shall survive the
withdrawal from, or involuntary termination of participation in a Coverage Program, or
membership in FRMS:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(2

(h)

Each Member shall designate an individual to be responsible for the risk management
functions within that Member and to serve as a liaison between the Member and FRMS
as to risk management.

Each Member shall consider all recommendations of FRMS concerning unsafe practices
and/or hazard mitigation, and each Member participating in the Workers” Compensation
Coverage Program shall implement and maintain an injury and illness prevention
program as required by the California Labor Code within ninety (90) days of inception
into program.

Each benefits program Member shall maintain its own set of records, including a loss
log, in all categories of risk covered by each Coverage Program in which it participates
to assure accuracy of FRMS’ loss reporting system, unless it is deemed no longer
necessary by the Board of Directors;

Each Member participating in the Workers’ Compensation Program shall report job-
related accidents or illnesses to the appropriate claims administrator as soon as
practicable after notification of the accident or illness, and no later than 48 hours after
notification, shall use the format specified by the claims administrator when making job-
related accident reports, and make any other required notifications to government
agencies, including Cal-OSHA, when required;

Each Member shall pay its Contribution, and any adjustments thereto, and any
Assessments within the specified time period set forth in the invoice, or as otherwise set
forth in the Bylaws. After withdrawal or termination, each Former Member or its
successor shall promptly pay to FRMS its share of any additional Contributions,
adjustments or Assessments, if any, as required of it by the Board of Directors;

Each Member or Former Member shall provide FRMS with such other information or
assistance as may be necessary for FRMS to carry out the Coverage Programs in which
the Member or Former Member participates or has participated,

Each Member or Former Member shall in any and all ways cooperate with and assist
FRMS and any insurer of FRMS, in all matters relating to this Agreement and covered
Claims;

Each Member or Former Member shall comply with all Bylaws, rules, regulations and
operating policies and procedures adopted by the Board of Directors.

14



SECTION 19:
NEW MEMBERS

FRMS shall allow entry into its Coverage Programs of new Members, only upon approval of the
Board of Directors, with any conditions or limitations that the Board deems appropriate. In order
to become a Member and remain a Member, any public agency must participate in at least one
Coverage Program, pay the Contributions required for such participation, and shall be authorized
to exercise the common powers set forth in this Agreement.

SECTION 20:
WITHDRAWAL

Any Member may voluntarily withdraw from this Agreement only at the end of any applicable
Program Year and only if:

(a) The Member has been a party to this Amended and Restated Agreement for not less than
three (3) full Program Years as of the date of the proposed withdrawal;

(b) The Member submits at least 90 (ninety) days signed written withdrawal notification in
accordance with the Bylaws;

(¢) In order to withdraw from the Agreement, the Member must have completed the three
(3) full Program Year participation requirement for each Coverage Program in which the
Member participated at the time of withdrawal.

Any Member may voluntarily withdraw from any particular Coverage Program only at the end of
any applicable Program Year and only if:

(@) The Member has participated in a Coverage Program for at least three (3) full Program
Years;

(b) The Member is a participant in another Coverage Program; and

(c) The Member submits at least ninety (90) days signed written withdrawal notification in
accordance with the Bylaws.

In the event that the three (3) year participation requirement for any Coverage Program has not
been met, for each Coverage Program the withdrawing Member participated in at the time of
withdrawal for less than three (3) years, such withdrawing Member shall be obligated to pay all
Contributions and Assessments as if that Member had remained in such Coverage Program for the
required three (3) full years.

In the event the notice of withdrawal is not provided as required above, any such withdrawing
Member shall, with respect to each Coverage Program the Member participated in, be obligated to
pay any and all Contributions and Assessments for the next full Program Year.

15



A Member may not withdraw as a party to this Agreement until it has withdrawn from all of the
Coverage Programs of FRMS as provided herein and in the Bylaws.

SECTION 21:
EXPULSION

FRMS shall have the right to expel any Member’s participation in a Coverage Program, or expel
a Member from FRMS, for violation of the terms of this Agreement, the Bylaws, or any other rule,
regulation or operational policy adopted by the Board of Directors of FRMS, in the manner
provided for in the Bylaws.

The participation of any Member of FRMS, including participation in any of FRMS’ Coverage
Programs, may be expelled in the discretion of the Board of Directors whenever such Member is
dissolved, consolidated, merged or annexed. Any such expulsion shall not relieve the Member or
Former Member of its membership responsibilities specified in this Agreement.

SECTION 22:
EFFECT OF WITHDRAWAL OR EXPULSION

The withdrawal from or expulsion of any Member from this Agreement shall not be construed as
a completion of the purpose of the Agreement, nor shall it terminate this Agreement. Any Member
that withdraws or is expelled after the effective date of this Amended and Restated Agreement
shall not be entitled to payment, return or refund of any Contribution, Assessment, consideration,
or other property paid or donated by the Member to FRMS, or to any return of any loss reserve
contribution, or to any distribution of assets.

The withdrawal from or expulsion of any Member from any Coverage Program shall not terminate
its responsibilities to pay its unpaid Contributions, adjustments, or Assessments to such Coverage
Program. The Board of Directors shall determine the final amount due from the Member or Former
Member by way of Contributions or Assessments, if any, or any credit due on account thereof, to
the Member or Former Member for the period of its participation. Such determination shall not be
made until all Claims or other unpaid liabilities of that Coverage Program have been finally
resolved.

SECTION 23:
TERMINATION OF FRMS AND DISTRIBUTION

This Agreement may be terminated at any time with the written consent of two-thirds of the then
participating Members; provided, however, that FRMS and this Agreement shall continue to exist
for the purpose of disposing of all claims, distribution of all assets, and all other functions
necessary to wind up the affairs of the Authority.

The Board of Directors is vested with all powers of FRMS for the purposes of winding up and
dissolving the business affairs of FRMS. These powers include the power to require Members or
Former Members who were signatories to this Agreement at the time the subject Claims were

16



incurred, to pay any Assessments in accordance with loss allocation formulas for final disposition
of all Claims and losses covered by this Agreement or the Bylaws.

Upon termination of a Coverage Program, all net assets of such Coverage Program other shall be
distributed only among Members that are participating in such Coverage Program at the time of
termination, in accordance with and proportionate to their Contributions, adjustments, and
Assessments paid less claims or losses paid during the period of that Member’s participation in
the Coverage Program. The Board of Directors shall determine the distribution in the manner
specified in the Bylaws.

Upon termination of this Agreement, all net assets of FRMS, other than the net assets of any
Coverage Program distributed as provided above, shall be distributed only among Members in
good standing at the time of such termination in accordance with and proportionate to each such
Member’s contributions made and claims or losses paid, as permitted by Government Code
Section 6512.2. The Board of Directors shall determine such distribution in the manner specified
in the Bylaws.

In lieu of terminating this Agreement, the Board may, with the written consent of two-thirds of the
Voting Members, elect to assign and transfer all rights, assets, liabilities and obligations of FRMS
to a successor joint powers authority created under the Act.

SECTION 24:
AMENDMENTS

This Joint Powers Agreement may be amended by an amendment in writing signed by two-thirds
of the Members then parties to this Agreement. Upon signature of any amendment by two-thirds
of the then participating Members, any Member failing or refusing to sign such amendment may
be involuntarily terminated as a party to this Agreement as provided in the Bylaws.

SECTION 25:
ENFORCEMENT

FRMS is hereby granted authority to enforce this Agreement. In the event action is instituted to
enforce any term of this Agreement or any term of the Bylaws against any Member which has
signed this Agreement, the Member agrees to pay such sums as the court may fix as attorney fees
and costs in said action.

SECTION 26:
NON-LIABILITY OF MEMBER AGENCIES

Pursuant to Government Code Section 6508.1, the debts, liabilities and obligations of the FRMS
shall not be the debts, liabilities or obligations of the Members which are parties to the Agreement.
Nothing in the Joint Powers Agreement or in the Bylaws adopted pursuant thereto shall be
construed as imposing liability upon any Member, or any officer, employee or member of the
legislative body thereof, for the payment of any Claims incurred in any of the Coverage Programs

17



offered by FRMS to its Members, the sole recourse of claimants being against funds of those
insurance programs and/or self-funded programs administered by the FRMS for the payment of
such benefits.

SECTION 27:
NON-LIABILITY OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS., ADMINISTRATOR,
AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES

The Board of Directors, officers, Administrator, agents, and employees of FRMS shall not be liable
to FRMS, to any Member or Former Member, or to any other person for any actual or alleged
breach of duty, mistake of judgment, neglect, error, misstatement, misleading statement, or any
other act or omission in the performance of their duties hereunder; for any action taken or omitted
by any director, officer, administrator, agent, or employee, or independent contractor; for loss
incurred through the investment or failure to invest funds; or loss attributable to any failure or
omission to procure or maintain insurance; except in the event of fraud, gross negligence, or
intentional misconduct of such director, officer, administrator, agent, or employee. No director,
officer, administrator, agent, or employee, including former directors, officers, administrators,
agents or employees, shall be liable for any action taken or omitted by any other director, officer,
administrator, agent, or employee.

SECTION 28:
INDEMNIFICATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS. OFFICERS, AND EMPLOYEES

As a public entity, FRMS shall defend and shall indemnify and hold harmless its directors, officers,
and employees, including former directors, officers and employees, from any and all claims,
demands, causes of action, liability, losses and damages arising out of the performance of their
duties as such directors, officers and employees of FRMS, except in the event of fraud, gross
negligence, corruption, malice or intentional misconduct, and the funds of FRMS shall be used for
such purposes. FRMS may purchase conventional insurance to protect FRMS, and its Members
and Former Members, against any such acts or omissions by its directors, officers and employees,
including former directors, officers and employees.

SECTION 29:
ADMINISTRATION OF PREEXISTING OBLIGATIONS

(a) All liabilities and obligations of FASIS existing prior to the effective date of this
Amended and Restated Agreement will be administered under the terms and conditions
of the FASIS Agreement as it existed prior to the effective date.

(b) All assets of FRMS existing prior to the effective date shall be reserved by FRMS for the
sole purpose of administering the preexisting obligations under the FASIS Agreement.

(c) The Board shall appoint a committee made up of representatives of Members that were
Members of FASIS prior to the effective date to make recommendations to the Board
regarding the administration of the preexisting obligations under the FASIS Agreement.

18



(d)

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

As to specific agenda items relating to such matters, only Directors representing
Members who were members of FASIS prior to the effective date may vote, and as to
such items, a quorum shall be determined solely by reference to the number of Directors
that represent members of FASIS prior to the effective date.

In the event that FDAC EBA assigns its rights, assets, liabilities and obligations to
FRMS, any assets of FDAC EBA that are assigned to FRMS shall be used exclusively
for the purpose of administrating the obligations of FDAC EBA. In the event of such
assignment, the Board shall appoint a committee made up of representatives of Members
that were Members of FDAC EBA prior to the effective date to make recommendations
to the Board regarding the administration of FDAC EBA’s obligations. As to specific
agenda items relating to such matters, only Directors representing Members who were
members of FDAC EBA prior to the effective date may vote, and as to such items, a
quorum shall be determined solely by reference to the number of Directors that represent
members of FDAC EBA prior to the effective date.

SECTION 30:
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

This Agreement shall bind and inure to the heirs, devisees, assignees and successors in
interest of the Authority and to the successors in interest of each Member in the same
manner as if such parties had been expressly named herein.

This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the state of California. This Agreement
together with the documents incorporated into the Agreement by reference constitute the
entire Agreement between the parties regarding its subject matter. There are no oral
understandings or agreements not set forth in writing herein.

If any provisions in this Agreement are held by any court to be invalid, void, or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless continue
in full force and effect.

No person or organization or entity shall be entitled to assert the rights of any Member
or Former Member under any Coverage Document or Coverage Program. No Member
or Former Member may assign any right, claim or interest it may have under this
Agreement, and no creditor, assignee or third-party beneficiary of any Member or Former
Member shall have any right, claim or title to any part, share, interest, fund, contribution
or asset of FRMS.

19



SECTION 31:
EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and shall be as fully effective as
though executed in one document.

(Agency Name)

Date: By:

Name/Title

20



San Mateo County MVCD

Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 5B.1

SUBJECT:  Approve the purchase of BVA2 Larvicide Oil in the
amount of $40,000 from Azelis Agricultural and
Environmental Solutions

BACKGROUND AND STATUS

The Operations Director proposes to buy 3,200 gallons of BVA 2 mosquito larvicide oil (BVA).
BVA is a highly refined oil used primarily to control immature mosquitoes. When applied evenly
over the water surface, it rapidly interrupts the air-water interface and suffocates the larvae and
pupae. This quick action makes it an effective larvicide for the seasonal Jeep program that targets
larvae in underground storm drains. This purchase will last approximately 18 months and be
stored in the district’s large holding tanks on site.

BVA is sold by two distributors, Azelis Solutions and Target Specialty Products. The table below

summarizes their quotes. Using Azelis, the district can split the shipping cost with another
district at a prorated savings of $7,500 in freight costs.

Azelis $8.62 @ 3,200 gal $7,500 $37,738.96
Target $9.25 @ 3,000 gal $14,100 $44,522.33

This purchase was budgeted and accounted for in the FY 22-23 approved budget.

The Finance Committee unanimously recommended the purchase of BVA2 Larvicide Oil from
Azelis Agricultural and Environmental Solutions.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve having the Operations Director purchase 3,200 gallons of BVA 2 mosquito larvicide oil
from Azelis for $37,738.96, with an additional $2,261.04 added in the event of increased

delivery charges for a total recommended amount of $40,000.

REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED:

Azelis Solutions Bid
Target Specialty Bid
Azelis Solutions Pesticide PO
Target Specialty Products PO

b



[ X X J I i Agricultural & Innovation
. through
‘: ‘age IS Environmental fitualation
P Solutions
Date: April 17, 2023

Quotation #: 041723-1
Valid through: June 30, 2023
Prepared by: Dennis Candito

ADAPCO, LLC d/b/a/ Azelis Agricultural & Environmental Solutions is pleased to
provide the following quotation to:

SAN MATEO COUNTY MVCD

BURLINGAME CA

For a split tanker load of BVA 2 Larvicide Oil.

Comments or special instructions:
Applicable sales tax will be added to invoice, and is based on the Tax Rate at the delivery location at the time of delivery.
Prices quoted include CDPR Pesticide Mil Tax assessment.

Bulk Oil volume is determined by weight, not by meter. Therefore, the actual gallons you receive and are invoiced for will not be
the exact amount ordered. The actual volume received may be more or less than the amount ordered.
The district will be invoiced for the actual volume delivered as determined by the manufacturer's shipping documents.

Item Description (0]3Y Pkg Size Unit Price/ Unit Estimated Subtotal
BVA 2 LARVOIL 3,200 BULK GAL. | § 8.62 GL | S 27,584.00
ESTIMATED TAX 9.625% S 2,654.96

Subtotal $ 30,238.96
Estimated Freight* §  7,500.00
Estimated Total** § 37,738.96

* ESTIMATED FREIGHT is based on San Mateo County MVCD splitting a full tanker load with another district.
ESTIMATED FREIGHT is an estimate of freight cost based on recent and similar shipments. Actual freight cost may be more or
less than what is estimated because actual tanker rates are not available until time of shipment.
Freight will be Prepaid & Added to Invoice. Payment Terms Net 30 days.

** ESTIMATED TOTAL is based on San Mateo County MVCD splitting a full tanker load with another district. If San Mateo
County MVCD does not split the load with another district, then the estimated total would be doubled.

Please visit our website at www.azelisaes-us.com to view Labels, request SDS, and get other product information.
Should you have any questions or immediate needs, please contact me at 877-875-6353.

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you.

Best regards,

@W W [electronic signature]

Dennis Candito
Key Account Representative

Azelis Agricultural & Environmental Solutions
Email: Dennis.Candito@azelis.com
Direct: 877-875-6353



mailto:DCandito@myadapco.com
mailto:DCandito@myadapco.com

‘ ' T a R G E T 524 Galveston St

West Sacramento, CA
* 95691
BV sPeciALTY PRODUCTS o16-374-9900

800-533-0816
FAX 916-374-0900

Quotation
Contact: Casey Stevenson Quotation #:
Customer: San Mateo MVCD Date: 4/28/2023
Address: 1351RollinsRd Customer ID:
City, State: Burlingame,CA
Zip: 94010
PO # TSP Order # SalesRep FOB Ship Via Terms Shipping Date
J. Camacho Net 30
Item # Quantity Description UOM Unit Price Total
1512442 3000 BVA 2 Larvacide Oil (BULK) Gallon $9.25 $27,750.00

Subtotal $27,750.00

Special Notes and Instructions Shipping $14,100.00
This quote is valid for 90 days. Free shipping on orders greater than $700. Taxes $2,672.33
The prices quoted do not include any sales tax. Sale tax will be added at time .

of invoicing. Misc

Balance $44,522.33

Quote Prepared By:
Joe Camacho
Vector Specialist 916-291-3173

Sales Representative joe.camacho@target-specialty.com



SAN MATEO COUNTY 1351 Rollins Rd

MOSQUITO & VECTOR  Burlingame CA 94010
B R, B s oves PURCHASE REQUISITION /
t Fax (650) 344-3843
Protecting public health since 1916 www.smemved.org PURCHASE ORDER
Requested by: Casey Stevenson Signature:
Request Date: April 27, 2023
VENDOR: Azelis Solutions SHIPTO  San Mateo County Mosquito and
ATTN: Dennis Candito Vector Control District
1351 Rollins Road
Burlingame, CA 94010
877-875-6533 Phone: (650) 344-8592
DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT CODE / FUND
OPERATIONS 5111A10P - Pesticides: Altosid, BVA, Larvicides - (GENERAL FUND)
QTY UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE LINE TOTAL
3200 Gallons BVA2 Larvicide oil $ 8.62 | $ 27,584.00
1 Freight Estimated Tanker Freight Cost $ 9,761.04 | $ 9,761.04
Business Purpose for Requesting Purchase Order SUBTOTAL| $ 37,345.04
3,200 Gallons of BVA2 mineral Oil primarily used for District's seasonal Catch Basin Program SALES TAX 2,654.96
Shipping / Freight
Instructions: Other
ToTAL| $ 40,000.00
1. A Purchase Requisition Form will be required for all purchases over $1,000.
2. Per District Policy 6030 — Expense Authorization, informal bidding is required for requests
between $1,000 and $7,500. For requests over $7,500, formal bidding shall be required (will need
an RFP). Attach relevant supporting documentation to each request.
Department Manager Approval Date District Manager Approval Date
FINANCE APPROVAL and PURCHASE ORDER #
Finance Director Approval Date Purchase Order Number

Updated 8/7/15



San Mateo County MVCD

Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 5B.2

SUBJECT: Approve the purchase of thirteen iPad's in the amount of
$9,440.21 from Verizon Wireless

BACKGROUND AND STATUS

To improve operational efficiency, District staff is recommending replacing our field deployed iPads
that field and laboratory staff use to do their jobs daily. The iPads are beginning to meet the end of their
useful life and should be upgraded in preparation for the recently approved 3rd generation of Mapvision
software. These devices have a faster processor and can connect to the new 5G broadband internet
previously unavailable on the old iPads. Both these features will allow our data entry to go more
smoothly and reliably. The purchase of these devices was budgeted and available in the current FY
22/23 budget.

The staff has opted to purchase the devices outright to give more replacement flexibility and allow for
softer device rollouts.

Comparable quotes were obtained through Apple, CDW, and Verizon.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board approve the purchase of thirteen new 5G capable iPads from Verizon
Wireless in the amount of $9,440.21.

The Finance Committee unanimously approved this recommendation.

REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED

1. CDW Quote
2. Apple Quote
3. Verizon Quote



@ CHECKOUT: BILLING & PAYMENT Agenda Item 5B.2.1

° Shipping Address =«

Order Summary
Matt Nienhuis
ek s ontels Subtotal $9,788.87
Burlingame, CA 94010 o
Shipping §19.99
- 831.00 per device Recycle F $52.00
@ shipping Method = $ P R
after tax and fees Sales Tax $942.18

UPS Ground (2-3 days)
Monday, May 1, 2023 (Ground) 513,99

Ship all items together Order Total $10,803.04

(3) Billing & Payment



brian.weber
Highlight

brian.weber
Highlight


Agenda Item 5B.2.2
Apple Inc. Price Quote

Customer: VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT Apple Inc: Ritz Sherman
SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND One Apple Park Way
VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT Cupertino, CA 95014
Phone: (650) 608-0479 email: ritz@apple.com

email: mnienhuis@smcmvcd.org

Apple Quote: 2211928344
Quote Date: Monday, March 27, 2023
Quote Valid Until: Wednesday, April 26, 2023

Quote Comments:
Please reference Apple Quote number on your Purchase Order.

1 10.9-inch iPad Air Wi-Fi + Cellular MMG6R3LL/A $699.00 21 $0.00 $14,679.00
64GB - Space Gray
Part Number MM6R3LL/A

Subtotal $14,679.00
- Additional Tax $0.00
- Estimated Tax $1,412.85
- Total Tax $1,412.85
Total Recycle/eWaste fee $84.00
Total $16,175.85

*In most cases Extended discounted Total price does not include
Sales Tax

*If applicable, eWaste/Recycling Fees are included. Standard
shipping is complimentary

Total amount per device $770.28

Purchasing with a PO - In order for Apple to accept Purchase Orders your organization must have an Apple Customer Number.
Apple identifies our customer’s purchasing accounts by the Bill-To address on POs with each address needing it’s own matching
account.

If you already have a Apple Customer number, please visit ecommerce.apple.com to place your order. To maintain a secure
environment, all new users must register for access to the store at myaccess.apple.com. This is a simple process.



https://ecommerce.apple.com/
https://myaccess.apple.com/
brian.weber
Highlight


Steps to become an online Purchaser or Proposer:

1. Log in to myaccess.apple.com by clicking on "Sign In" and providing your Apple ID and password. (If you do not have an Apple
ID for business, you can create one on this page by clicking "Sign Up" and following the steps on that screen.)

2. Click "Request Access".

3. Select the “Apple Online Store” and click "Next".

4. Select the location to which the access is being requested and click "Next". (You can search by your customer number)

5. Select a role from the drop down menu, (only the purchaser role can place orders using a PO#, please register as a purchaser)
enter your manager’s name and email address. Click "Next". (The manager you list cannot be yourself.)

6. Confirm the information then click "Submit.”

7. Close the confirmation page. Your request will be processed shortly. Once the access request is completed, you can log into the
Apple Online Store at any time by visiting ecommerce.apple.com.

Note: Prior to making your first online purchase, Apple will validate your employment with your company/agency. This validation
is initiated when you complete the registration process and takes approximately one business day.

If you DO NOT have an Apple Customer number, please email GovernmentSSO@apple.com ASAP and request instruction for
setting one up. They will reply with next steps. Once completed (process takes 5-7 days) you will get a "Welcome to Apple" email
with your customer number inside.

Need help? Please ensure you are using the most current version of your web browser and have cleared your cache and cookies. If

If you have the ability to purchase with a procurement card, you can go to the site below and purchase directly from there without
needing to sign up for an account. (Products purchased here are ineligible for Apple’s Device Enrollment Program, a.k.a.

______ Opportunity ID:

https://ecommerce.apple.com

Fax:

Terms & Use | Privacy Policy | Return Policy
Copyright © 2016 Apple Inc. All rights reserved.

Document rev 10.6.1 Date of last revision - June 20th, 2016


https://myaccess.apple.com/
https://ecommerce.apple.com/
mailto:GovernmentSSO@apple.com
mailto:myaccess.support@apple.com
http://www.apple.com/r/store/government/
https://ecommerce.apple.com/
http://www.apple.com/legal/
http://www.apple.com/legal/privacy/
https://ecommerce.apple.com/content/b2b/static/en/us/edu-hied/acceptance.html

Agenda ltem

58'21§cati0n: 1806301

verizon’

Hi MATTHEW NIENHUIS,
SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO ABAT, 1351 ROLLINS RD, BURLINGAME, CA 94010-2409.

Let us help you do business. Please review your quote here, if you have any questions to get clarified feel free to connect with your Verizon
sales executive.
Raul Meneses | 4158286316 | Raul.memeses@verizonwireless.com

This guotation is based on the terms and conditions of the State of California CALNET Contract #C4-CVD-19-001-03, Addenda and
Attachments can be found on the http://www.verizon.com/cawireless site for your review.

Quote ID Created on Expires on
23247522-Q-6832485 04/27/2023 06/25/2023

Quote summary

All amounts in below summary without taxes or accessory cost over 24 months

Number of lines Avg Cost/Line per month Total cost per month
13 $37.99 $493.87
Quote overview

With applicable discounts

Plans & features Devices
(Due monthly) (Due today)
$493.87 $8,449.87

Page 1 of 4



location: 1806301

verizon’

Quote details

Plans & features

Mobile Broadband Unlimited Plus DTL 25GB - $37.99/month
Qty: 13 x$37.99 $493.87

Added features:

» Decline Device Protection

Qty: 13 x $0.00 $0.00
Due monthly (Subsidy - 2 year) $493.87
Total due monthly for plans & features $493.87

*Decline equipment protection: Verizon will not be protecting your device. In the event of lost, theft, damage or post warranty defects, the cost to replace each device could
be in excess of $1000. The cost to repair your smartphone's cracked screen maybe be in excess of $100 per repair.

Devices & accessories

AppleiPad Air 2022 64GB in Space Gray - MM6R3LL/A
Retail price $749.99

Promotion(s) applied:

+ Corporate Discount -3100.00
Net price (2 yr contract) $649.99
Due today

Qty: 13 x $649.99 $8,449.87
Total due today for device(s) $8,449.87

Total charges by account

Account Due monthly Due today

271667168-2 $493.87 $9,440.21

Sales tax

CA eWaste Fee $52.00
CA STATE ASSOCIATED ADMIN FEE 0.00
CA state sales tax $585.00
CA local sales tax $353.34
Total due today with tax Total amount per device $726.17 $9,440.21
Device Payment Tax 0.00

Additional fees for usage and overages may apply. Offers & Coverage vary by service & equipment. See Verizonwireless.com for coverage map. Equipment and
accessories are subject to availabilty while supplies last. Additional charges, taxes, fees and surcharges apply.

Page 2 of 4


brian.weber
Highlight


H location: 1806301
verizon’

Important customer information

Prices referenced in this document are for estimating purposes only. Actual prices will be based on current equipment, calling plan and feature
charges available at purchase, device tax due at the time of purchase and are subject to change without notice. Equipment and accessories are
subject to availability while supplies last.

Activation/upgrade fee/line up to $40; restocking fee per device up to $50.Subject to business agreement, Calling Plan & credit approval. Either
an Offer Recovery Fee or up to $650 Early Termination Fee may apply. If applicable, your line's Offer Recovery Fee will be the sum of device
discounts plus device credits you receive. Offers & coverage, varying by svc, not available everywhere; see vzw.com. Monthly charges are
shown before taxes, and Verizon Wireless surcharges/line (including 29.0% Fed. Univ. Svc.,$1.95 Administrative and $0.21 Regulatory
Charges).

PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THE CALNET- C4-CVD-19-001-03 CONTRACT, PURCHASES UNDER THAT CONTRACT ARE ASSESSED
A CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATED ADMINISTRATIVE FEE (SAAF).

Legal Disclaimer

Any discrepancy between this quote and the contracted price, the price in the contract referenced above prevails.

Page 3 of 4



H location: 1806301
verizon’

Why Verizon

The network businessesrely on

If your network is down, you’re down. Our award-winning network delivers the speed, reliability, coverage and performance that you need to
succeed.

Superior Coverage 5Ginnovation Trusted security
Our 4GLTE network covers 327 million people. Veriozn 5G Ultra Wideband is the fastest 5G in the Managing over 500,000 security network and
That's over 99% of the U.S.population. world", with ultra-low lag and Massive capacity.? hosting devices gives us valuable insights into the

digital landscape.

Performance Massive capacity Easy integration
Verizon is the most awarded brand for Wireless We obsess over the details, analyzing millions of We've certified 900+ machine-to-machine (M2M)
Network Quality according to J.D Power.3 gigabytes of data every day. chipsets, modules and devices.

1 Global claim from May 2020, based on Opensignal independent analysis of mobile measurements recorded during the period January 31 —
April 30, 2020 © 2020 Opensignal Limited.

2 5G Ultra Wideband (UWB) available only in parts of select cities. 5G UWB access requires a 5G capable device with select voice/data & 5G
UWB plans. 5G Nationwide available in 2,700+ cities.

3 Verizon received the highest number of awards in network quality for the 25th time as compared to all other brands in the J.D. Power 2003-
2020 Volume 1 and 2 U.S. Wireless Network Quality Performance Studies. Network Quality measures customers’ satisfaction with their
network performance with wireless carriers. For J.D. Power 2020 award information, visit jdpower.com/awards for more details.

Page 4 of 4



San Mateo County MVCD

Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 5C.1

SUBJECT: Approve the Vector Control Services Agreement to
provide the City of San Mateo with Rodent Control
Services along residential waterways

BACKGROUND AND STATUS

In the Summer of 2015, the District took over the control of roof rats, particularly along
waterways in the City of San Mateo. In June 2015, the district implemented a rodent control
program in eight San Mateo waterways. This program is run from June to October and has been
done regularly each summer starting in June. The City of San Mateo would reimburse the
District for this work, not to exceed $24,617.60 annually. This rate would cover the cost of
materials and labor for placing and monitoring 314 bait stations and control blocks along
channels that run through residential San Mateo. The term of the agreement is from June 1%,
2023, to May 31%, 2026. The rate was calculated by taking the staff time, and materials cost and
adding 6% over the contract's life, divided by the years to present as a fixed annual price. The
agreement has been reviewed by District Counsel as to form.

The Finance Committee unanimously approved the Vector Control Services Agreement to
provide the City of San Mateo with Rodent Control Services along residential waterways.

RECOMMENDATION

Recommend the Board approve the contract with the City of San Mateo for the District to
provide rodent control services in the amount of $24,617.60 annually for a term of three years

REFERENCE MATERIALSATTACHED:

1. San Mateo County Vector Control Services Agreement for Rodent Control Services



VECTOR CONTROL SERVICES AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN
THE CITY OF SAN MATEO AND
THE SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

THIS VECTOR CONTROL SERVICES AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of
the _ dayof , , by and between the CITY OF SAN MATEO,
a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of California (“City”’) and the SAN
MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT, an independent
special district existing under the laws of the State of California (“District), with reference to the
following facts and intentions:

RECITALS

WHEREAS, City desires to obtain certain rodent control services more particularly
described herein; and

WHEREAS, District has the qualifications and experience to provide such rodent control
services; and

WHEREAS, City desires to engage District to provide these rodent control services and
District has offered to provide the services on the following terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual covenants, the parties hereto agree
as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The recitals set forth above, and all defined terms set
forth in such recitals and in the introductory paragraph preceding the recitals, are hereby
incorporated into this Agreement as if set forth herein in full.

2. Project Coordination.

A. City. City shall assign Steve Camilleri, Public Works Supervisor to
represent City for all purposes under this Agreement and be designated as the Project Manager.
The Project Manager shall supervise the progress and execution of this Agreement.

B. District. District shall assign Brian Weber, District Manager, to have
overall responsibility for the progress and execution of this Agreement for District.

3. Scope and Performance of Services

A. Scope of Services. Subject to the provision of pertinent information
regarding its requirements for the work and such policy direction and approvals as City, through

OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



its staff, may determine from time to time, District shall perform the services set out in the
“Scope of Work” attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference.

B. Time of Performance. The services of District are to commence no sooner
than June 1, 2023 and be completed no later than May 31, 2026. District shall perform its
services in accordance with the “Schedule of Performance” attached hereto as Exhibit B, and
incorporated herein by reference. Any changes to these dates in either this Section 3 or Exhibit B
must be approved in writing by the Project Manager.

C. Standard of Quality. City relies upon the professional ability of District as
a material inducement to entering into this Agreement. All work performed by District under
this Agreement shall be in accordance with all applicable legal requirements and shall meet the
standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of competent professionals in District's field of
expertise.

4, Compensation and Method of Payment.

A. Compensation. The compensation to be paid to District, including both
payment for professional services and reimbursable expenses, shall be at the rate and schedules
attached hereto as Exhibit B, and incorporated herein by reference. However, in no event shall
the amount the City pays the District in a year exceed twenty-four thousand six hundred
seventeen dollars and sixty cents ($24,617.60).

B. Timing of Payment. District shall submit itemized monthly statements for
work performed. City shall make payment, in full, within thirty (30) days after approval of the
invoice by the Project Manager.

C. Changes in Compensation. District shall not undertake any work that will
incur costs in excess of the amount set forth in Paragraph 4(A) without prior written amendment
to this Agreement.

D. Litigation Support. District agrees to testify at City’s request if litigation
is brought against City in connection with District’s work product. Unless the action is brought
by District or is based upon District’s negligence, City shall compensate District for the
preparation, travel and the testimony at District’s standard hourly rates at the time of actual
testimony.

5. Amendment to Scope of Work. City shall have the right to amend the Scope of
Work within the Agreement by written notification to the District. In such event, the
compensation and time of performance shall be subject to renegotiation upon written demand of
either party to the Agreement. District shall not commence any work exceeding the Scope of
Work without prior written authorization from the City.

6. Term. This Agreement shall commence upon its execution and shall continue in
full force and effect until completed, amended, or otherwise terminated as provided herein.

OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



7. Inspection. District shall furnish City with every reasonable opportunity for City
to ascertain that the services of District are being performed in accordance with the requirements
and intentions of this Agreement. All work done and all materials furnished, if any, shall be
subject to the Project Manager's inspection and approval. The inspection of such work shall not
relieve District of any of its obligations to fulfill the Agreement as prescribed.

8. Ownership of Documents. Title to all plans, specifications, maps, estimates,
reports, manuscripts, drawings, descriptions and other final work products compiled by the
District under this Agreement shall be vested in City. District may retain copies of the above-
described information but agrees not to disclose or discuss any information gathered, discussed
or generated in any way through this Agreement without the written permission of City during
the term of this Agreement, unless required by law or released by City to the public.

9. Employment of Other Districts, Specialists or Experts. District will not employ or
otherwise incur an obligation to pay other consultants, specialists, or experts for services in
connection with this Agreement without the prior written approval of the City.

10. Contflict of Interest.

A. District covenants and represents that neither it, nor any officer or member
of its Board, has, or shall acquire any investment, income, business entity, interest in real
property, or other interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner with the
interests of City, hinder District’s performance of services under this Agreement, or be affected
in any manner or degree by performance of District's services hereunder. District further
covenants that in the performance of the Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be
employed by it as an officer, employee, agent, or subcontractor without the express written
consent of the City. District agrees to at all times avoid conflicts of interest, or the appearance of
any conflicts of interest, with the interests of the City in the performance of the Agreement.

B. District is not a designated employee within the meaning of the Political
Reform Act because District:

(1) will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to its
rendition of information, advice, recommendation, or counsel independent of the control and
direction of the City or of any City official, other than normal contract monitoring; and

(2) possesses no authority with respect to any City decision beyond the
rendition of information, advice, recommendation, or counsel. (2 Cal. Code Regs.
§ 18700(a)(2).)

11.  Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law, District hereby agrees to
defend (by counsel reasonably satisfactory to the City), indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its
officers, agents, employees, volunteers, and servants, from and against any and all claims,
demands, damages, costs, liabilities, or obligations brought on account of or arising out of any
acts, errors, or omissions of District, its officers, employees, agents, and subcontractors
undertaken pursuant to this Agreement excepting liabilities due to the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of City.

3-
OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



To the fullest extent permitted by law, City hereby agrees to defend (by counsel reasonably
satisfactory to the District), indemnify, and hold harmless the District, its officers, agents,
employees, volunteers, and servants, from and against any and all claims, demands, damages,
costs, liabilities, or obligations brought on account of or arising out of any acts, errors, or
omissions of City, its officers, employees, agents, and subcontractors undertaken pursuant to this
Agreement excepting liabilities due to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of District.

The Parties’ duty to indemnify and hold harmless, as set forth herein, shall include the duty to
defend as set forth in California Civil Code § 2778. This indemnification obligation is not
limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages or compensation payable
by or for the Parties under Worker's Compensation, disability or other employee benefit acts or
the terms, applicability or limitations of any insurance held or provided by the Parties and shall
continue to bind the parties after termination/completion of this agreement.

12.  District Not an Agent of City. District, its officers, employees and agents shall
not have any power to bind or commit City to any decision.

13.  Independent Contractor. It is expressly agreed that District, in the performance of
the work and services agreed to be performed by District, shall act as and be an independent
contractor and not an agent or employee of City; and as an independent contractor, District shall
obtain no rights to retirement benefits or other benefits which accrue to City’s employees, and
District hereby expressly waives any claim it may have to any such rights.

14. Compliance with Laws.

A. General. District shall use the standard of care in its profession to comply
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, codes, ordinances, and regulations. District
represents and warrants to City that it has and shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or
obtain at all times during the term of this Agreement any licenses, permits, insurance and
approvals which are legally required for District to practice its profession.

B. Workers” Compensation. District certifies that it is aware of the
provisions of the California Labor Code which require every employee to be insured against
liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the
provisions of that Code, and District certifies that it will comply with such provisions before
commencing performance of the Agreement and at all times in the performance of the
Agreement.

C. Prevailing Wage. District and District’s subcontractors (if any) shall, to
the extent required by the California Labor Code, pay not less than the latest prevailing wage
rates to workers and professionals as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations of the
State of California pursuant to California Labor Code, Part 7, Chapter 1, Article 2. Copies of the
applicable wage determination are on file at the City’s Public Works Department office.

D. Injury and Illness Prevention Program. District certifies that it is aware of
and has complied with the provisions of California Labor Code § 6401.7, which requires every
employer to adopt a written injury and illness prevention program.

4-
OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



E. City Not Responsible. City is not responsible or liable for District’s
failure to comply with any and all of its requirements under this section and Agreement.

F. Waiver of Subrogation. District and District's insurance company agree to
waive all rights of subrogation against City, its elected or appointed officials, officers, agents,
employees, and volunteers for losses paid under District's workers' compensation insurance policy
which arise from the work performed by District for City.

15. Confidential Information. All data, documents, discussions or other information
developed or received by or for District in performance of this Agreement are confidential and
not to be disclosed to any person except as authorized by City, or as required by law.

16. Assiegnment; Subcontractors; Employees

A. Assignment. District shall not assign, delegate, transfer, or convey its
duties, responsibilities, or interests in this Agreement or any right, title, obligation, or interest in
or to the same or any part thereof without City's prior written consent. Any assignment without
such approval shall be void and, at City's option, shall immediately cause this Agreement to
terminate.

B. Subcontractors; Employees. District shall be responsible for employing or
engaging all persons necessary to perform the services of District hereunder. No subcontractor of
District shall be recognized by City as such; rather, all subcontractors are deemed to be employees
of the District, and District agrees to be responsible for their performance. District shall give
its personal attention to the fulfillment of the provisions of this Agreement by all of its employees
and subcontractors, if any, and shall keep the work under its control. If any employee or
subcontractor of District fails or refuses to carry out the provisions of this Agreement or
appears to be incompetent or to act in a disorderly or improper manner, it shall be discharged
immediately from the work under this Agreement on demand of the Project Manager.

17.  Insurance. The Parties acknowledge that they are each self-insured and hereby
acknowledge the sufficiency of such insurance for the purposes of this Agreement.

18. Termination of Agreement; Default.

A. This Agreement and all obligations hereunder may be terminated at any
time, with or without cause, by City upon five (5) days’ written notice to District.

B. If District fails to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement
within the time and in the manner herein provided or otherwise violate any of the terms of this
Agreement, in addition to all other remedies provided by law, City may terminate this Agreement
immediately upon written notice. In such event, District shall be entitled to receive as full
payment for all services satisfactorily rendered and expenses incurred hereunder, an amount
which bears the same ratio to the total fees specified in the Agreement as the services
satisfactorily rendered hereunder by District bear to the total services otherwise required to be
performed for such total fee; provided, however, that the City shall deduct from such amount the

5-
OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



amount of damages, if any, sustained by City by virtue of the breach of the Agreement by
District.

C. In the event this Agreement is terminated by City without cause, District
shall be entitled to any compensation owing to it hereunder up to the time of such termination, it
being understood that any payments are full compensation for services rendered prior to the time
of payment.

D. Upon termination of this Agreement with or without cause, District shall
turn over to the Project Manager immediately any and all copies of studies, sketches, drawings,
computations, and other data, whether or not completed, prepared by District or its
subcontractors, if any, or given to District or its subcontractors, if any, in connection with this
Agreement. Such materials shall become the permanent property of the City. District, however,
shall not be liable for the City's use of incomplete materials nor for the City's use of complete
documents if used for other than the project contemplated by this Agreement.

19. Suspension. City shall have the authority to suspend this Agreement and the
services contemplated herein, wholly or in part, for such period as it deems necessary due to
unfavorable conditions or to the failure on the part of the District to perform any provision of this
Agreement. District will be paid for satisfactory Services performed through the date of temporary
suspension.

20.  Merger; Amendment. This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive
statement of the agreement between the City and District and shall supersede all prior
negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. This document may be
amended only by written instrument, signed by both the City and District. All provisions of this
Agreement are expressly made conditions.

21.  Interpretation. This Agreement shall be interpreted as though it was a product of a
joint drafting effort and no provisions shall be interpreted against a party on the ground that said
party was solely or primarily responsible for drafting the language to be interpreted.

22. Litigation Costs. If either party becomes involved in litigation arising out of this
Agreement or the performance thereof, the court in such litigation shall award reasonable costs
and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, to the prevailing party. In awarding attorneys’ fees, the
court will not be bound by any court fee schedule, but shall, if it is in the interest of justice to do
so, award the full amount of costs, expenses, and attorneys’ fees paid or incurred in good faith.

23.  Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

24.  Written Notification. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or
communication that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing
and either served personally or sent by prepaid, first class mail. Any such notice, demand, etc.
shall be addressed to the other party at the address set forth below. Either party may change its
address by notifying the other party of the change of address. Notice shall be deemed
communicated within seventy-two (72) hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in
this section.

-6-
OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



If to City: Steve Camilleri
Public Works
Supervisor
City of San Mateo
1949 Pacific Blvd.
San Mateo, CA 94403

If to District: Brian Weber
District Manager
San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District
1351 Rollins Road
Burlingame, CA 94010

25. District’s Books and Records.

A. District shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices,
vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents evidencing or relating to charges for
services, or expenditures and disbursements charged to the City and all documents and records
which demonstrate performance under this Agreement for a minimum period of three (3) years,
or for any longer period required by law, from the date of termination or completion of this
Agreement.

B. Any records or documents required to be maintained pursuant to this
Agreement shall be made available for inspection or audit, at any time during regular business
hours, upon written request by the City Attorney, City Auditor, City Manager, or a designated
representative of any of these officers. Copies of such documents shall be provided to the City
for inspection when it is practical to do so. Otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed
upon, the records shall be available at District’s address indicated for receipt of notices in this
Agreement.

C. The City may, by written request by any of the above-named officers,
require that custody of the records be given to the City and that the records and documents be
maintained in the City Manager’s office.

26. Agreement Binding. The terms, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement
shall apply to, and shall bind, the heirs, successors, executors, administrators, assigns, and
subcontractors of both parties.

27.  Equal Employment Opportunity. District is an equal opportunity employer and
agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal regulations governing equal employment
opportunity. District will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of race, age, sex, creed, color, sexual orientation, marital status or national origin.
District will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are treated during such employment
without regard to race, age, sex, creed, color, sexual orientation, marital status, or national origin.
Such action shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading,
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; lay-offs or termination; rates of pay
or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. District

7
OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



further agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

28. City Not Obligated to Third Parties. City shall not be obligated or liable for
payment hereunder to any party other than District.

29. Waiver. The waiver by either party of any breach or violation of any term, covenant,
or condition of this Agreement or of any provisions of any ordinance or law shall not be deemed to
be a waiver of such term, covenant, condition, ordinance or law or of any subsequent breach or
violation of the same or of any other term, covenant, condition, ordinance or law or of any subsequent
breach or violation of the same or of any other term, condition, ordinance, or law. The subsequent
acceptance by either party of any fee or other money which may become due hereunder shall not be
deemed to be a waiver of any preceding breach or violation by the other party of any term, covenant,
or condition of this Agreement or of any applicable law or ordinance.

30. Severability. If any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall for any
reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, then such provision or
provisions shall be deemed severable from the remaining provisions hereof, and such invalidity,
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had not been contained
herein.

31.  Exhibits. The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement and incorporated
herein by this reference:

A. Exhibit A: Scope of Work
B. Exhibit B: Schedule of Performance and Compensation

32.  Execution. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of
which shall constitute one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties
when at least one copy hereof shall have been signed by both parties hereto. In approving this
Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart.

33.  Applicable Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted
according to California law. In the event that suit shall be brought by either party hereunder, the
parties agree that trial of such action shall be held exclusively in a state court in the County of
San Mateo, California.

34.  Authority. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of one of the
parties represents that he or she is duly authorized to sign and deliver the Agreement on behalf of
such party and that this Agreement is binding on such party in accordance with its terms.

OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and District have executed this Agreement as of the

date first above written.

CITY OF SAN MATEO

By:

Public Works Supervisor

Date:

ATTEST:

By:

OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO
AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

By:
General Manager

Date:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

General Counsel

ATTEST:

By:

Board Secretary



EXHIBIT A

Scope of Work

Purpose: To provide rodent control treatment along specific natural drainage creeks,
waterfronts, recreational areas and various City facilities for an initial period of one year, with
an option for City to extend agreement by written amendment for up to three

(1) additional one year terms.

WORK SCHEDULE AND TYPE OF TREATMENT

Protective Bait Stations

Installing, a total of 314 protective bait stations in June of each year, each containing 3-4 - .52 oz
bait block, along natural drainage creeks and areas in the locations indicated on maps available
for inspection at the Office of the San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District and
the City of San Mateo.

Conducting three follow-up inspections per year of the above installed bait stations at thirty (30)
day intervals beginning with the month of June to replace as necessary, consumed or
deteriorated bait and to correct any deficiencies concerning the bait stations. For the purpose or
this contract, a deficiency includes, but is not limited, to vandalism, missing or damaged bait
stations.

Removing all installed bait stations thirty (30) days after final inspection and obliterating
colored dots marking location of bait stations.

MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

All tools, labor, materials and equipment necessary to carry out this program are to be provided
by the Contractor.

Rodenticide

Bromethalin a nerve toxin will be the primary rodenticide used. Bromadialone and
Diphacinone, an anticoagulant, shall serve as the secondary rodenticide. Fastrac
(Bromethalin) should use 3-4 blocks per station and each block weighs .52 0z and contains
.01% of Bromethalin per unit weight

1208604v1 80078/0012

OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



Manufacturer: Manufacturer: Bell Labs Inc., 3699 Kinsman Blvd, Madison, WI. 53704
Telephone number 1-608-241-0202

Local Distributors: Veseris 408-216-2333
Target Specialty Products: 800-352-3870

Bait Station

The protective bait station shall be tamper-proof and in compliance with all state, federal, and
local laws. The tamper-proof station should be a Protecta bait station or similar design,
requiring a key for entry.

Caution Statement
A cautionary statement shall be painted on the side of each protective bait container that shall
read:

Caution: Bromodiolone/Diphacinone/Bromethalin Rat
Bait Do Not Disturb

San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control
650-344-8592

Statement lettering shall be in red enamel paint and of letters not less than one-half (1/2) inch
line height.

Anchors
Duckbill anchors shall be secured to the bait station and driven a minimum of 12 inches into
compact earth.

Stake
Metal stakes not less than twelve (12) inches in length, will be required, one (1) per bait station,
to aid in securing the bait blocks and containers.

METHOD OF BAIT INSTALLATION

Bait containers, tie-wires, stakes, and .52 oz. bait blocks

-11-
OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



All protective bait stations shall be installed at approximately equally spaced intervals. The
location for installation of the bait stations may be seen on map available for inspection at the
Office of the San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District.

The exact installation site shall be selected by, and shall be entirely dependent upon, the San
Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District technician’s observation of the conditions
existing at each site. All bait stations must be located a safe distance above the water line and
every effort must be made to take advantage of natural vegetation, etc., so as to provide the
greatest possible concealment from children. Under no circumstances shall bait stations be
installed or placed in areas where children are known to play. In areas where it is obvious that
children do not play, the bait stations must still be adequately concealed, so as not to be
conspicuous to the ordinary child. Each bait station location will have a specific site number,
latitude/longitude location that allows it to be viewed in the district’s mapping database
Mapvision. Each inspection or bait replacement can be entered in real time and will create a
time stamped record in the district’s database. The San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector
Control District technician (SMCMVCD) will not deface private improvements and will be
required to exercise his/her judgment in a prudent manner regarding the location of bait stations,
etc.

BAIT INSPECTION, REPLACEMENT, REINSTALLATION AND
REMOVAL

Inspections shall be made at thirty (30) day intervals as specified in WORK AND SCHEDULE
AND TYPE OF TREATMENT to determine the condition of the bait and to service and maintain
the bait as required. If City desires additional work to be done by SMCMVCD), the City will
request such additional work by written change order.
The following symbols shall be used to record the above items on the maps provided. This
information is essential and must be recorded by the individual who performs the work at the time
the work is performed.

Work will be recorded in the SMCMVCD data management system(Mapvision) that will provide for
proper reporting and analysis. Icons will be produced for the control program as follows:

Blue - - 1-50% bait consumed-bait not replaced
Green - - 51-100% bait consumed-bait replaced

-12-
OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



Bait replacement shall be made to all bait blocks which are found to be consumed or
deteriorated at the equivalent of one-half (1/2) or more of their original weight. Bait which is
judged to be no longer palatable to rodents shall also be replaced. City will be charged a flat
rate, regardless of bait replaced or man hours spent. Old bait taken from bait containers shall be
removed from the treatment area by San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control and
disposed of in a manner consistent with instructions on the label and in accordance with state
and local regulations.

Thirty (30) days after final inspection, SMCMVCD) will remove all bait stations and obliterate
all colored dots marking the location of the bait stations.

RECORD OF WORK TO BE SUBMITTED

SMCMVCD) must maintain, while carrying out this program, a record (made in the field at time
of work performed) of the items listed below:

Phase of work and dates performed.

Number of bait stations installed.

Number of bait stations inspected and bait blocks replaced
Number of bait stations removed (October).

CORRECTION OF DEFICIENCIES

The Field Supervisor will inspect work for consistency and accuracy and information will be
stored in a database management system to look for patterns and areas of concern. All
deficiencies must be corrected within five (5) days.

LICENSES

All San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District employees are certified California
Department of Public Heath Vector Control Technicians). This guarantees extensive training in
the field of vector control and all technicians are required to keep their license -up to date
through the satisfaction of continuing education requirements.

13-
OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



NOTICES AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW

San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control shall give all notices required by law and
comply with all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations pertaining to the conduct of the work.
San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control shall be liable for all violations of the law in
connection with work furnished by SMCMVCD.

PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE

SMCMVCD) shall at all times conduct his/her work so as to insure the least possible
obstruction to traffic and inconvenience to the general public and the residents in the vicinity
of the work, and to ensure the protection of persons and property.

AMOUNT AND METHOD OF PAYMENT

In full consideration of the work to be performed by SMCMVCD), and subject to the provisions
of this agreement, the City of San Mateo shall pay SMCMVCD in the manner described below.
Invoices shall itemize the work performed according to attached SCHEDULE OF PROPOSED
ITEMS.

Invoices shall be sent to:

City of San Mateo
1949 Pacific Blvd.
San Mateo, CA 94403
Attn: Steve Camilleri

The total payment for services of SMCMVCD under this Agreement shall not exceed the costs
as itemized in Agreement. City shall have the right to withhold payment if the City determines
that the quality of work performed is unacceptable to the City of San Mateo.

The amount of work done under this contract shall not exceed $24,617.60 per year

-14-

OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001



EXHIBIT B

Schedule of Performance and Annual Fee Schedule

Unit Total Price
Month Quantity Unit Price
ltem 1 |Installation of protective bait stations June 314 3-4 .52 oz. block | $19 60 $6,154.40
- 1stInspection July 314 bait station $19.60 $6,154.40
- 2nd Inspection August 314 bait station $19.60 $6,154.40
- 3rd Inspection September 314 bait station $19.60 $6,154.40
i No additional
ltem 2 |Bait Replacement .52 o0z block charge
Iltem 3  |Reinstallation bait station no additional
charge
Removal of all installed bait no additional
stations ° c?harl I(e) a
ltem 4 October g
Total Annual Charges $24,617.60

OAK #4849-3152-9011 v1
06619-0001




San Mateo County MVCD

Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 5C.2

SUBJECT: Approve contract with Ag-Air Inc. for aerial mosquito
control application services not to exceed $45,000

BACKGROUND AND STATUS

The district has contracted with a Helicopter service company for over 25 years to apply bio-
rational mosquito larvicide to control Culex erythrothorax mosquitoes in sensitive areas.
Juvenile mosquito control applications begin in late June or early July and occur monthly, with
the last treatment in October. The four sites include Mills Field in Millbrae and San Bruno,
Searsville Lake and Annex Lake on Stanford property in Portola Valley, and Sharp Park in
Pacifica. The property owners reimburse the district for the cost of the Helicopter, the mosquito
control products, and the district staff hours spent to help with treatments.

Alpine Air, the previous company used by the district to conduct these treatments, permanently
shut down its Aerial Application Division. The new company filling the void left by Alpine Air
is Ag-Air Inc. Many other Bay Area Mosquito and Vector Control Districts that used Alpine in
the past are now using Alpine Air. The agreement with Ag Air Inc. will not exceed $45,000
annually and has been reviewed by Counsel. Competitive bidding is not required because this is
a specialized service and a service not provided by other contractors in the area. The agreement
has been reviewed by District Counsel as to form.

The Finance Committee unanimously approved the contract with Ag Air Inc. for mosquito
control application services.

RECOMMENDATION

Recommend the Board approve the Agreement for Contractor Services with Ag Air Inc. to
conduct helicopter mosquito control applications not to exceed $45,000 annually.

REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED:

1. Agreement For Contractor Services with Ag Air Inc.
2. Certificate of Insurance from Ag Air Inc.



AGREEMENT FOR

CONTRACTOR SERVICES

This Agreement for Contractor Services (“Agreement”) is entered into and effective this day
10™ of May 2023 by and between the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District,
a California Special District herein after referred to as “District” and Ag-Air Incorporated, a
Contractor, herein after referred to as “Contractor”

RECITALS
A. District has determined that it is necessary and appropriate to engage a Contractor
to provide and carry out Aerial Mosquito Control Applications from a helicopter in San Mateo
County as more fully described herein; and

B. Contractor has represented itself as being fully qualified and available to perform
the professional contract services necessary to complete the work in a timely manner.

C. District desires to contract with Contractor and Contractor is willing to perform
the contract services described herein, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and sufficient mutual consideration set forth herein, the
Parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - SCOPE OF SERVICES

1.1.  Scope of Services. Contractor agrees to provide the services set forth in Exhibit A,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. In addition to the
Basic Services, District may elect to have Contractor perform additional services that are
beyond the current scope of the project, but within the expertise of Contractor. Such
Additional Services shall be mutually agreed to in advance and specified in a writing,
which shall also specify the basis for the Contractor’s fee for such additional services.
Basic Services and Additional Services are referenced collectively as “Services.” The
provisions in the body of this Agreement will take precedence over any conflicting or
inconsistent terms in Exhibit A.

1.2. Compliance with Law. Contractor will perform the Services in compliance with all
applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders.

1.3.  Professional Competence. District has relied upon the professional training and ability
of Contractor to perform the services described in Exhibit A “Scope of Services” as a
material inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall therefore provide
properly skilled. professional, licensed, and technical personnel to perform all services
under this Agreement. All work performed by Contractor under this Agreement shall be
in accordance with applicable legal requirements and shall meet the standard of quality
ordinarily to be expected of competent professionals in Contractor's field of expertise.
Application, handling and storage of pesticides by Contractor shall be in strict conformity
with all applicable Federal. State and Local laws, regulations, and requirements.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 1



1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

Contractor shall at all times be properly licensed and certified by appropriate agencies for
the application, handling and storage of pesticides under this Agreement and for the
operation of aircraft used in such application.

Labor and Materials. Contractor shall furnish, at its own expense, all labor, materials,

equipment, tools, transportation and services necessary for the successful completion of

the Services, provided however that District shall provide the pesticides. Contractor shall
give its attention and supervision to the fulfillment of the provisions of this Agreement by
its employees and subcontractors, if applicable, and shall be responsible for the timely
performance of the Services required by this Agreement.

Review of Service. Contractor shall furnish District with reasonable opportunities from

time to time to ascertain whether the Services of Contractor are being performed in

accordance with this Agreement. All work done and materials furnished shall be subject
to final review and approval by District; Contractor is not providing final approval or
review, which is solely District’s function and role. District review and approval of such
work and Services shall not, however, relieve Contractor of any of its obligations under
this Agreement.

Contract Administration.

A. District. The District Manager or his/her designee shall represent the District in
all matters relating to the administration of this Agreement. The District Manager
or his/her designee shall have the authority to act on the District’s behalf to
review and approve all products submitted by Contractor and may execute all
necessary documents to authorize Contractor to perform Additional Services as
provided for herein.

B. Contractor. Contractor shall assign Brent Alger overall responsibility for the
progress and execution of this Agreement for Contractor. Contractor shall not
change or replace Contractor’s Representative without the prior written consent of
District to such change.

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and will have control

over its work and the means and methods by which the Services are performed.

Contractor is not an employee of District, which has no employees, and neither

Contractor nor its employees or subcontractors is entitled to any health, retirement, or

other such employee benefits from District. Contractor warrants that it will not represent

itself as an employee of District. Except and only to the extent authorized under this

Agreement, if at all, Contractor is not authorized to act as an agent of District and shall

not have any power to bind or commit the District to any decision or action.

Confidentiality. Contractor agrees to maintain in confidence and not disclose to any

person, public entity, or private entity, without District's prior written consent, any trade

secret or confidential information, knowledge or data relating to the products, process, or
operation of District, including any data, information, technology, or material developed
or obtained by Contractor during the performance of the Services.

Ownership of Work Product. Except as may otherwise be specified in Exhibit A, Scope

of Services, all property rights, including copyrights, in any reports, studies, plans,

specifications, drawings, diagrams, or other material prepared on behalf of District
pursuant to this Agreement, whether complete or incomplete, (collectively, “Work

Product”) will be and remain the sole property of District. All Work Product not already

provided to District during the Term, as defined below, will be delivered to District

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 2



1.10.

1.11.

immediately upon completion of the Services, expiration of the Term, or termination of
this Agreement, whichever occurs first. District and its agents, employees,
representatives, and assigns, may use the Work Product in whole or in part, or in
modified form, for any purposes District may deem appropriate without payment of any
additional compensation to Contractor.

Documentation. Contractor will keep and maintain full and complete documentation and
accounting records, employee time sheets, and correspondence pertaining to the
performance of the Services, including Contractor costs to perform the Services, and
Contractor will make such documents available for review and/or audit by District or
District's authorized representatives during normal business hours for at least four years
following completion of the Services, expiration of the Term, or termination of this
Agreement, whichever occurs first.

Testimony. Contractor agrees to testify at District’s request if litigation is brought
against District in connection with the Services. Unless the action is brought by
Contractor or is based upon Contractor’s alleged negligence or malfeasance, District will
compensate Contractor for its preparation and testimony at an hourly rate not to exceed
Contractor’s hourly rates for this Agreement, as set forth in Section 2.1, Compensation,
and the exhibits incorporated therein.

ARTICLE 2 - COMPENSATION

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

Compensation. District will compensate Contractor for all Services fully performed in
compliance with this Agreement to District’s satisfaction, as further specified in Exhibit
B, Compensation, and accompanying Exhibit B-1, Rate Schedule, both of which are
attached hereto and incorporated herein. Compensation for the Services will not exceed
thirty-nine thousand dollars ($45,000) without prior written authorization by District’s
General Manager. Contractor will promptly notify District in writing when the total
amount it has invoiced meets or exceeds 90 percent of the Cost Ceiling. Payment by
District under this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of unsatisfactory work, even
if such defects were known to District at the time of payment.

No Overtime or Premium Pay. Contractor shall receive no premium or enhanced pay
for work normally understood as overtime, i.e., hours that exceed forty (40) hours per
work week, or work performed during non-standard business hours, such as in the
evenings or on weekends. Contractor shall not receive a premium or enhanced pay for
work performed on a recognized holiday. Contractor shall not receive paid time off for
days not worked, whether it is in the form of sick leave, administrative leave, or for any
other form of absence.

Invoices and Payment. Contractor must submit monthly invoices in a form satisfactory
to District on or before the tenth day of each month for Services provided during the
preceding calendar month. Each invoice must include, at a minimum, for each day that
Services were provided: (a) the date that Services were provided; (b) a description of the
Services provided; (c) the name, title/position, and hourly rate for each individual or
subcontractor providing the Services; (d) the total time spent by each such individual or
subcontractor providing the Services; (¢) and itemized reimbursements as authorized in
Section 3 of Exhibit B. The invoice must specify the starting and ending dates of the
billing month covered by the invoice, the total amount due under the invoice, and the
total amount billed to date, including all past invoices. Contractor must submit time and
cost records as specified in Exhibit B, or as requested by District, to substantiate its costs

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 3



2.4.

to perform the Services, including receipts for reimbursements and subcontractor
invoices. District reserves the right to withhold amounts in dispute based on Services not
performed to District’s satisfaction, damage caused by unexcused delay in Contractor
performance of Services, or other material default of this Agreement. Within 30 days
after receipt of an invoice submitted in compliance with this Section 2.3, District will pay
Contractor the amount due under the invoice, excepting only any disputed amounts, if
any. Contractor will not stop or delay performance of the Services under this Agreement
because of payment disputes with District, but must comply with the dispute resolution
procedures set forth in Section 7.13, Dispute Resolution.

Final Payment. District will not release the final payment to Contractor until the
Services have been fully completed to District’s satisfaction, and District has received all
Work Product and deliverables required pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor will
diligently continue and complete performance of the Services if the Services are not
complete before Contractor total invoices exceed the amount of the Cost Ceiling.

ARTICLE 3 - TIME OF PERFORMANCE

3.1.

3.2.

Time. Time is of the essence in the performance of all requirements of this Agreement.
Unless terminated early pursuant to Section 3.2, Termination, this Agreement will remain
in full force and effect until the Services are completed, which must be no later than

June 1st , 2024 (the “Term”). Contractor will diligently prosecute
performance of the Services to ensure completion within the Term and in accordance
with any milestones or schedule for completion as may be set forth or incorporated in

Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Services are not fully

completed to District’s satisfaction prior to expiration of the Term, District, acting in its

sole discretion, may unilaterally elect to extend the Term to allow for completion of

Services, by giving written notice to Contractor prior to expiration of the Term.

Termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, District may elect to terminate this

Agreement before expiration of the Term as follows:

A. Termination for Convenience. District may terminate this Agreement for
convenience by giving seven business days written notice to Contractor. The
notice of termination may include the effective date of the termination and
instructions for submitting all Work Product to District. If District elects to
terminate the Agreement without cause, it will pay Contractor for Services that
District determines have been satisfactorily provided up to the effective date of
the termination, but District may withhold final payment in part or in whole
pending delivery to District of all required Work Product.

B. Termination for Cause. If Contractor breaches this Agreement by failing to timely
or satisfactorily perform any of its obligations or otherwise violates the terms of
this Agreement, District may notify Contractor in writing of the breach,
specifying the time within which the breach must be remedied. If Contractor fails
to remedy or fails to take reasonable steps to remedy the breach as specified in the
written notice, District may terminate this Agreement immediately, by delivering
written notice of termination to Contractor. The notice of termination may include
the effective date of termination and instructions for submitting all Work Product
to District. Contractor will be entitled to payment for all Services that District
determines have been satisfactorily completed up to the effective date of

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 4



3.3.

3.4.

termination, except that District may deduct from final payment the total amount
of any costs District incurred because of Contractor’s breach.

C. District may also terminate this Agreement with cause, effective immediately
upon written notice of such termination to Contractor, based upon the occurrence
of any of the following events: (1) cessation of Contractor to be licensed, as
required; (2) failure of Contractor to substantially comply with any applicable
federal, state or local law or regulation; (3) filing by or against Contractor of any
petition under any law for the relief of debtors; and (4) filing of a criminal
complaint against Contractor for any crime, other than minor traffic offenses. If
this Agreement is terminated by District for cause and it is later determined that
the termination was wrongful, such termination automatically shall be converted
to and treated as a termination for convenience as provided for herein.

Other Remedies. Nothing in this Article 3 will be deemed to limit District’s rights or

remedies under this Agreement.

Survival. The following provisions will survive expiration of the Term or termination of

this Agreement: Section 1.8, Confidentiality; Section 1.9, Ownership of Work Product;

Section 1.10, Documentation; Section 1.11, Testimony; Section 5.1, Indemnification;

Article 6, Notices; and all provisions in Article 7, Miscellaneous, that relate to dispute

resolution, litigation, and construction or interpretation of the Agreement.

ARTICLE 4 - DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

41.

4.2.

District’s Representative. District’s General Manager is District’s primary
representative for this Agreement, with responsibility and authority for administering and
interpreting the terms and conditions of this Agreement, for matters relating to
Contractor’s performance under this Agreement, and for coordination between the
Parties.

Contractor Representative. Contractor designates and District hereby approves Brent
Alger as Contractor’s primary representative for this Agreement, with immediate
responsibility for the performance of the Services and for all matters relating to
performance under this Agreement, including coordination between the Parties. Any
change in Contractor’s designated representative is subject to prior written approval by
District’s General Manager.

ARTICLE 5 - INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

5.1.

Indemnification. The terms and conditions set forth in subsection 5.1.A, Non-Design

Professional, below, are applicable to this Agreement only if Contractor is not a “design

professional” as that term is defined in and used in Civil Code section 2782.8. The terms

and conditions set forth in subsection 5.1.B, Design Professional, below, are applicable to
this Agreement only if Contractor is a “design professional” as that term is defined in and

used in Civil Code section 2782.8.

A. Non-Design Professional. Contractor will, to the full extent permitted by law,
indemnify, hold harmless, and defend with counsel acceptable to District at
Contractor’s sole expense, District, its Member Agencies, and their respective
governing bodies, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers
(collectively, “Indemnified Parties™), from and against all liability, demands,
loss, damage, claims, settlements, expenses, and costs (including, without
limitation, attorney fees, expert witness fees, investigation costs, all legal costs
and fees) (collectively, “Liability”’) of every nature arising out of or in connection

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 5



5.2.

5.3.

with Contractor’s performance of the Services and acts or omissions with respect
to this Agreement, excepting only such Liability caused by the sole active
negligence or sole willful misconduct of any one or more of the Indemnified
Parties. This indemnification obligation is not limited by any limitation on the
amount or type of damages payable under Workers’ Compensation, disability, or
other employee benefit acts or by insurance requirements or coverage limits, and
will survive expiration or early termination of this Agreement. This paragraph
does not apply to this Agreement if the Services are design professional services
provided by a licensed architect, landscape architect, engineer, or land surveyor.
Design Professional. To the full extent permitted by law, and subject to the
limitations set forth in Civil Code section 2782.8, Contractor will indemnify, hold
harmless, and defend with counsel acceptable to District at Contractor’s sole
expense, District, its Member Agencies, and their respective governing bodies,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers (collectively, “Indemnified
Parties”), from and against all liability, demands, loss, damage, claims,
settlements, expenses, and costs (including, without limitation, attorney fees,
expert witness fees, investigation costs, all legal costs and fees) (collectively,
“Liability”) of every nature which arises out of, or pertains or relates to the
negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Contractor in performance of
the Services, except such Liability caused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willful misconduct of any one or more of the Indemnified Parties.
This indemnification obligation is not limited by any limitation on the amount or
type of damages payable under Workers’ Compensation, disability, or other
employee benefit acts or by insurance requirements or coverage limits, and will
survive expiration or early termination of this Agreement. This paragraph applies
to this Agreement only if the Services are design professional services provided
by a licensed architect, landscape architect, engineer, or land surveyor.

District Liability. The District has no liability or responsibility for any accident,
loss, or damage to any work performed under this Agreement whether prior to its
completion or acceptance or otherwise. No member of the District and no other
officer, elected official, employee or agent of the District shall be personally
liable to Contractor or otherwise in the event of any default or breach of the
District, or for any amount which may become due to Contractor or any successor
in interest, for any obligations directly or indirectly incurred under the terms of
this Agreement.

Health and Safety. Contractor may perform part of the Services at sites which contain
unknown working conditions and contaminated materials. Contractor is solely
responsible for the health and safety of Contractor’s employees, agents, and
subcontractors during the performance of the Services.

Insurance.

A.

Contractor must procure, provide, and maintain at all times during the Term of
this Agreement, and for such additional periods as described herein, the insurance
coverage as specified in the attached Exhibit C, Insurance which is attached
hereto and incorporated by this reference as though set forth in full.

Additional Coverage. Any insurance coverage carried by Contractor that is
broader than or in excess of the specified minimum insurance requirements or

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 6



limits specified above, including but not limited to any umbrella or excess
insurance, will be available to the Additional Insureds for any covered liability.
The requirements for coverage and limits will be the greater of: (1) the minimum
coverage and limits specified in this Agreement; or (2) the broader coverage and
maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or proceeds available to the
named insured.

C. Material Breach. If Contractor fails to maintain insurance coverage or provided
insurance documentation which is required pursuant to this Agreement, it will be
deemed a material breach of this Agreement. District, at its sole option, may
terminate this Agreement and obtain damages from Contractor resulting from said
breach. Alternatively, District may elect to purchase the required insurance
coverage, and without further notice to Contractor, may deduct from payment due
to Contractor any premium costs incurred by District for such insurance. These
remedies are in addition to any other remedies available to District for breach of
this Agreement.

D. Subcontractors. Before a subcontractor may perform Services pursuant to this
Agreement, Contractor must submit evidence, including certificates of insurance
and endorsements, that (1) the subcontractor is covered under Contractor’s
required policies, as specified above; or (2) the subcontractor has insurance
coverage that meets or exceeds the minimum insurance requirements set forth in
this Section 5.3.

ARTICLE 6 - NOTICES
All notices or other communications hereunder must be in writing and personally delivered,
transmitted electronically (including facsimile), or sent via a reputable overnight courier. Notice
will be deemed received and effective as follows: (1) if personally delivered, on the date of
delivery to the address of the person specified to receive such notice; (2) if transmitted
electronically or by facsimile, on the date upon which the submission is received provided it is
before 5:00 P.M. Pacific Time on a business day, otherwise the next business day; or (3) if
delivered by an overnight courier for next business day delivery, on the date of delivery to the
address of the person specified to receive the notice. Notice of change of address will be given
by written notice in the manner described in this Article 6. Notice delivered as specified will be
deemed effective, even if the intended recipient rejects or refuses to accept the notice, or delivery
cannot be made because the recipient failed to give notice of a changed address as required
herein. Unless changed in the manner specified herein, the addresses for notices given pursuant
to this Agreement is as follows:
If to DISTRICT: DISTRICT

Attn: District Manager

Brian Weber

1351 Rollins Road
Burlingame, CA 94010
Phone: 650-344-8592
Facsimile:

Email: bweber@smcmvcd.org

If to CONTRACTOR: Ag Air Inc.
Attn: Brent Alger

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 7



5420 Dodds Road
Oakdale, CA, 95361
Phone: 209.988.2567
Facsimile: 209.848.2834
Email Brent Alger <agairspraying@gmail.com>

ARTICLE 7 - MISCELLANEOQOUS

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the final, complete, and exclusive
statement of the terms and conditions between the Parties regarding the Services
specified herein, and supersedes all prior oral or written understandings or agreements
between the Parties.

Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified by a written amendment duly
authorized and executed by both Parties, except for the limited exception set forth in
Section 3.1, Time, for District’s discretionary, unilateral extension of the Term.
Assignment and Successors. The Services are deemed unique and Contractor will not
assign, transfer, subcontract or otherwise substitute its rights or obligations under this
Agreement, in whole or in part hereunder without the prior written consent of District.
This Agreement is binding on the heirs, successors, and permitted assigns of the Parties.
Interest of Contractor. Contractor represents and warrants to District that it presently
has no interests, and covenants that it shall not acquire any interests, direct or indirect,
financial or otherwise, which would conflict with the performance of the services to be
provided by Contractor under this Agreement. Contractor further covenants that, in the
performance of this Agreement, no subcontractor or employee having such an interest
shall be employed by Contractor. Contractor certifies that no one who has or will have
any financial interest under this Agreement is: (a) an officer or employee of District, or
(b). an officer or employee of the applicant and any of its contractors.

Undue Influence. Contractor declares and warrants that no undue influence or pressure
is used against or in concert with any officer or employee of District in connection with
the award, terms or implementation of this Agreement, including any method of coercion,
confidential financial arrangement or financial inducement. No officer or employee of
District will receive compensation, directly or indirectly, from Contractor, or from any
officer, employee or agent of Contractor, in connection with the award of this Agreement
or any work to be conducted as a result of this Agreement. Violation of this Section shall
be a material breach of this Agreement entitling District to any and all remedies at law or
in equity.

Statement of Economic Interest. If District determines Contractor comes within the
definition of Contractor under the Political Reform Act (Gov’t Code § 87100), Contractor
shall complete and file and shall require any other person doing work under this
Agreement to complete and file a “Statement of Economic Interest” with the District
disclosing Contractor and/or other such person’s financial interests.

Nonexclusive Agreement. Contractor understands that this is not an exclusive
Agreement and that District shall have the right to negotiate with and enter into contracts
with others providing the same or similar services as those provided by Contractor as
District desires.

Severability. All parts of this Agreement shall in all cases be construed according to their
plain meaning and shall not be construed in favor or against either of the parties. If any

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 8



7.9.

7.10.

7.11.

7.12.

7.13.

7.14.

provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions will continue in full force and effect, provided that the remainder of
this Agreement can be reasonably interpreted to give effect to the intentions of the
Parties.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts and, when fully signed,
such counterparts will have the same effect as if signed in one document.

Choice of Law and Venue. This Agreement and all matters relating to it will be
governed by the laws of the State of California without reference to its choice of laws
principles, and venue will be in a court of competent jurisdiction in San Mateo County,
California, and no other place.

Waiver. No failure on the part of either Party to exercise any right or remedy hereunder
will operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that Party may have hereunder. No
waiver of a breach, failure of any condition, or any right or remedy provided under this
Agreement will be binding upon the waiving Party unless such waiver is in a writing
signed by an authorized representative of the waiving Party. No waiver of a breach,
failure of any condition, or any right or remedy, will constitute a continuing waiver or a
waiver of any other breach, failure of any condition, or right or remedy, whether past or
future, similar or dissimilar, unless and only to the extent specified in the signed, written
waiver.

Force Majeure. If either Party is delayed, hindered in, or prevented from performing any
duty required under this Agreement due to an unforeseen event outside that Party’s
control, including strikes, lockouts, power outage, riots, insurrection, war, fire, major
earthquake, or other catastrophic event (“Force Majeure Event”), performance of that
duty will be excused for the period during which and to the extent the Force Majeure
Event delays, hinders, or prevents performance of that duty. Delay or failure to perform
resulting from a lack of funds or from circumstances within a Party’s control do not
constitute Force Majeure Events.

Dispute Resolution. The Parties will attempt to resolve any disputes arising from or
pertaining to this Agreement by informal negotiations, conducted in face-to-face
meetings of the principal representatives of the Parties if possible. If the Parties are
unable to resolve a dispute in whole or in part through informal negotiations, the Parties
will seek to resolve the matters remaining in dispute through mediation with a qualified,
neutral mediator that is acceptable to each Party, and at a mutually agreed-upon date,
time, and location. Sufficiently in advance of the mediation to allow meaningful time for
review, the Parties will provide each other and the mediator any documents or
information that are reasonably necessary to resolve the matter to be mediated, subject to
limitations applicable to confidential and privileged documents and information. The
Parties will share the cost of the mediation equally, but each Party will bear its own costs
to prepare for and participate in the mediation, including its own legal costs.

Attorney’s Fees. If any action at law or in equity, including an action for declaratory
relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing
Party will be entitled to recover from the other party its costs and expenses incurred in
connection therewith, including without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and the
costs and expenses of litigation, which may be set by the court in the same action or in a
separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which that Party
may be entitled.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 9



7.15.

7.16.

7.17.

7.18.

and

Interpretation. In the event this Agreement is ever construed in any dispute between the
Parties, it and each of its provisions will be deemed to have been prepared jointly by the
Parties. The rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against
the drafting Party will not be employed in interpreting this Agreement.

Provisions Deemed Included. Every provision required by Laws to be included in this
Agreement will be deemed included, and the Agreement will be construed and enforced
as though such any such required provision was fully set forth herein.

Headings. The headings in this Agreement are included for convenience only and will
not affect the construction of any provision in this Agreement nor affect any of the rights
or obligations of the Parties.

Authority. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of a Party represents that
he or she is duly authorized to sign and deliver the Agreement on behalf of that Party and
that this Agreement is binding on such Party in accordance with its terms. The
Agreement must be executed on behalf of Contractor as specified below, and upon
request by District, Contractor must promptly provide written evidence to District’s
reasonable satisfaction, that the individual(s) executing this Agreement on behalf of
Contractor is/are fully authorized to bind Contractor to this Agreement.

A. Corporation. If Contractor is a corporation, pursuant to Corporations Code
section 313, the Agreement must be executed by two officers of the corporation as
follows:

(1) One signature by the chairperson, president, or any vice-president,

(2)  One signature by the secretary, any assistant secretary, chief

financial officer, or any assistant treasurer.

7.19.

B. Limited Liability Company. If Contractor is a limited liability company (“LLC”),
the Agreement must be executed by the chief executive of the LLC, or Contractor
must attach a resolution of the LLC evidencing the authority of the signatory to
bind the LLC.

C. Partnership. 1f Contractor is a partnership, the Agreement must be signed by the
managing partner or a partner authorized to execute agreements of this type on
behalf of the partnership.

D. Sole Proprietorship. If Contractor is a sole proprietorship, the Agreement must be
signed by the owner.

Compliance with Laws.

A. Legal Responsibilities. Contractor shall keep itself informed of local, state and
federal laws and regulations which in any manner affect those employed by it or
in any way affect the performance of its service pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with all such laws and
regulations. Any corrections or updates to Contractor’s services that may become
necessary as a result of a change in said laws and regulations shall be made at
Contractor’s expense.

B. Licenses. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall have in
full force and effect, all licenses and permits required by law for the performance
of services described in this Agreement. Permits and/or licenses shall be obtained
and maintained by Contractor without additional compensation throughout the
term of this Agreement.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 10



C. Labor Conditions. District is a public entity in the state of California, and
therefore, District and Contractor are subject to the provisions of the Government
Code and the Labor Code of the state of California, including, but not limited to,
the provisions which (a) require every employee to be insured against liability for
workers compensation or to take self-insurance and (b) require every employer to
adopt a written injury and illness prevention program. All provisions of law
applicable to public contracts and/or this Agreement are incorporated herein by
this reference and are made a part of this Agreement to the same extent as if they
were fully stated in the Agreement and shall be complied with by Contractor.
Contractor certifies that it will comply with such provisions before commencing
performance of the Agreement and at all times in the performance of the
Agreement.

D. Labor Requirements. Contractor shall abide by all federal and California laws
and regulations regarding wages, including, without limitation, the Fair Labor
Standards Act and the California Labor Code, which, in part, require Contractor
to pay the general prevailing wage rates.

E. Discrimination. No person shall be excluded from employment in the
performance of this Agreement on the grounds of race, creed, color, sex, age,
marital status, sexual orientation, or place of national origin. Contractor shall
comply with all local, state, and federal laws relating to equal employment
opportunity rights.

F. District Not Responsible. The District and its officers and employees shall not be
liable at law or in equity occasioned by failure of the Contractor to comply with
this Section.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as follows.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 11



SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

By: Date
Brian Weber, District Manager

Approved As To Form

By:

Alexandra M. Barnhill, General Counsel

AG Air Inc.

By: Date

Brent Alger, Owner

By: Date

Name and Title

*See Section 7.14, Authority, regarding Contractor’s signature requirements.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Page 12



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

District will work with Contractor to schedule application services on an as needed basis.
Upon identifying an agreed upon time and place for application, District will inform Contractor
in writing that they may proceed and Contractor may thereafter commence work on the time and
at the place agreed upon.

Contractor will safely and legally perform mosquito larvicide applications via manned
aircraft at locations and within aquatic habitats designated by the District. The Contractor will
calibrate the aircraft pesticide application equipment to apply the designated mosquito larvicide
materials in application rates designated by the District and in compliance with product labeling.

Contractor will perform application preparation, including mapping of sites and habitat to
be treated, as required for each application.

The Contractor will provide the District with post application statistics, application
coverage, and mapping as required.

The contractor will report applications to the San Mateo County Agricultural
Departments as appropriate.

II. TIMELINE & OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

1. The District will work with the Contractor to schedule application services on
an as-needed basis.

2. The District will provide mosquito larvicide material at the loading site prior
to the commencement of the application.

3. The District will provide application material, "blank" material if applicable,
to calibrate the aircraft pesticide application system prior to the first
application using a specific material.

4. The District will provide accurate site descriptions and locations prior to
applications to allow for efficient planning.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Exhibit A — Scope of Services



EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION

District will compensate Contractor for Services satisfactorily performed in compliance with the
Agreement based on Contractor’s approved hourly rates, as set forth in Summary of
Compensation, as specified below, up to the Cost Ceiling (as defined in Section 2.1 of the
Agreement). Contractor is responsible for prudent management of its time and resources to
provide the Services on a cost-effective basis. Compensation will be solely based on the
following costs, all of which count toward the Cost Ceiling:

Summary of Compensation

1. Thehourly rate foraJet Ranger helicopter and pilot combined is 1,750 per hour from
start-up to shut down. This rate will include "Ferry Time,” the time needed to fly to and
from the Contractor's shop and to and from theapplication site. Ifaerial application work
isperformed formore than one district/customeronagiven day, Ferrytime will besplit
between each district/customer.

a. There will be a two-hour minimum rate per job. The two-hour minimum
rate can be split between districts/customers.

b. All flight time will be rounded to the nearest tenth of an hour (6
minutes). Example: 4 hours 8 minutes will be rounded down and billed
at 4.1 hours.

c. A single $200 setup fee will be billed to the District per day. If liquid or
granular application equipment needs to be changed on the helicopter at
the district's request, an additional $200 setup fee will apply.

d. There will be a $600 ground crew charge per vehicle per day. This
includes up to two ground employees per vehicle. This charge will be
split between District and other districts/customers that Contractor will
be flying for on the same day.

e. A $2.75 per mile charge for each mile driven for the application job will
apply and be billed to the District. This charge will be split between the
different district customers Contractor will be flying for on the same day.

f.  Overnight stays will be billed at $150 per ground employee, $500 per
pilot in addition to reimbursement of actual hotel room expenses. Hotel
accommodation and costs will be approved by both Contractor and
District in writing prior to incurring the expense.

2. Contractor will require notice and kml or other compatible imagery files of areas to
be treated. Notice and imagery will be provided to Contractor as much in advance
as possible.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Exhibit B — Compensation



3. Contractor will provide detailed billing and application logs to District within two
weeksof job completion. Thiswillinclude the following:

a. Detailed andclearbillingmatching the descriptions fortheentire job.
b. Google Earth printout ofapplication areas on thebill.
c. Googleearth kmloranothercompatible file of the application.

4. Contractor will not be held responsible for not completing a job when flying conditions
are not consistent with best practices in the industry including but not limited to, FAA
flight restrictions, weather, mechanical issues, helicopter or pilot availability.

5. The total maximum amount authorized under this Agreement, including expenses
and reimbursable costs, shall not exceed $45,000. Unless amended by written
agreement between Contractor and District.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Exhibit B — Compensation



EXHIBIT B-1

Rate Schedule
Pursuant to Section 1 of Exhibit B, Compensation, Contractor will be compensated based on the
following hourly rates, which may not be modified, except by a written amendment as specified
in Section 7.2, Amendment, of the Agreement. These rates will be split between Contractor’s
customers, where applicable.

Title/Position/Service: Hourly Rate:

Helicopter and Pilot __$1.750

_Ground Crew Charge __$600 per vehicle per day
Per Day Set Up Fee $200 per day
Equipment change $200 per change, if needed
Mileage driven $2.75 per mile

Litigation Prep and Appearance Fee $300 an hour

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Exhibit B1 — Rate Schedule



EXHIBIT C

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Prior to the beginning of and throughout the duration of the Work, Contractor will maintain
insurance in conformance with the requirements set forth below. Contractor will use existing
coverage to comply with these requirements. If that existing coverage does not meet the
requirements set forth here, Contractor agrees to amend, supplement or endorse the existing
coverage to do so. Contractor acknowledges that the insurance coverage and policy limits set
forth in this section constitute the minimum amount of coverage required. Any insurance
proceeds available to District in excess of the limits and coverage required in this agreement and
which is applicable to a given loss, will be available to District.

Contractor shall provide the following types and amounts of insurance:

Commercial General Liability Insurance using Insurance Services Office “Commercial General
Liability” policy form CG 00 01 or the exact equivalent. Defense costs must be paid in addition
to limits. There shall be no cross liability exclusion for claims or suits by one insured against
another. Limits are subject to review but in no event less than $2,000,000 per occurrence.
Business Auto Coverage on ISO Business Auto Coverage form CA 00 01 including symbol 1
(Any Auto) or the exact equivalent. Limits are subject to review, but in no event to be less than
$1,000,000 per accident. If Contractor owns no vehicles, this requirement may be satisfied by a
non-owned auto endorsement to the general liability policy described above. If Contractor or
Contractor’s employees will use personal autos in any way on this project, Contractor shall
provide evidence of personal auto liability coverage for each such person.

Workers Compensation on a state-approved policy form providing statutory benefits as required
by law with employer’s liability limits no less than $1,000,000 per accident or disease.

Excess or Umbrella Liability Insurance (Over Primary) if used to meet limit requirements, shall
provide coverage at least as broad as specified for the underlying coverages. Any such coverage
provided under an umbrella liability policy shall include a drop down provision providing
primary coverage above a maximum $25,000 self-insured retention for liability not covered by
primary but covered by the umbrella. Coverage shall be provided on a “pay on behalf” basis,
with defense costs payable in addition to policy limits. Policy shall contain a provision
obligating insurer at the time insured’s liability is determined, not requiring actual payment by
the insured first. There shall be no cross liability exclusion precluding coverage for claims or
suits by one insured against another. Coverage shall be applicable to District for injury to
employees of Contractor, subcontractors or others involved in the Work. The scope of coverage
provided is subject to approval of District following receipt of proof of insurance as required
herein. Limits are subject to review but in no event less than $1,000,000 per occurrence.
Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Insurance as appropriate shall be written on a
policy form coverage specifically designed to protect against acts, errors or omissions of the
contractor and “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must specifically
include work performed under this agreement. The policy limit shall be no less than $1,000,000
per claim and in the aggregate. The policy must “pay on behalf of”’ the insured and must include
a provision establishing the insurer’s duty to defend. The policy retroactive date shall be on or
before the effective date of this agreement.

Insurance procured pursuant to these requirements shall be written by insurers that are admitted
carriers in the state of California and with an A.M. Bests rating of A- or better and a minimum
financial size VII.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Exhibit B — Compensation



General conditions pertaining to provision of insurance coverage by Contractor. Contractor and
District agree to the following with respect to insurance provided by Contractor:

1.

10.

Contractor agrees to have its insurer endorse the third party general liability coverage required
herein to include as additional insureds District, its officials, employees and agents, using
standard ISO endorsement No. CG 2010 with an edition prior to 1992. Contractor also agrees to
require all contractors and subcontractors to do likewise.

No liability insurance coverage provided to comply with this Agreement shall prohibit
Contractor, or Contractor’s employees or agents, from waiving the right of subrogation prior to
a loss. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation rights against District regardless of the
applicability of any insurance proceeds, and to require all contractors and subcontractors to do
likewise.

All insurance coverage and limits provided by Contractor and available or applicable to this
agreement are intended to apply to the full extent of the policies. Nothing contained in this
Agreement or any other agreement relating to the District or its operations limits the application
of such insurance coverage.

None of the coverages required herein will be in compliance with these requirements if they
include any limiting endorsement of any kind that has not been first submitted to District and
approved of in writing.

No liability policy shall contain any provision or definition that would serve to eliminate so-called
“third party action over” claims, including any exclusion for bodily injury to an employee of the
insured or of any contractor or subcontractor.

All coverage types and limits required are subject to approval, modification and additional
requirements by the District, as the need arises. Contractor shall not make any reductions in
scope of coverage (e.g., elimination of contractual liability or reduction of discovery period) that
may affect District’s protection without District’s prior written consent.

Proof of compliance with these insurance requirements, consisting of certificates of insurance
evidencing all of the coverages required and an additional insured endorsement to Contractor’s
general liability policy, shall be delivered to District at or prior to the execution of this
Agreement. In the event such proof of any insurance is not delivered as required, or in the
event such insurance is canceled at any time and no replacement coverage is provided, District
has the right, but not the duty, to obtain any insurance it deems necessary to protect its
interests under this or any other agreement and to pay the premium. Any premium so paid by
District shall be charged to and promptly paid by Contractor or deducted from sums due
Contractor, at District option.

Certificate(s) are to reflect that the insurer will provide 30 (thirty) days notice to District of any
cancellation of coverage. Contractor agrees to require its insurer to modify such certificates to
delete any exculpatory wording stating that failure of the insurer to mail written notice of
cancellation imposes no obligation, or that any party will “endeavor” (as opposed to being
required) to comply with the requirements of the certificate.

It is acknowledged by the parties of this agreement that all insurance coverage required to be
provided by Contractor or any subcontractor, is intended to apply first and on a primary, non-
contributing basis in relation to any other insurance or self insurance available to District.
Contractor agrees to ensure that subcontractors, and any other party involved with the project
who is brought onto or involved in the project by Contractor, provide the same minimum
insurance coverage required of Contractor. Contractor agrees to monitor and review all such
coverage and assumes all responsibility for ensuring that such coverage is provided in
conformity with the requirements of this section. Contractor agrees that upon request, all

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Exhibit B — Compensation



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

agreements with subcontractors and others engaged in the project will be submitted to District
for review.

Contractor agrees not to self-insure or to use any self-insured retentions or deductibles on any
portion of the insurance required herein and further agrees that it will not allow any contractor,
subcontractor, Architect, Engineer or other entity or person in any way involved in the
performance of work on the project contemplated by this agreement to self-insure its
obligations to District. If Contractor’s existing coverage includes a deductible or self-insured
retention, the deductible or self-insured retention must be declared to the District. At that time
the District shall review options with the Contractor, which may include reduction or elimination
of the deductible or self-insured retention, substitution of other coverage, or other solutions.
The District reserves the right at any time during the term of the contract to change the
amounts and types of insurance required by giving the Contractor ninety (90) days advance
written notice of such change. If such change results in substantial additional cost to the
Contractor, the District will negotiate additional compensation proportional to the increased
benefit to District.

For purposes of applying insurance coverage only, this Agreement will be deemed to have been
executed immediately upon any party hereto taking any steps that can be deemed to be in
furtherance of or towards performance of this Agreement.

Contractor acknowledges and agrees that any actual or alleged failure on the part of District to
inform Contractor of non-compliance with any insurance requirement in no way imposes any
additional obligations on District nor does it waive any rights hereunder in this or any other
regard.

Contractor will renew the required coverage annually as long as District or its employees or
agents face an exposure from operations of any type pursuant to this Agreement. This
obligation applies whether or not the Agreement is canceled or terminated for any reason.
Termination of this obligation is not effective until District executes a written statement to that
effect.

Contractor shall provide proof that policies of insurance required herein expiring during the
term of this Agreement have been renewed or replaced with other policies providing at least the
same coverage. Proof that such coverage has been ordered shall be submitted prior to
expiration. A coverage binder or letter from Contractor’s insurance agent to this effect is
acceptable. A certificate of insurance and/or additional insured endorsement as required in
these specifications applicable to the renewing or new coverage must be provided to District
within five days of the expiration of the coverages.

The provisions of any workers’ compensation or similar act will not limit the obligations of
Contractor under this Agreement. Contractor expressly agrees not to use any statutory
immunity defenses under such laws with respect to District, its employees, officials and agents.
Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained in this section are not intended
as limitations on coverage, limits or other requirements nor as a waiver of any coverage
normally provided by any given policy. Specific reference to a given coverage feature is for
purposes of clarification only as it pertains to a given issue and is not intended by any party or
insured to be limiting or all-inclusive.

These insurance requirements are intended to be separate and distinct from any other provision
in this agreement and are intended by the parties here to be interpreted as such.

The requirements in this Section supersede all other sections and provisions of this Agreement
to the extent that any other section or provision conflicts with or impairs the provisions of this
Section.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Exhibit B — Compensation



21.

22.

Contractor agrees to be responsible for ensuring that no contract used by any party involved in
any way with the project reserves the right to charge District or Contractor for the cost of
additional insurance coverage required by this agreement. Any such provisions are to be
deleted with reference to District. It is not the intent of District to reimburse any third party for
the cost of complying with these requirements. There shall be no recourse against District for
payment of premiums or other amounts with respect thereto.

Contractor agrees to provide immediate notice to District of any claim or loss against Contractor
arising out of the work performed under this agreement. District assumes no obligation or
liability by such notice, but has the right (but not the duty) to monitor the handling of any such
claim or claims if they are likely to involve District.

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES
Exhibit B — Compensation



/ﬁ AGAIRIN-01 JMARTINE
AgCO/RD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE P

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER License # 0E02096 CONTACT
DiBuduo & DeFendss Insurance Brokers, LLC O, e (209) 578-0183 | R noy(209) 578-1841
Modesto, CA 95358-6406 ADBRESS:
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insurer A : United Financial Casualty Co. 11770
INSURED INSURER B : State Compensation Insurance Fund 35076
Ag Air Inc. INSURER C :
5420 Dodds Rd INSURER D :
Oakdale, CA 95361-9278
INSURER E :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDLISUBR POLICY NUMBER oY B R | et EXE LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCGE s
cLAMS-MADE | | occur PREISES (Ea oocurrence) | $
L MED EXP (Any one person) $
] PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
POLICY PRO: Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $
OTHER: $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY &%“g?gfé%ﬁtf‘me"'z LIMIT $ 1,000,000
| | ANYAUTO 002027990 1/10/2023 | 7/10/2023 | BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
L gl\j\"r’\é)ESDONLY ES‘II—%EULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
| B ouy || MoMRNED rommmpaME |
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE s
DED ‘ ‘ RETENTION $ $
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION PER ‘ OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N 905112223 4/1/2023 4/1/2024 X STATLTE = 1,000,000
A PECERTORPATIEREIECUTE [y ] st
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,000
gégsc'gfs%rgﬁ lg]g(gPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District
1351 Rollins Road
Burlingame, CA 94010

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



San Mateo County MVCD

Board of Trustees Meeting
May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 6

SUBJECT: Approve the Preliminary Assessment Diagram and
Engineers Report and State the Intention to Continue to
Levy the North and West County Mosquito and Disease
Control Assessment District

SUMMARY

In 2003, the District proposed to increase its service area by annexing the then unserved portions of
northern and western San Mateo County. Accordingly, the District executed a Proposition 218-
compliant mailed balloting in the winter of 2003. A tabulation of the returned ballots, weighted by
their proposed assessment, showed 65% support. Hence, the assessment district was formed, and the
annexation was completed. Each year, an Engineer’s Report is prepared to establish the budget for
the services that the proposed assessments would fund, determine the benefits received by property
within the Annexation Area from the services by the District, and apportion the assessment to lots
and parcels within the Annexation Area based on the relative benefit for each lot or property.

PROPOSED RATES AND ZONE OVERVIEW

The assessment is subject to an annual adjustment tied to the Consumer Price Index for the San
Francisco Bay Area as of December of each succeeding year (the CPI), with a maximum yearly
adjustment of up to 3% plus any other CPI adjustments for prior years that have not been levied.
This year the Finance Committee is asked to consider a 5% increase in the Assessment. 3% would
come from the annual allotment, and 2% from the “banked” or unused amount from prior years.

In 2017, the District analyzed service levels throughout the District boundaries. In particular, the
District evaluated service levels regarding its core services, including surveillance, larviciding, and
service requests. It confirmed that service levels and benefits are equivalent across all parcels
(except as noted below and described as Zone B). Regarding service requests, the District will
respond to any property located within the District, regardless of how remote, and provide mosquito
control services appropriate to the situation. The evaluation found that in Zones A and B (in this
case, “Zones” as they are known for internal District purposes), the District responds to an average
of over 700 service calls per year. Also, as part of its integrated vector management (IVM) program,
the District conducts over 1,000 site treatments annually in Zones A and B. Larvicide applications
are generally applied throughout the District. The District’s evaluation showed that some
mountainous areas of the District located in rural mountainous San Mateo County do not receive the
same service level for District surveillance services. These areas are described as Zone B and are
indicated in the Assessment Diagram.



San Mateo County MVCD

Board of Trustees Meeting
May 10, 2023

The estimated fiscal year 2022-23 cost of providing the District’s services is $1,554,301. This cost
results in a proposed assessment rate of TWENTY DOLLARS AND SEVENTY-NINE CENTS
($20.79) per single-family equivalent benefit unit for Zone A and TWENTY DOLLARS AND
FORTY-ONE CENTS ($20.41) for Zone B, for the fiscal year 2023-24. This is a 5% increase over
the rate levied last year. The assessments are proposed to be levied annually.

The Assessment may be levied annually and adjusted up to the maximum annual CPI adjustment
without any additional assessment ballot proceeding. The change in the CPI in 2022 was 4.8818%;
therefore, the maximum authorized assessment rate per single-family equivalent benefit unit for the
Fiscal Year 2023-24 is $24.54 for Zone A and $24.09 for Zone B. The assessment will be levied at
$20.79 and $20.41 for the fiscal year 2022-23. If the proposed assessments are approved and
confirmed by the Board, the assessments may increase in future years by an amount equal to the
annual change in the Bay Area Consumer Price Index, not to exceed 3% (three percent) per year
without a further vote or balloting process. The District still has an additional 20.39% in reserve that
it may apply in future years.

This is the first step of a two-step process. First, the Board expresses its intent to levy the tax and
accept the preliminary Engineer’s report. Then in June, the Board will adopt the final Engineer’s
report and direct the County Assessor to assess the levy. This two-step process gives the public
notice of the Board’s intention and an opportunity to be heard if they have any input. Each year, the
board does this because there is no statutory obligation to hold a public hearing when the levy is
imposed consistent with the formula approved by the balloted voter. But there is also an expectation
among the public to have an opportunity to object, and the District desires to respect that
expectation.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve Resolution M-021-23 approving the Preliminary Assessment Diagram and Engineers
Report and State the Intention to Continue to Levy the North and West County Mosquito and
Disease Control Assessment District.

REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED

1. North and West County Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment District Preliminary
Engineers Report

2. SMCMVCD M-021-23 Resolution for Preliminary Engineers Report



SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR

CONTROL DISTRICT

NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MosQuiTo AND DISEASE CONTROL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT

PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT

May 2023

PURSUANT TO THE GOVERNMENT CODE, HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE AND ARTICLE
XD ofF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

ENGINEER OF WORK:

SCIConsultingGroup
4745 MANGELS BLVD.
FAIRFIELD, CALIFORNIA 94534
PHONE 707.430.4300

Fax 707.430.4319
WWW.SCI-CG.COM



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)



SAN MATEO COUNTY MosSQuITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

PAGEI

NAME OF GOVERNING BOARD

Atherton Mason Brutschy

Belmont Chuck Cotten

Brisbane Carolyn Parker

Burlingame Rena Gilligan

Colma Laura Walsh

Daly City Glenn R. Sylvester

East Palo Alto Donna Rutherford, Secretary
Foster City Paul Norton

Half Moon Bay Kati Martin, President
Hillsborough Dr. D Scott Smith

Menlo Park Catherine Carlton

Millbrae Muhammad Baluom
Pacifica Peter DeJarnatt

Portola Valley Raymond Williams
Redwood City Kathryn Lion, Vice President
San Bruno Robert Riechel

San Carlos Ron Collins

San Mateo Ed Degliantoni

San Mateo County - at Large
South San Francisco
Woodside

DISTRICT MANAGER
Brian Weber

ENGINEER OF WORK
SCI Consulting Group

A. Desiree LaBeaud, MD, MS
Michael Yoshida
Paul Fregulia

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQuUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2023-24

L —
ConsultingGroup



PAGE i

TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTION. ... etueeesessesssessessesssessssssesssssssssessesssssssssssssessssssessssssessessssssssssssssssssnsessessnsssensesses 1
OVERVIEW <.ttt ettt e et e et e et e et e e e e e e teeeteeeaeeseeeeaeeeaneeeeeneeeeeeeseneeannenneeanes 1
LEGAL ANALYSIS ¢ttt ettt ettt e et et et e et et e e e et e e e et et e eeeeneeeeeseeeetenteeaeeneeaeeeneeeneeneens 4
GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT AND SERVICES .....ceeeeserseessessesssessesssessessessssssesssessenns 6
A BOUT THE DISTRICT 1ttt ettt ettt ee e e et e et e e e et e e eeeeteeeeeeseeeseeeeeneenneeeneeeneeneeeens 6
INTRODUCTION TO SERVICES ...ttt eeeeeee et eeee et e e st eeeeaeeseeaeeseeeeeeseeaeeeneeseneeeeaeeseeaeneaneens 7
SUMMARY OF SERVICES ... etteeteee et eeeeee st et et eeee st aeeeeee st aeeesteseeeeeeateeeseseeseenseseeeeenrenees 7
INTRODUCTION TO SURVEILLANCE AND MONITORING ...ttt ettt ee e eeeeeeeneaeee e 9
LARVAL MOSQUITO SURVEILLANCE PROGRAM ..ottt ettt et ee e ae e eeee e 9
ADULT MOSQUITO SURVEILLANCE PROGRAM ... .eeiuet et eee et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseeaneeeens 10
WEST NILE VIRUS SURVEILLANCE PROGRAM ... .eeveieee et et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeseeeseeneeeas 10
INTRODUCTION TO TREATMENT AND CONTROL ...ttt et ee et eee et eeeeeeaeeeeeeseneeeaeeneeas 10
CITIZENS' REVIEW OF ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY OF TREATMENT AND CONTROL APPROACHES
.................................................................................................................................... 11
LARVAL MOSQUITO CONTROL PROGRAM ...ttt ettt e e eeee et eeeeeeaeen e 12
ADULT MOSQUITO CONTROL PROGRAM ...ttt ettt ettt eeeeeeeeeeseeeseeesnaeeeneaes 12
SERVICE REQUESTS ...ttt ettt et ee ettt eee et et eete et eeeete et e eee et eeeeeeeeaeeseesenenneaeeans 12
A SSESSMENT STATEMENT ..vvveseesseessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssssnsssnnss 14
ESTIMATE OF COST euueirireesseserssesesssessssssessssssssssssesssesssssssssessssssessssssssassnssssessssssessessnssnssses 17
METHOD OF ASSESSMENT ....uvivessesesssessesssessssssssasssesssesssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssessssssessssssssasssens 18
DISCUSSION OF TOTAL BENEFIT ..vveeteeetee e et et et e eee et e seeeeeeeeeeeateesteeseeesnreseeeneeesenenes 18
MosQuITo AND VECTOR CONTROL IS A SPECIAL BENEFIT TO PROPERTIES .....vevvveeveeeeeene. 20
BENEFIT FACTORS ...ttt ettt ettt et et e ettt e et e et et e st et e e te et et e eteeeeeeeeeeneeeeneeenns 21
BENEFIT FINDING. ...ttt e ettt ettt e e et e et et eeeee st e st e seeeaeeeeteesseeseeesereseneneeesneenns 24
GENERAL VS, SPECIAL BENEFIT ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e et et e eeesee e e aeeeeeeeeeeeans 24
CALCULATING GENERAL BENEFIT ..ttt ettt ettt e e e e seeeaeeeseee e e eeneeneeesnee e 26
METHOD OF ASSESSMENT .....eeeeeeeteeeteeeteeeteeseeeseeeeeseeseeeseeeseesesesasesaseesseeseeeseseseeeenseeseeeses 30
ZONES OF BENEFIT ...ttt ettt ettt e et et et et et e et e eee e et e eae et eeeeeeeeneeaeeeneeaeaeeens 31
ASSESSMENT APPORTIONMENT ...vvteeveeeeteeteeeeeeseeeseeseeesaeeeseeeseeesesesseseseeseessesseessesessseesnes 32
APPEALS AND INTERPRETATION ...t eeteett et et et eeee et eeeeeeeeeeeeeateseeaeeeaeeeeneseeeneeseeseeeneeseeeneas 35
DURATION OF ASSESSMENT .veveeeteeeteeeteeeteesereseeseseeseeeseeeseesesesssessseessesssessesessenseeseeses 36
ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM.....cecitisseerseessesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssssssssssnessness 37
ASSESSMENT ROLL .eevuveieeiiseiseesseesssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssnssssssssssssssssnessnnss 39

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE iii

LisT oF FIGURES
TABLE 1 COST SUMMARY FOR FY 2023-24 ...ttt 14
TABLE 2 = BUDGET ...ttt ettt ettt e e e et e et e et e et et eeteeeeeeseeesaeesaeeeeteeateeseeesanesnesnens 17
TABLE 3 RESIDENTIAL ASSESSMENT FACTORS ....vveeeeeeee et ettt ee e eee e ae e eeeeee e anens 33
TABLE 4 COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL BENEFIT ASSESSMENT FACTORS ....cvveeeeeeeeee e 34

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 1

INTRODUCTION

OVERVIEW

The mosquito control program in San Mateo County is one of the oldest in the United States.
In 1904, mosquitoes were breeding in diked reclaimed salt marshes along the San Francisco
Bay and were biting residents, which affected the use and enjoyment of the land. These
areas were uninhabitable without direct mosquito control efforts. Before 1904, various
attempts were made to mitigate these pests, but at the time, efficient and effective control
methods and approaches had not yet been developed. The funds collected by private
subscription were insufficient to support required control.

A physical control plan was developed which included ditching, repair of existing dikes and
tide gates, and filling of low areas. The funding for these physical control measures dwindled
over time and several levees had broken, making mosquitos unbearably abundant. For
example, the Peninsula Hotel, a famous resort in San Mateo, was closed in mid-season, and
property values dropped to such an extent that action became necessary. An early iteration
of the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District (“District”) formed in 1913 to
address these issues and has been providing mosquito (and vector) control for more than a
century, in the form of various governmental entities.

Initially, the District’s service area was not county-wide and served only about one third of
the geographic area of the County. In the early 2000s, West Nile Virus had spread and there
were several cases of West Nile Virus among County residents. Following a San Mateo
County Health Services Agency report, a 2002-2003 Grand Jury Report recommended that
to combat the threat of further cases of the disease, and to provide for sufficient monitoring,
surveillance, treatment and public information, that the District be permitted to expand its
programs throughout the entire county.

In 2003, the District proposed to increase its service area by annexing the then un-served
portions of northern and western San Mateo County. Previously, neither the District, nor
any other public agency, provided mosquito control and vector-borne disease protection and
prevention services in the northern and western areas of San Mateo County that were
outside of the District's then-current (pre-2003) jurisdictional boundaries. In other words, the
‘baseline” level of services in northern and western San Mateo County was essentially zero.

The Local Agency Formation Commission approved the District's application to annex the
remainder of the County. However, this annexation was conditioned on a benefit
assessment being levied in the newly annexed area that approximated the revenues in the
original boundaries. Accordingly, the District executed a Proposition 218-compliant mailed
balloting in the winter of 2003. A tabulation of the returned ballots weighted by their
proposed assessment showed 65% support. Hence, the assessment district was formed,
and the annexation completed. This report defines the benefit assessment district that
provides funding for the services in the North and West areas (“Annexation Area”) of San
Mateo County.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 2

As used within this Report, the following terms are defined:

“Vector” means any animal capable of transmitting the causative agent of
human disease or capable of producing human discomfort or injury,
including, but not limited to, mosquitoes, flies, mites, ticks, other arthropods,
and small mammals and other vertebrates. (Health and Safety Code
Section 2002(k).)

“Vector Control” shall mean any system of public improvements or services that is intended
to provide for the surveillance, prevention, abatement, and control of vectors as defined in
subdivision (k) of Section 2002 of the Health and Safety Code and a pest as defined in
Section 5006 of the Food and Agricultural Code. (Government Code Section 53750(m).)
The following is an outline of the primary components of the District’s Integrated Mosquito
and Vector Management Program that are provided within the current boundaries and the
Annexation Area:

= Surveillance

= Physical Control

= Vegetation Management

= Biological Control

= Chemical Control

= Other Non-Chemical Control/Trapping
= Public Education

The District operates under the Mosquito Abatement and Vector Control District Law of the
State of California law (‘Enabling Act”). Following are excerpts from the Enabling Act,
codified in the Health and Safety Code, Section 2000, et. seq which serve to summarize the
State Legislature’s findings and intent with regard to mosquito abatement and other vector
control services:

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 3

2001. (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:

(1) California's climate and topography support a wide diversity of
biological organisms.

(2) Most of these organisms are beneficial, but some are vectors of
human disease pathogens or directly cause other human diseases such as
hypersensitivity, envenomization, and secondary infections.

(3) Some of these diseases, such as mosquito borne viral encephalitis,
can be fatal, especially in children and older individuals.

(4) California’s connections to the wider national and international
economies increase the transport of vectors and pathogens.

(5) Invasions of the United States by vectors such as the Asian tiger
mosquito and by pathogens such as the West Nile virus underscore the
vulnerability of humans to uncontrolled vectors and pathogens.

(b) The Legislature further finds and declares:

(1) Individual protection against the vector borne diseases is only partially
effective.

(2) Adequate protection of human health against vector borne diseases
is best achieved by organized public programs.

(3) The protection of Californians and their communities against the
discomforts and economic effects of vector borne diseases is an essential
public service that is vital to public health, safety, and welfare.

(4) Since 1915, mosquito abatement and vector control districts have
protected Californians and their communities against the threats of vector
borne diseases.

(c) In enacting this chapter, it is the intent of the Legislature to create and
continue a broad statutory authority for a class of special districts with the
power to conduct effective programs for the surveillance, prevention,
abatement, and control of mosquitoes and other vectors.

(d) It is also the intent of the Legislature that mosquito abatement and
vector control districts cooperate with other public agencies to protect the
public health, safety, and welfare. Further, the Legislature encourages local
communities and local officials to adapt the powers and procedures
provided by this chapter to meet the diversity of their own local
circumstances and responsibilities.

This Engineer's Report ("Report") was prepared to determine the benefits received by
property within the Annexation Area from the services by the District, and apportion the
assessment to lots and parcels within the Annexation Area based on the relative benefit for
each lot or parcel.

This Engineer's Report incorporates and is intended to be consistent with the benefit
determinations, assessment apportion methodology and other provisions established by
Resolution No. M-006-04 passed on October 8, 2003 and the other documents and reports
that established the Assessment District.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE4

LEGAL ANALYSIS
PROPOSITION 218

This assessment was formed consistent with Proposition 218, The Right to Vote on Taxes
Act, which was approved by the voters of California on November 6, 1996, and is now Article
XIIC and XIIID of the California Constitution. Proposition 218 provides for benefit
assessments to be levied to fund the cost of providing services, improvements, as well as
maintenance and operation expenses to a public improvement which benefits the assessed
property.

Proposition 218 describes a number of substantive and procedural requirements that must
be satisfied to levy assessments.

When Proposition 218 was initially approved in 1996, it allowed for certain types of
assessments to be “grandfathered” in, and these were exempted from the property—owner
balloting requirement. Specifically, Article XIIID of the California Constitution provides:

Sec. 5. Effective Date...Beginning July 1, 1997, all existing, new, or increased assessments
shall comply with this article. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following assessments
existing on the effective date of this article shall be exempt from the procedures and approval
process set forth in Section 4:

(a) Any assessment imposed exclusively to finance the capital costs or
maintenance and operation expenses for sidewalks, streets, sewers, water,
flood control, drainage systems or vector control...

Vector control was specifically “grandfathered in,” underscoring the fact that the drafters of
Proposition 218 - and the voters who approved it - were satisfied that funding for vector
control is an appropriate use of benefit assessments, and therefore confers special benefit
to property.

Over the years, case law has helped define and shape the application of Proposition 218.
The following is a summary of relevant case law.

SILICON VALLEY TAXPAYERS ASSOCIATION, INC. vV SANTA CLARA COUNTY OPEN SPACE
AUTHORITY

In July of 2008, the California Supreme Court issued its ruling on the Silicon Valley
Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority (“SVTA vs.
SCCOSA"). This ruling is the most significant court case in further legally clarifying the
substantive assessment requirements of Proposition 218. Several of the most important
elements of the ruling included further emphasis that:

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGES

= Benefit assessments are for special benefits to property, not general benefits'

= The services and/or improvements funded by assessments must be clearly defined

= Special benefits are directly received by and provide a direct advantage to property
in the assessment district

This Engineer’s Report, and the process used to establish this assessment are consistent
with the SVTA vs. SCCOSA decision.

DAHMS v. DOWNTOWN POMONA PROPERTY

On June 8, 2009, the 4t Court of Appeal amended its original opinion upholding a benefit
assessment for property in the downtown area of the City of Pomona. On July 22, 2009, the
California Supreme Court denied review. On this date, Dahms became good law and
binding precedent for assessments. In Dahms the court upheld an assessment that was
100% special benefit on the rationale that the services and improvements funded by the
assessments were directly provided to property in the assessment district.

BONANDER V. TOWN OF TIBURON

In the December 31, 2009, the 1st District Court of Appeal overturned a benefit assessment
approved by property owners to pay for placing overhead utility lines underground in an area
of the Town of Tiburon. The Court invalidated the assessments on the grounds that the
assessments had been apportioned to assessed property based on in part on relative costs
within sub-areas of the assessment district instead of proportional special benefits.

BeuTtz v. COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE

On May 26, 2010 the 4th District Court of Appeals issued a decision on the Steven Beutz v.
County of Riverside (“Beutz”) appeal. This decision overturned an assessment for park
maintenance in Wildomar, California, primarily because the general benefits associated with
improvements and services was not explicitly calculated, quantified, and separated from the
special benefits.

GOLDEN HiLL NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION V. CITY OF SAN DIEGO

On September 22, 2011, the San Diego Court of Appeal issued a decision on the Golden
Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego appeal. This decision overturned an
assessment for street and landscaping maintenance in the Greater Golden Hill
neighborhood of San Diego, California. The court described two primary reasons for its
decision. First, like in Beutz, the court found the general benefits associated with services
were not explicitly calculated, quantified, and separated from the special benefits. Second,
the court found that the City had failed to record the basis for the assessment on its own
parcels.

1 Article XlIl D, § 2, subdivision (d) of the California Constitution states defines “district” as “an area
determined by an agency to contain all parcels which will receive a special benefit from the proposed
public improvement or property-related service.”

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 6

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT AND SERVICES

ABOUT THE DISTRICT

The San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District is an independent special
district (not part of the County or any city) that controls and monitors physical property for
disease-carrying insects such as mosquitoes and ticks, and other harmful pests such as
yellow jackets. In addition, the District regularly tests for diseases carried by insects and
small mammals and educates the public about how to protect themselves from diseases
transmitted by insects and small mammals. The District also distributes printed material and
brochures that describe what citizens can do to keep their homes and property free of rats,
yellow jackets, mosquitoes, and other pests.

The first mosquito abatement district in San Mateo County was formed in 1913. Prior to the
formation of this abatement district, high numbers of salt marsh mosquitoes were a
significant problem in the County, and many areas in the County were considered to be
nearly unlivable. The San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District was formed
in 1953 when the two original districts in the County merged. In 2003, the District annexed
the cities of Brisbane, Colma, Daly City, South San Francisco and most parcels in San
Bruno; and communities located west of 1-280 such as Ano Nuevo, Half Moon Bay, El
Granada, and Pacifica, and other unincorporated areas in San Mateo County generally
located west of Interstate 280 (the “North and West County Areas”). In order to provide
adequate service levels to the now annexed areas, the District looked to a benefit
assessment funding source. The assessment was authorized by an assessment ballot
proceeding conducted in 2003 and approved by a majority of the weighted ballots returned
by property owners. These assessments were first levied by the Board of Trustees of the
San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District by Resolution No. M-006-04 passed
on October 8, 2003. Today, the District is responsible for providing service to the entire
county. In 2008, the District changed its name to the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector
Control District to reflect the fact that it would begin providing some additional vector control
responsibilities formerly handled by San Mateo County Environmental Health Department.

The District is overseen by a Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees oversees District
funding, they establish district policies and procedures, and administer basic governance.
The District is currently primarily funded in two ways. First Ad Valorem taxes and a special
Mosquito Control Tax paid by properties within the original District boundaries. Second, the
previously mentioned benefit assessment funds services in the North and West County
areas.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE7

INTRODUCTION TO SERVICES

Following is a description of the Services and level of service, for the Annexation Areas. As
previously noted, there was previously no regular mosquito control services provided in the
Annexation Areas. These Services are over and above the previous zero-level baseline
level of service. The formula below describes the relationship between the final level of
service, the previous baseline level of service, and the enhanced level of service funded by
the assessment.

Final Level _ Baseline Level + Enhanced Level
of Service of Service of Service

In this case, prior to 2003, the baseline level of service was zero, and the final current level
of service is precisely the enhanced level of service funded by the assessment.

SUMMARY OF SERVICES

The services provided within the Annexation Area are provided at generally the same service
level as provided within the original District.

The assessment provides funding for projects and programs for the District's Integrated
Mosquito and Vector Control Management Program (IMVMP), which is comprised of
surveillance, physical control, vegetation management, biological control, chemical control
and other nonchemical control/trapping designed to prevent, abate, control mosquitos and
vectors. Such IMVMP projects and programs include, but are not limited to, source reduction,
larvicide and adulticide applications, disease monitoring, public education, reporting,
accountability, research and interagency cooperative activities (collectively “Services”). The
cost of these services also includes capital costs comprised of equipment, capital
improvements and facilities necessary and incidental to vector control programs and the
ongoing operations and maintenance expenses associated with the capital facilities.

The following is an illustrative list of some of the Services provided by the District:

= Response, typically within 24 hours, to requests for service related to mosquito
problems, as well as nesting yellow jackets, rats and other pestiferous or disease
carrying organisms.

= Control of mosquito larvae in catch basins, ditches, drain lines, vaults, wastewater
treatment plants, under buildings, residences, horse troughs, freshwater marshes,
salt marshes, creeks and other sources.

= Survey and data analysis of mosquito larvae populations to assess public health
risks and allocate control efforts.

= Monitor of mosquito populations using carbon dioxide baited traps, New Jersey light
traps and Gravid traps.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 8

= Use a new mosquito trapping program to capture Aedes aegypti. Those new traps
include Ovi-cup and Autocidal Gravid Ovitraps (AGO) traps.

= Test and monitor for diseases carried and transmitted by mosquitoes and other
arthropods, such as West Nile Virus, Encephalitis, Malaria, and Dog Heartworm.

= Deployment of sentinel chicken flocks (San Mateo, and East Palo Alto), virus
tested mosquito pools, and blood analytical studies for State and local agencies.

= Surveillance and identification of ticks in parks, trails, and other locations frequented
by the public.

= Testing for diseases carried and transmitted by ticks such as, Ehrlichiosis, Rocky
Mountain Spotted Fever, and Babesiosis.

= Management and control of stinging insects including ground nesting yellow jackets,
Africanized honey bees and wasps.

= Monitoring and/or control of other nuisance and potentially hazardous organisms
and vectors such as ticks, mites, and fleas. (Only vectors found outside of structures
are monitored and controlled.)

= Educating residents about the risks of diseases carried by insects and small
mammals and how to better protect themselves and their pets through a dedicated
Public Health Education and Outreach Officer.

= Testing for Hanta Virus, Arenavirus, Plague and other diseases carried by small
mammals.

= Monitoring for new and emerging vectors such as the Ae. Albopictus (Asian tiger
mosquito).

= Monitoring for a new significant vector, Aedes aeqypti, an invasive species. This
mosquito was detected in Menlo Park in 2013 but was eliminated from the District
in the Summer 2015. It was last detected August 13, 2015 but could be
reintroduced again at any time. It has now become established throughout the
San Joaquin Valley and as far north as Sacramento.

= Enhanced testing with RT-PCR for detection of pathogens such as West Nile Virus

= Surveillance for rats and other domestic rodents and use of, baiting programs for
control .

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 9

INTRODUCTION TO SURVEILLANCE AND MONITORING

Mosquitoes and other vectors most often breed in areas of standing water including catch
basins, vaults, wastewater treatment plants, water under buildings, horse troughs, pools,
ponds, artificial containers gutters, flood control devices, freshwater and saltwater marshes,
and wetlands, as well as organic waste and debris.

Prior to the annexation in 2003, the District had no obligation to respond to service requests
outside of its original boundaries, (except for 1 site in Daly City, which was served on a
mutually approved contract.) Today, the District performs surveillance of adult mosquitoes
in order to uncover new sites of larval development, as well as to determine allocation of
control efforts, level of public health risk, population densities, and species composition. The
District primarily uses New Jersey light traps, Gravid traps and Carbon Dioxide traps for this
surveillance. In 2001, the District identified two new mosquito species to San Mateo County:
the Asian Tiger Mosquito Aedes albopictus and Coquillettidia perturbans. In 2013 and 2014,
the District discovered a new mosquito species in Menlo Park: the Yellow Fever Mosquito,
Aedes aegypti. The Yellow Fever Mosquito is a very invasive mosquito posing a serious
health risk with the ability to transmit Dengue fever, Chikungunya and Zika virus. Aedes
aegypti and Aedes albopictus have currently been eliminated from the District but could be
reintroduced at any time.

Additionally, the District monitors vector-borne diseases in efforts to prevent human
cases. Four common mosquito-borne viruses occur in California: Western Equine
Encephalitis, St. Louis encephalitis, and California Encephalitis and West Nile virus. All
four are carried in birds and can be transferred to horses, small mammals, or humans
through the bite of an infected mosquito. Zika virus disease is also caused by a virus
transmitted primarily by Aedes aeqypti mosquitoes. The Zika virus has been linked to
unusually small heads and brain damage in newborns — called microcephaly — in
children born to infected mothers, as well as blindness, deafness, seizures, and other
congenital defects. There is no specific cure or vaccine for these diseases so the
District regularly monitors flocks of sentinel chickens for viruses. Malaria, Lyme
disease, occasionally, raccoon roundworms and small mammal-borne diseases such
as plague, Hantavirus and arenavirus are also monitored.

Surveillance is conducted in a manner based upon equal spread of resources throughout
the Annexation Area, focusing on areas of likely sources and proximity to human
populations. Treatment strategies are based upon the results of the surveillance programs,
and are specifically designed for individual areas.

LARVAL MOSQUITO SURVEILLANCE PROGRAM

The District will identify any insect submitted by residents in the Annexed Areas. Laboratory
staff will identify the insect and provide information on its biology, public health significance,
and control.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 10

The District maintains a computerized database of mosquito breeding sources in the
Annexation Area. These sites are checked regularly and treated as needed. New sources
are added to the database on a continuous basis as they are uncovered. The computerized
database software MapVision, allows the district to keep records of all service requests, the
nature of these calls, location of treatment sites, testing sites and trap locations, etc. The
district added a new position of IT Director in 2019 to assist with this and other computer
programs the District uses.

Residents can call the District when experiencing problems with mosquitoes and other
vectors. A vector control technician ordinarily will make a service call within one business
day. For complaints regarding mosquitoes, the technician will determine the source of
mosquito larvae and apply control.

ADULT MOSQUITO SURVEILLANCE PROGRAM

Laboratory and operational personnel monitor mosquito populations to assess the level of
public health risk and the effectiveness of control measures.

Carbon dioxide traps are deployed in the Annexed Areas every two to three weeks, or more
often if needed. Traps are collected the following day; their contents are identified and
counted. This information is maintained in the computerized database and used to track
long-term trends in mosquito density.

Laboratory personnel also monitor abnormal spring rainfall patterns. These are early
seasonal environmental precursors for adult mosquito populations.

WEST NILE VIRUS SURVEILLANCE PROGRAM

The District maintains chickens in San Mateo and East Palo Alto to detect the presence of
West Nile Virus and other Encephalitis viruses.

The District collects adult mosquitoes and historically submitted them to laboratories at the
University of California at Davis to test for West Nile and other Encephalitis viruses. Over
the years, the District has upgraded its laboratory equipment (including a RT-PCR) so that
most genetic testing can be done in house. Laboratory staff will collect mosquitoes from the
Annexation Area using specialized traps for this purpose. Mosquitoes must be collected
alive, anesthetized, identified, and tested the same day.

The District participates in a statewide program to collect and test dead wild birds for West
Nile Virus. Dead birds are picked up within 24 hours, packaged, and up until 2014, they
were sent to the State Health Department for testing. The District’s laboratory equipment
now allows for in-house testing for viruses in dead wild birds. The District picks up the dead
birds.

INTRODUCTION TO TREATMENT AND CONTROL

Strategically, the District addresses vectors through a comprehensive approach, which is
based upon effective prevention of vectors. The District controls mosquitoes and other

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 11

vectors through an integrated mosquito and vector management program (IMVMP). This
program focuses on controlling mosquitoes in their larval stage and preventing problems
before the mosquito larvae develop into flying adults which have the ability to transmit
diseases. Larval control has many benefits:

Less toxic: Often, mosquitofish and other environmentally safe approaches can be used.
When needed, the bacterial agents or pesticides used to control the larval stage are much
less toxic to the environment than those used in the past and are highly specific to
mosquitoes.

Less pesticides: The bacterial agents or pesticides are applied to a smaller area than would
be required for treatment of adult mosquitoes.

Less disease: Targeting immature mosquitoes kills them before adults emerge and are
capable of transmitting disease.

The end result is a program that protects public health, is more cost effective than other
methods, and has low impact on the environment. Currently, the District uses a number of
biorational materials to control mosquito larvae. These materials have been shown to have
minimal effects on non-target species and are regulated by the US EPA and the California
Department of Pesticide Regulation. They are approved for use in aquatic habitats.

CITIZENS’ REVIEW OF ENVIRONMENTAL SAFETY OF TREATMENT AND CONTROL APPROACHES
The District will hold annual community outreach (local community fairs and an Open House
in April) to review the environmental safety of its treatment and control approaches and all
District services. These outreach opportunities will be open to all property owners and
members of the public and the Open House will be announced with a public notice prior to
the programs. At the community outreach opportunities, the public will have the opportunity
to review and respond to:

= the treatment and control approach used by the District;

= the environmental issues with each control approach;

= the mosquito and disease issues in their community; and

= other services or programs either currently provided or desired.

Any recommendations or comments from the public will be addressed by the District and will
be provided to the Board of Trustees of the District for response or action as appropriate.

Furthermore, all products used by the District to treat or control mosquitoes and other vectors
must be reviewed and approved by the San Mateo County Agricultural Commissioner to
ensure they do not harm the environment.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 12

LARVAL MosQuiTO CONTROL PROGRAM

Catch basins and storm drain systems are the largest sources of northern house mosquitoes
in San Mateo County. These mosquitoes are an efficient vector of West Nile Virus and
therefore a serious public health concern. To control the larval stage of the northern house
mosquito in the Annexation Area, catch basins are inspected and those considered breeding
sites treated with biorational pesticides.

The underground chambers housing equipment for utilities, sewers and water systems also
hold water and are a significant breeding site for the northern house mosquitoes, Culex
pipiens. These chambers, if found breeding mosquitoes, are treated with biorational
pesticides.

The California Department of Public Health and San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector
Control District monitors pesticide resistance levels to determine the efficacy of available
larvicides for local mosquito populations.

Mosquito fish are also used to control mosquito larvae in standing pools of water and are
made available by the District for residents to use in their backyard ornamental ponds.

ADULT MosSQUITO CONTROL PROGRAM

In the event of virus detection or human cases of diseases transmitted by mosquitoes or
other vectors in major metropolitan areas, the District may institute widespread application
of adulticide materials to interrupt the transmission cycle. In addition, an expanded and
intensified larvicide program may be instituted to further reduce the adult populations of
vector species. The University of California at Davis and San Mateo County Mosquito and
Vector Control District monitors pesticide resistance levels to determine the efficacy of
available adulticides for local mosquito populations.

Any additional descriptions and plans for the services will be filed with the District Manager
of the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District and are incorporated herein
by reference.

SERVICE REQUESTS

Prior to the annexation in 2003, the District did not respond to service requests outside of its
original boundaries. When the assessment was approved, the District began responding to
service requests within the Annexation Area, at the same level of service as the existing
District jurisdiction. Any property owner, business or resident in the Annexation Area can
contact the District to request vector control related service or inspection and a District field
technician responds promptly to the particular property to evaluate the property and situation
and to perform appropriate surveillance and control services. The District responds to all
service requests in a timely manner, regardless of location, within San Mateo County.

Upon request, the District provides specific services directly to individual properties
regarding non-mosquito vectors (rats, yellow jackets, and other pests) including education

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 13

and eradication strategies. For yellow jackets specifically, the District only provides service
for ground nesting yellow jackets. At the time a nest is detected on the property the property
owner can notify the district and request a nest removal. Aerial nesting yellow jackets and
wasps are beneficial insects (wasps eat live insects); therefore, they are not considered a
nuisance and do not warrant control. Bees generally are considered nonaggressive towards
humans unless their nest is disturbed. Property owners can request service if rats and or
mice are detected on their property. The District will have a technician conduct an inspection
of the property including the exterior, and make recommendations for rodent exclusion and
control measures, as well as what can be done to make the yard less attractive to rats and
mice.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ———
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 14

ASSESSMENT STATEMENT

WHEREAS, on October 8, 2003 the Board of Trustees of the San Mateo County Mosquito
& Vector Control District, pursuant to the provisions of the California Health and Safety Code
Section 2291.2, adopted its Resolution No. M-006-04 for the proposed improvements and
changes in existing public improvements, more particularly therein described;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees held a Public Hearing on December 17, 2003 and
approved an Engineer’s Report presenting a diagram and an assessment of the estimated
benefit of the services and improvements upon all assessable parcels within the assessable
area;

WHEREAS, the Board contracted with the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and file
a report presenting an estimate of costs of Services, a diagram for an assessment district
and an assessment of the estimated costs of Services, and the special benefit conferred
thereby, upon all assessable parcels within the North and West County Mosquito and
Disease Control Assessment District;

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under Article
XIID of the California Constitution, the Government Code and the Health and Safety Code
and the order of the Board of said San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District,
hereby make the following determination of an assessment to cover the portion of the
estimated cost of said Services, and the costs and expenses incidental thereto to be paid by
the North and West County Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment District.

The amount to be paid for said services and improvements and the expenses incidental

thereto, to be paid by the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District for the
fiscal year 2023-24 is generally as follows:

TABLE1 COST SUMMARY FOR FY 2023-24

Vector & Disease Control Services $1,105,211
Capital Facilities $449,090
Incidentals $134,335
TOTAL DISTRICT BUDGET $1,688,636
Less:

District Contribution $124,400
Net Amount To Assessments $1,813,036

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 15

An Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part hereof showing the exterior
boundaries of said District. The distinctive number of each parcel or lot of land in the said
District is its Assessor Parcel Number appearing on the Assessment Roll.

| do hereby determine and apportion said net amount of the cost and expenses of said
Services, including the costs and expenses incidental thereto, upon the parcels and lots of
land within said North and West County Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment District,
in accordance with the special benefits to be received by each parcel or lot, from the
Services, and more particularly set forth in the Cost Estimate hereto attached and by
reference made a part hereof.

Said assessment determination is made upon the parcels or lots of land within said District
in proportion to the special benefits to be received by said parcels or lots of land, from said
Services.

The assessment is subject to an annual adjustment tied to the Consumer Price Index for the
San Francisco Bay Area as of December of each succeeding year (the CPI), with a
maximum annual adjustment of up to 3% plus any other CPI adjustments for prior years that
have not been levied. The assessment may be levied annually and may be adjusted by the
maximum annual adjustment without any additional assessment ballot proceeding. (In the
event that the Board opts not to adjust the assessment rate by the full annual change in the
CPI, any percentage change in excess of that levied can be cumulatively reserved and can
be added to the annual change in the CPI in subsequent years. The rate remained static at
$17.26 for 2011-12 through 2016-17, so the District accumulated 18.37% of “banked” CPI.

For 2017-18, the assessment rate was adjusted by 5.15% to $18.15 in Zone A and $17.81
in Zone B. For 2018-19 the assessment rate was adjusted by the annual CPI of 2.94%
resulting in a rate of $18.68 in Zone A and $18.33 in Zone B. There was no increase to the
assessment in fiscal years 2019-20 and 20-21. For fiscal year 2022-23 the District increased
the rate by 3.90% resulting in a rate of $19.80 in Zone A and $19.43 in Zone B.

For fiscal year 2023-24, the actual increase in effective CPI was 4.8818%, and the District
will increase the rate by 5.00% (using a small amount of previously banked CPI) resulting in
arate of $20.79 in Zone A and $20.41 in Zone B. The District still has an additional 20.39%
in reserve that it may apply in future years.

The District may finance the cost of acquiring or constructing capital facilities over time and
pledge a portion of assessment revenues received in any fiscal year towards the repayment
of the principal amount of such borrowed funds together with interest over the repayment
period.

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel
number as shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of San Mateo for the fiscal year
2023-24. For a more particular description of said property, reference is hereby made to the
deeds and maps on file and of record in the office of the County Recorder of the County of
San Mateo.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 16

| hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the
Assessment Roll, the proposed amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2023-24 for
each parcel or lot of land within the said North and West County Mosquito and Disease

Control Assessment District.

May 10, 2023

Engineer of Work

N TR

John W/ZIiss, License No. C052091

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT | —
ConsultingGroup

PRELIMINARY ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2023-24



PAGE 17

ESTIMATE OF COST
TABLE 2 - BUDGET
SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
Mosquito and Disease Control District
Estimate of Cost
Fiscal Year 2023-24
Total
Budget
Vector Control Services and Related Expenditures
Salaries and Wages $566,229
Employee Benefits $232,538
Supplies and Services $306,444
Capital Outlay
Including capital improvements and facilities and equipment ! $449,090
Total District Services and Operation $1,554,301
Less:
Contributions from District and Other Sources $124,400
Net Assessment Cost of Vector Control, Capital Facilities, Operation $1,678,701
Incidental Costs
County Collection and Levy Administration $134,335
Subtotal $134,335
Total Vector Control Services and Incidental Expenses
(Net Amount to be Assessed) $1,813,036
Budget Allocation to Property
Assessment Total
Total SFE Units per SFE Assessment 2
Zone A 84,930 $20.79 $1,765,695
Zone B 2,320 $20.41 $47,341
Total | $1,813,036
Notes:

1. Includes contribution to District Headquarters in Burlingame. (Primary financing obligations for
Burlingame headquarters are substantially satisfied.) This capital outlay is a partial component of the
overall district's capital outlay.

2. All assessments are rounded to lower even penny. Therefore, the budget amount may slightly differ
from the assessment rate.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQuUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2023-24

L —
ConsultingGroup



PAGE 18

METHOD OF ASSESSMENT

This section of the Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be derived from the
services provided to the District, and the methodology used to apportion the total
assessment to properties within the North and West County Mosquito and Disease Control
Assessment District.

The North and West County Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment District consists of
all assessor parcels within the boundaries of the Annexation Area as defined by the
approved boundary description for such District (boundary is coterminous with San Mateo
County).

The method used for apportioning the assessment is based upon the proportional special
benefits to be derived by the properties in the Annexation Area over and above general
benefits conferred on real property in the assessment area or to the public at large. Special
benefit is calculated for each parcel in the Annexation Area.

1. ldentification of total benefit to the properties derived from the Services
. Calculation of the proportion of these benefits that are special vs. general

3. Determination of the relative special benefit within different areas within the
Annexation Area

4. Determination of the relative special benefit per property type and property
characteristic

5. Calculation of the specific assessment for each individual parcel based upon
special vs. general benefit; location, property type and property characteristics,

DiscussION OF TOTAL BENEFIT

Overview

In summary, the assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to property.
This special benefit is that benefit received by property over and above any general benefits
from the Services. With reference to the engineering requirements for property related
assessments, under Proposition 218 an engineer must determine and prepare a report
evaluating the amount of special benefit received by property within the Annexation Area as
a result of the improvements or services provided by a local agency. That special benefit is
to be determined in relation to the total cost to that local entity of providing the service and/or
improvements.

Proposition 218 Stipulates Vector Control as a Traditional Purpose Use of Assessments

It should also be noted that Proposition 218 includes a requirement that existing
assessments in effect upon its effective date were required to be confirmed by either a
majority vote of registered voters in the assessment area, or by weighted majority property
owner approval using the new ballot proceeding requirements. However, certain
assessments were excluded from these voter approval requirements. Of note is that in
California Constitution Article XIIID Section 5(a) this special exemption was granted to

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 19

assessments for sidewalks, streets, sewers, water, flood control, drainage systems and
vector control. The Howard Jarvis Taxpayers Association explained this exemption in their
Statement of Drafter’s Intent:

“This is the "traditional purposes” exception. These existing assessments
do not need property owner approval to continue. However, future
assessments for these traditional purposes are covered.™

Therefore, the drafters of Proposition 218 acknowledged that vector control assessments
were a “traditional” and therefore acknowledged and accepted use.

California Legislature Stipulates Vector Control can be Funded by Assessments

The Legislature also made a specific determination after Proposition 218 was enacted that
vector control services constitute a proper subject for special assessment. Health and
Safety Code section 2082, which was signed into law in 2002, provides that a district may
levy special assessments consistent with the requirements of Article XIIID of the California
Constitution to finance vector control projects and programs. The intent of the Legislature to
allow and authorize benefit assessments for vector control services after Proposition 218 is
shown in the Assembly and Senate analysis the Mosquito Abatement and Vector Control
District Law where it states that the law:

Allows special benefit assessments to finance vector control projects and
programs, consistent with Proposition 218. 3

Therefore, the State Legislature agreed unanimously that vector control services are a
valuable and important public service that can be funded by benefit assessments. To be
funded by assessments, vector control services must confer special benefit to property.

Vector Control in the Assessment District Satisfies the “Over and Above” Requirement

Proposition 218, as described in Article XIIID of the California Constitution has confirmed
that properties subject to assessments must:

"... receive a special benefit over and above the benefits conferred on the
public at large..."

Mosquito Control in California began in a large part by control efforts in the cities of San
Mateo, Burlingame and Hillsborough. These areas became uninhabitable without direct
control efforts beyond those needed and provided throughout much of the state. Although
early control methods were basic and crude, including oiling, ditching, draining and

2 Howard Jarvis Taxpayers Association, “Statement of Drafter’s Intent”, January 1997.

3 Senate Bill 1588, Mosquito Abatement and Vector Control District Law, Legislative bill analysis

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 20

constructing levees throughout the bayside saltwater and freshwater marshes, they were
absolutely necessary to those living in the District. In his, “Report on Mosquito Control in
the Vicinity of San Mateo County 1904-1915,” University of California Researcher Harold E.
Woodworth explained:

“That year several of the levees had broken, due to lack of proper care, and
mosquito were so thick that life was unbearable”

and

“Livery stables would not let their horse go to the station because of
mosquitos collected under the roofs. People who had to go out to the marsh
wore hats, tied ropes or strings around their wrists and ankles. In the middle
of the summer, the mosquitoes migrated in to town in a dark cloud for three
days. Everyone who was not held in one way or another left town.”

In other words, mosquito control over and above that generally available in California is
necessary, as discovered over 100 years ago, within the District.

Vector Control is a Direct Special Benefit to Property, Not a General Benefit

The District provides services that are direct special benefit to properties within the
Annexation Area.

Mosquito control is narrowly applied based upon very local, property based attributes. First,
mosquito populations and associated diseases are closely monitored based upon a rigorous
surveillance program which includes mosquito traps located throughout the Annexation
Area. Second, in Zone 1 and 2 alone, District staff react to about 700 mosquito-associated
service requests per year from local property owners and travel to evaluate specific local
situation. Based upon information acquired through the surveillance program and service
requests, District staff develop and implement specific “surgical’ control strategies on
specific parcels. The District does not engage in widespread, general control unsupported
by localized analysis and evaluation. The District does, however, make house calls and
works directly with property owners to address mosquito issues specific to their unique
property and land use.

Also, the District provides specific services directly to individual properties regarding non-
mosquitoes vectors (rats, yellow jackets, and other pests) including education and
eradication strategies.

MosQuITO AND VECTOR CONTROL IS A SPECIAL BENEFIT TO PROPERTIES

As described below, this Engineer’s Report concludes that mosquito and vector control is a
special benefit that provides direct advantages to property in the Annexation Area. For
example, the assessment provides for 1) surveillance throughout the Annexation Area to

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 21

measure and track the levels and sources of mosquitoes and other vectors impacting
property in the area and the people who live and work on the property, 2) mosquito and
mosquito source control, treatment and abatement throughout the Annexation Area such
that all property in the area benefits from a comparable reduction of mosquito levels, 3)
monitoring throughout the Annexation Area to evaluate the effectiveness of District treatment
and control and to ensure that all properties are receiving the equivalent level of mosquito
and vector reduction benefits within their zone, and 4) the properties in the Annexation Area
are eligible for service requests which result in District staff directly visiting, inspecting and
treating property. Moreover, the Services funded by the Assessments reduce the level of
mosquitoes and vectors arriving at and negatively impacting properties within the
Annexation Area.

The benefit factors below, when applied to property in the Annexation Area, confer special
benefits to property and ultimately improve the safety, utility, functionality and usability of
property in the Annexation Area. These are special benefits to property in the Annexation
Area in much the same way that storm drainage, sewer service, water service, sidewalks
and paved streets enhance the utility and functionality of each parcel of property served by
these improvements, providing them with more utility of use and making them safer and
more usable for occupants.

The following section, Benefit Factors, describes how the Services specially benefit
properties in the Annexation Area. These benefits are particular and distinct from its effect
on property in general or the public at large.

BENEFIT FACTORS

In order to allocate the assessments, the Engineer identified the types of special benefit
arising from the Services and that are provided to property within the Annexation Area.
These types of special benefit are as follows:

REDUCED MOSQUITO AND VECTOR POPULATIONS ON PROPERTY AND AS A RESULT, ENHANCED
DESIRABILITY, UTILITY, USABILITY AND FUNCTIONALITY OF PROPERTY IN THE ANNEXATION AREA.

The assessments provide services for the control and abatement of nuisance and disease-
carrying mosquitoes and other vectors. These Services materially reduce the number of
vectors on properties throughout the Annexation Area. The lower mosquito and vector
populations on property in the Annexation Area are a direct advantage to property and serve
to increase the desirability and “usability” of property. Clearly, properties are more desirable
and usable in areas with lower mosquito and vector populations and with a reduced risk of
vector-borne disease. This is a special benefit to residential, commercial, agricultural,
industrial and other types of properties because all such properties directly benefit from
reduced mosquito and vector populations and properties with lower vector populations are
more usable, functional and desirable.

Excessive mosquitoes and other vectors in the area can materially diminish the utility and
usability of property. For example, prior to the commencement of mosquito control and
abatement services, properties in many areas in the California were considered to be nearly

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 22

uninhabitable during the times of year when the mosquito populations were high.# The
prevention or reduction of such diminished utility and usability of property caused by
mosquitoes is a clear and direct advantage and special benefit to property in the Annexation
Area.

The State Legislature made the following finding on this issue:

“Excess numbers of mosquitoes and other vectors spread diseases of
humans, livestock, and wildlife, reduce enjoyment of outdoor living spaces,
both public and private, reduce property values, hinder outdoor work,
reduce livestock productivity; and mosquitoes and other vectors can
disperse or be transported long distances from their sources and are,
therefore, a health risk and a public nuisance; and professional mosquito
and vector control based on scientific research has made great advances
in reducing mosquito and vector populations and the diseases they
transmit.” ®

Mosquitoes and other vectors emerge from sources throughout the Annexation Area, and
with an average flight range of two miles, mosquitoes from known sources can reach all
properties in the Annexation Area. These sources include standing water in rural areas,
such as marshes, pools, wetlands, ponds, drainage ditches, drainage systems, tree holes
and other removable sources such as old tires and containers. The sources of mosquitoes
also include numerous locations throughout the urban areas in the Annexation Area. These
sources include underground drainage systems, containers, unattended swimming pools,
leaks in water pipes, tree holes, flower cups in cemeteries, ornamental ponds, over-watered
landscaping and lawns and many other sources. By controlling mosquitoes at known and
new sources, the Services materially reduce mosquito populations on property throughout
the Annexation Area.

A recently increasing source of mosquitoes is unattended swimming pools:

4 Prior to the commencement of modern mosquito control services, areas in the State of California such
as the San Mateo Peninsula, Napa County and areas in Marin and Sonoma Counties had such high
mosquito populations that they were considered to be nearly unlivable during certain times of the year
and were largely used for part-time vacation cottages that were occupied primarily during the months
when the natural mosquito populations were lower.

5 Assembly Concurrent Resolution 52, chaptered April 1, 2003

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQuUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2023-24

B ]
ConsultingGroup



PAGE 23

“Anthropogenic landscape change historically has facilitated outbreaks of
pathogens amplified by peri domestic vectors such as Cx. pipiens complex
mosquitoes and associated commensals such as house sparrows. The
recent widespread downturn in the housing market and increase in
adjustable rate mortgages have combined to force a dramatic increase in
home foreclosures and abandoned homes and produced urban landscapes
dotted with an expanded number of new mosquito habitats. These new
larval habitats may have contributed to the unexpected early season
increase in WNV cases in Bakersfield during 2007 and subsequently have
enabled invasion of urban areas by the highly competent rural vector Cx.
tarsalis. These factors can increase the spectrum of competent avian hosts,
the efficiency of enzootic amplification, and the risk for urban epidemics.” ¢

As noted above, the District's IMVMP involves procedures to address swimming pools and
other sources of mosquitos to prevent and avoid mosquitos from becoming adults and
stinging humans and animals. The reliability of this service has enabled property owners
throughout the Annexation Area to use and make full enjoyment of their property year-round
in a way that was historically not possible without the service.

INCREASED SAFETY OF PROPERTY IN THE ANNEXATION AREA.

The assessment funds year-round proactive Services to control and abate mosquitoes and
other vectors that otherwise would occupy properties throughout the Annexation Area.
Mosquitoes and other vectors are transmitters of diseases, so the reduction of mosquito
populations makes property in the Annexation Area safer for use and enjoyment. In absence
of the assessment, these Services would not be provided, so the Services funded by the
assessment make properties in the Annexation Area safer, which is a distinct special benefit
to property in the Annexation Area.” This is not a general benefit to property in the
Annexation Area or the public at large because the Services are tangible mosquito and
disease control services that are provided directly to the properties in the Annexation Area
and the Services are over and above what otherwise would be provided by the District or
any other agency.

This finding was confirmed in 2003 by the State Legislature:

6 Riesen William K. (2008). Delinquent Mortgages, Neglected Swimming Pools, and West Nile Virus,
California. Emerging Infectious Diseases. Vol. 14(11).

7. By reducing the risk of disease and increasing the safety of property, the proposed Services will
materially increase the usefulness and desirability of certain properties in the Unprotected Areas.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 24

‘Mosquitoes and other vectors, including but not limited to, ticks,
Africanized honey bees, rats, fleas, and flies, continue to be a source of
human suffering, illness, death, and a public nuisance in California and
around the world. Adequately funded mosquito and vector control,
monitoring and public awareness programs are the best way to prevent
outbreaks of West Nile Virus and other diseases borne by mosquitoes and
other vectors.”8

Also, the Legislature, in Health and Safety Code Section 2001, finds that:

“The protection of Californians and their communities against the
discomforts and economic effects of vector borne diseases is an essential
public service that is vital to public health, safety, and welfare.”

BENEFIT FINDING

In summary, the special benefits described in this Report and the expansion and provision
of Services to the Annexation Area directly benefits and protects the real properties in the
Annexation Area in excess of the assessments for these properties. Therefore, the
assessment engineer finds that the cumulative special benefits to property from the Services
are reasonably equal to or greater than the assessment of $20.79 per benefit unit.

GENERAL VS. SPECIAL BENEFIT

Article XIIIC of the California Constitution requires any local agency proposing to increase
or impose a benefit assessment to “separate the general benefits from the special benefits
conferred on a parcel.” The rationale for separating special and general benefits is to ensure
that property owners subject to the benefit assessment are not paying for general benefits.
The assessment can fund the special benefits to property in the Annexation Area but cannot
fund any general benefits. Accordingly, a separate estimate of the special and general
benefit is given in this section.

In other words:

Total _  General Special
Benefit ~—  Benefit Benefit

There is no widely-accepted or statutory formula for general benefit from vector control
services. General benefits are benefits from improvements or services that are not special

8 Assembly Concurrent Resolution 52, chaptered April 1, 2003

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 25

in nature, are not “particular and distinct” and are not “over and above” benefits received by
other properties. General benefits are conferred to properties located “in the district,®” but
outside the narrowly-drawn Assessment District and to “the public at large.” SVTA vs.
SCCOSA provides some clarification by indicating that general benefits provide “an indirect,
derivative advantage” and are not necessarily proximate to the improvements and services
funded by the assessments.

A formula to estimate the general benefit is listed below:

Benefit to real Benefit to real .
. .. Benefit to
General property outside property inside bli
. = . . public at
Benefit of improvement of improvement T larde
cistrict clistrict 9

Special benefit, on the other hand, is defined in the state constitution as “a particular and
distinct benefit over and above general benefits conferred on real property located in the
district or to the public at large.” The SVTA v. SCCOSA decision indicates that a special
benefit is conferred to a property if it “receives a direct advantage from the improvement
(e.g., proximity to a park).” In this assessment, the overwhelming proportion of the benefits
conferred to property is special, since the advantages from the mosquito and disease
protection funded by the Assessments are directly received by the properties in the
Assessment District and are only minimally received by property outside the Assessment
District or the public at large.

Proposition 218 twice uses the phrase “over and above” general benefits in describing
special benefit. (Art. XIIID, sections 2(i) & 4(f).) Significantly, with the assessment, there
were previously no mosquito related services being provided to the Annexation Area by any
federal, state or local government agency. Consequently, there were previously no

9 SVTA vs. SCCOSA explains as follows:

OSA observes that Proposition 218's definition of “special benefit” presents a paradox when considered
with its definition of “district.” Section 2, subdivision (i) defines a “special benefit” as “a particular and
distinct benefit over and above general benefits conferred on real property located in the district or to the
public at large.” (Art. XIII D, § 2, subd. (i), italics added.) Section 2, subdivision (d) defines “district” as “an
area determined by an agency to contain all parcels which will receive a special benefit from a proposed
public improvement or property-related service.” (Art. XIII D, § 2, subd. (d), italics added.) In a well-drawn
district — limited to only parcels receiving special benefits from the improvement — every parcel within
that district receives a shared special benefit. Under section 2, subdivision (i), these benefits can be
construed as being general benefits since they are not “particular and distinct’ and are not “over and
above” the benefits received by other properties “located in the district.”

We do not believe that the voters intended to invalidate an assessment district that is narrowly drawn to
include only properties directly benefiting from an improvement. Indeed, the ballot materials reflect
otherwise. Thus, if an assessment district is narrowly drawn, the fact that a benefit is conferred throughout
the district does not make it general rather than special.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 26

mosquito control related general benefits being provided to the Service Area and any new
and extended service provided by the District is over and above this zero baseline. Arguably,
all of the Services funded by the assessment therefore are a special benefit because the
Services particularly and distinctly benefit and protect the Service Area over and above the
baseline benefits and service of zero.

Nevertheless, arguably some of the Services would benefit the public at large and properties
outside the Annexation Area. In this report, the general benefit is conservatively estimated
and described, and then budgeted so that it is funded by sources other than the assessment.

(In the 2009 Dahms case, the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special benefit
on the rationale that the services funded by the assessments were directly provided to
property in the assessment district. Similar to the assessments in Pomona that were
validated by Dahms, the Assessments described in this Engineer's Report fund mosquito,
vector and disease control services directly provided to property in the Annexation
Area. Moreover, as noted in this Report, the Services directly reduce mosquito and vector
populations on all property in the Annexation Area. Therefore, Dahms establishes a basis
for minimal or zero general benefits from the Assessments. However, in this report, out of
an abundance of caution, the general benefit is more conservatively estimated and
described, and then budgeted so that it is funded by sources other than the assessment.)

CALCULATING GENERAL BENEFIT

Consistent with footnote 9 of SVTA v. SCCOSA, and for the reasons described above, the
District has determined that all parcels in the Annexation Area receive a shared direct
advantage and special benefit from the Services. The Services directly and particularly
serve and benefit each parcel, and are not a mere indirect, derivative advantage. As
explained above, Proposition 218 relies on the concept of “over and above” in distinguishing
special benefits from general benefits. As applied to an assessment proceeding concurrent
with the annexation of new territory and extension of services to that territory, this concept
means that the baseline general benefits are zero and that all vector control services, which
provide direct advantage to property in the Annexation Area, are over and above the zero
baseline and therefore are special.

Nevertheless, the Services may provide a degree of general benefit, in addition to the
predominant special benefit. This section provides a conservative measure of the general
benefits from the assessments.

BENEFIT TO PROPERTY OUTSIDE THE DISTRICT

Properties within the Assessment District receive almost all of the special benefits from the
Services because the Services funded by the Assessments are provided directly to protect
property within the Assessment District from mosquitoes and vector-borne disease.
However, properties adjacent to, but just outside of, the boundaries may receive some
benefit from the Services in the form of reduced mosquito populations on property outside
the Annexation Area. Since this benefit is conferred to properties outside the district

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 27

boundaries, it contributes to the overall general benefit calculation and are not funded by the
assessment.

A measure of this general benefit is the proportion of Services that affect properties outside
of the Annexation Area. Each year, the District provides some of its Services in areas near
the boundaries of the Annexation Area. By abating mosquito populations near the borders
of the Annexation Area, the Services provide benefits in the form of reduced mosquito
populations and reduced risk of disease transmission to properties just outside the
Annexation Area - in this case including portions of San Francisco County and the original
district. If mosquitoes were not controlled inside the Annexation Area, more of them would
fly from the Annexation Area. Therefore, control of mosquitoes within the Annexation Area
provides some benefit to properties outside the Annexation Area but within the normal flight
range of mosquitoes, in the form of reduced mosquito populations and reduced vector-borne
disease transmission. This is a measure of the general benefits to property outside the
Annexation Area because this is a benefit from the Services that is not specially conferred
upon property in the Annexation Area.

The mosquito potential outside the Annexation Area is based on studies of mosquito
dispersion concentrations. Mosquitoes can travel up to two miles, on average, so this
destination range is used — however, the concentration of mosquito population decays
rapidly with increased distance. Based on studies of mosquito destinations, relative to
parcels in the Annexation Area average concentration of mosquitoes from the Annexation
Area on properties within two miles of the Annexation Area is calculated to be 6%.'0 In other
words, only the average effective concentration of an overall mosquito population is 6%
within the evaluated 2 mile wide perimeter, just outside the Annexation Area. This relative
vector population reduction factor within the destination range is combined with the number

Criteria:
Mosquitoes may fly up to 2 miles from their breeding source.

100,320 parcels within 2 miles of, but outside of the District, may receive some mosquito
and disease protection benefit

6% portion of relative benefit that is received

85,403 Parcels in the Assessment District

Calculations:

Total Benefit = 100,320 parcels * 6% =6,019 parcels equivalents
Percentage of overall parcel equivalents = 6,019 / (6,019+100,320) = 5.6%

10 Tietze, Noor S., Stephenson, Mike F., Sidhom, Nader T. and Binding, Paul L., “Mark-Recapture of Culex
Erythrothorax in Santa Cruz County, California”, Journal of the American Mosquito Control Association,
19(2):134-138, 2003.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup




PAGE 28

of parcels outside the Annexation Area and within the destination range to measure this
general benefit and is calculated as follows

Therefore, for the overall benefits provided by the Services to the Annexation Area it is
determined that 5.6% of the benefits would be received by the parcels within two miles of
the Annexation Area boundaries. The engineer has rounded 5.6% up to 7.0% in order to be
conservative in the calculation of special benefits.

BENEFIT TO PROPERTY INSIDE THE DISTRICT THAT IS INDIRECT AND DERIVATIVE

The “indirect and derivative” benefit includes general benefit to the properties within the
Annexation Area, is particularly difficult to calculate. This benefit includes general benefit to
properties within the District that is general in nature and cannot be reasonably associated
with individual properties (as described in SVTA vs. SCCOSA ). As explained above, all
benefit within the Annexation Area is special because the mosquito and disease control
services in the Annexation Area provides direct service and protection that is clearly “over
and above” and “particular and distinct” when compared with the lack of such protection
under pre-annexation conditions. Further the properties are within the Assessment District
boundaries and this Engineer's Report demonstrates the direct benefits received by
individual properties from mosquito and disease control services.

In determining the Annexation Area boundaries, the District was careful to limit it to an area
of parcels that directly receive the Services. All parcels directly benefit from the surveillance,
monitoring and treatment that are provided on an equivalent basis throughout each zone in
the Annexation Area in order to maintain the optimal level of protection against mosquitoes
and reduced mosquito populations throughout the area. The surveillance and monitoring
sites are spread on a balanced basis throughout the area. Mosquito control and treatment
are provided as needed throughout the area based on the surveillance and monitoring
results. The shared special benefit - reduced mosquito levels and reduced presence of
vector-borne diseases - are received on an equivalent basis by all parcels in the Annexation
Area. Furthermore, all parcels in the Assessment District directly benefit from the ability to
request service from the District and to have a District field technician promptly respond
directly to the parcel and address the owner’s or resident’s service need. The SVTA vs.
SCCOSA decision indicates that the fact that a benefit is conferred throughout the
assessment district area does not make the benefit general rather than special, so long as
the assessment district is narrowly drawn and limited to the parcels directly receiving shared
special benefits from the service. This concept is particularly applicable in situations
involving a landowner-approved assessment-funded extension of a local government
service to benefit lands previously not receiving that particular service.

It could be argued that certain activities provide general benefits within the Annexation Area.
For example, if the District provided funding to mosquito research in West Africa, or helped
fund a Countywide mailer on various public health goals that did not have a direct benefit to
Annexation Area parcels, that could be considered a general benefit to properties within the
Annexation Area. The District does not perform any such tasks.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 29

The District therefore concludes that, other than the small general benefit to properties
outside the Assessment District (discussed above) and to the public at large (discussed
below), all of the benefits of the Services to the parcels within the Assessment District are
special benefits and it is not possible or appropriate to separate any “indirect and derivative”
general benefits from the benefits conferred on parcels in the Annexation Area.

BENEFIT TO THE PuBLIC AT LARGE

With the type and scope of Services provided to the Annexation Area, it is very difficult to
calculate and quantify the scope of the general benefit conferred on the public at large.
Because the Services directly serve and benefit all of the property in the Annexation Area,
any general benefit conferred on the public at large is incidental to the specific benefit.
Nevertheless, there is some indirect general benefit to the public at large.

The public at large uses the public highways and other regional facilities, and when traveling
in and through the Annexation Area they benefit from the Services. A fair and appropriate
measure of the general benefit to the public at large therefore is the amount of highway and
other regional facilities area within the Annexation Area relative to the overall land area. An
analysis of maps of the Annexation Area shows that approximately 1% of the land area in
the Annexation Area is covered by highways and other regional facilities. This 1% therefore
is a fair and appropriate measure of the general benefit to the public at large within the
Annexation Area.

SUMMARY OF GENERAL BENEFITS

Using a sum of the measures of general benefit for the public at large and land outside the
Annexation Area, we find that approximately 8.0% of the benefits conferred by the Mosquito
and Disease Control Assessment may be general in nature and should be funded by sources
other than the assessment.

General Benefit Calculation

7.0% (Outside the Assessment District)
+ 0.0% (Property within the Assessment District)
+ 1.0% (Public at Large)

=8.0% (Total General Benefit)

The North and West County Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment District’s total
budget for mosquito and vector abatement, disease control, and capital improvement is
$1,554,301. Of this total budget amount, the District will contribute $124,400 which exceeds
the 8% ($123,344) minimum of the total budget from sources other than the Assessment
District. This contribution shall fund any general benefits from the North and West County
Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment District's Services. Such contribution exceeds
the estimated general benefits from the assessments.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 30

METHOD OF ASSESSMENT

Proposition 218, as described in Article XIIID of the California Constitution has confirmed
that assessments must be based on the special benefit to property:

"No assessment shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the
reasonable cost of the proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel.”

As previously discussed, the assessments fund comprehensive, year-round mosquito
control and disease surveillance and control Services that clearly confer special benefits to
properties in the Annexation Area. These benefits can partially be measured by the property
owners, guests, employees, tenants, pets and animals who enjoy a more habitable, safer
and more desirable place to live, work or visit. As noted, these benefits ultimately flow to the
underlying property.

In apportioning assessments to determine the relative special benefit for each property it is
necessary to determine the relative benefit received by each property in relation to a single
family home, or, in other words, on the basis of Single Family Equivalents (SFE). This SFE
methodology is commonly used to distribute assessments in proportion to estimated special
benefit and is generally recognized as providing the basis for a fair and appropriate
distribution of assessments. For the purposes of this Engineer's Report, all properties are
designated a SFE value, which is each property's relative benefit in relation to a single family
home on an average sized residential parcel. The "benchmark" property is the single family
detached dwelling which is one Single Family Equivalent or one SFE.

In the process of determining the appropriate method of assessment, the Engineer
considered various alternatives. For example, a fixed assessment amount per parcel for all
residential improved property was considered but was determined to be inappropriate
because agricultural lands, commercial property and other property also receive benefits
from the assessments for the reasons described above. Likewise, an assessment
exclusively for agricultural land was considered because the sources of mosquitoes and
vectors are generally located on such property. However, other types of property, such as
residential and commercial, also receive the special benefit factors listed above from
reduced mosquito and vector populations that would otherwise fly or migrate to these
properties and/or to the inhabited community areas. Furthermore, residential properties can
and do generate their own populations of mosquito and vector organisms as described
above.

Afixed or flat assessment was deemed to be inappropriate because larger properties receive
a higher degree of benefit than other similarly used properties that are significantly smaller.
(For two properties used for commercial purposes, there is clearly a higher benefit provided
to a property that covers several acres in comparison to a smaller commercial property that
is on a 0.25 acre site because the larger property generally has a larger coverage area and
higher usage by employees, customers, tourists and guests that would benefit from reduced
mosquito and vector populations as well as the reduced threat from diseases carried by

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 31

mosquitoes and other vectors. This benefit ultimately flows to the property. Larger parcels,
therefore, receive an increased benefit from the assessments.

Therefore, the Engineer determined that the appropriate method of assessment should be
based on the type and potential use of property, the relative size of the property and its
location. This method is further described below.

ZONES OF BENEFIT

The boundaries of the Annexation Areas have been carefully drawn to include the properties
in the Annexation Area that materially benefit from the Services. Such parcels are in areas
with a material population of people, pets and livestock on the property. The current and
future population of property is a conduit of benefit to property because people, pets and
livestock are ultimately affected by mosquitoes and vector-borne diseases and the special
benefit factors of desirability, utility, usability, livability and marketability are ultimately
determined by the population and usage potential of property. The boundaries of the
assessment areas have been narrowly drawn to include only properties that specially benefit
from the mosquito control services.

The Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority
decision indicates:

In a well-drawn district — limited to only parcels receiving special benefits from the
improvement — every parcel within that district receives a shared special benefit. Under
section 2, subdivision (i), these benefits can be construed as being general benefits since
they are not “particular and distinct” and are not “over and above” the benefits received by
other properties “located in the district.”

We do not believe that the voters intended to invalidate an assessment district that is
narrowly drawn to include only properties directly benefitting from an improvement. Indeed,
the ballot materials reflect otherwise. Thus, if an assessment district is narrowly drawn, the
fact that a benefit is conferred throughout the district does not make it general rather than
special. In that circumstance, the characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the
parcel receives a direct advantage from the improvement (e.g., proximity to park) or receives
an indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the overall public benefits of the
improvement (e.g., general enhancement of the district's property values).

In the assessment, the advantage that each parcel receives from the mosquito control
services is direct, and the boundaries are narrowly drawn to include only parcels that benefit
from the assessment. Therefore, the even spread of assessment throughout the narrowly
drawn district is indeed consistent with the Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, Inc. v.
Santa Clara County Open Space Authority decision.

Within the Annexation Area, zones of benefit are not justified or needed because the
Services are provided relatively evenly across the entire area and for all parcels within the

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 32

assessment areas’ boundaries, and the surveillance, monitoring and treatment are applied
in such a manner as to attain a relatively even level of mosquito control throughout the area.

However, in efforts to continue to enforce the most conservative interpretation of Article XIIID
of the state constitution, in 2017, the District completed an analysis of service levels
throughout the District boundaries. In particular, the District evaluated service levels in
regards to its core services including surveillance, larvicide and service requests; and
confirmed that service levels and benefits are essentially equivalent across all parcels
(except as noted below and described as Zone B). Regarding service requests, the District
will respond to any parcel located within the District, regardless of how remote, and provide
mosquito control services appropriate to the situation. While conducting the evaluation, it did
find that in Zones A and B (in this case, “Zones” as they are known for internal District
purposes) the District responds to an average of over 700 service calls per year. As part of
the Integrated Mosquito and Vector Management Program (IMVMP) the District conducts
over 1,000 site treatments per year in Zones A and B. Larvicide applications generally are
applied throughout the District.

The District’s evaluation showed that some mountainous areas of the District located in rural
mountainous San Mateo County do not receive the same service level for District
surveillance services. These areas are described as Zone B, and are indicated in the
Assessment Diagram.

The District uses mosquito traps to collect and then quantify species, quantities,
concentrations, viral loads, etc. of mosquitoes. The selection of the locations of these traps
requires a multi-attribute evaluation, with trap locations changing seasonally and when high
concentrations of mosquitoes are identified. The District places mosquito traps at 2 mile
radii, primarily throughout the more populated areas of the County, as part of this routine
adult trapping program. Zone B parcels largely fall outside of the 2 mile radii of these routine
adult mosquito traps and they do not typically receive the same level of routine surveillance
as compared to the areas outside Zone B.

The Zone B parcels therefore will be subject to a reduced assessment, commensurate with
the different benefit level. (If in the future, the routine adult mosquito trapping service is
extended into part or all of Zone B, the Zone B boundaries will be modified accordingly.)

The District analyzed its overall level of effort and determined that 1.85% of its resources is
allocated to routine adult mosquito trapping. Therefore, Zone B Parcels will be subjected to
a 1.85% assessment reduction.

ASSESSMENT APPORTIONMENT

The special benefits derived from the North and West County Mosquito and Disease Control
Assessment District are conferred on property and are not based on a specific property
owner’s occupancy of property or the property owner's demographic status such as age or
number of dependents. However, it is ultimately people who do or could use the property
and who enjoy the special benefits described above. Therefore, the opportunity to use and

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 33

enjoy the region within the Annexation Area without the excessive nuisance, diminished
‘livability” or the potential health hazards brought by mosquitoes, vectors, and the diseases
they carry is a special benefit to properties in the Annexation Area. This benefit is related to
the number of people who potentially live on, work at, visit or otherwise use the property
because people ultimately determine the value of the benefits by choosing to live, work
and/or recreate in the area, and by choosing to purchase property in the area.

RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES

All improved residential properties that represent a single residential dwelling unit are
assigned one Single Family Equivalent or 1.0 SFE. Traditional houses, zero-lot line houses,
and townhomes are included in this category.

Properties with more than one residential unit are designated as multi-family residential
properties. These properties, along with condominiums, benefit from the services and
improvements in proportion to the number of dwelling units that occupy each property, the
average number of people who reside in each property, and the average size of each
property in relation to a single family home in San Mateo County. This Report analyzed San
Mateo County population density factors from the 2000 US Census as well as average
dwelling unit size for each property type. After determining the Population Density Factor
and Square Footage Factor for each property type, an SFE rate is generated for each
residential property structure, as indicated in Table 3 below.

The SFE factor of 0.32 per dwelling unit for multifamily residential properties applies to such
properties with 20 or fewer units. Properties in excess of 20 units typically offer on-site
management, monitoring and other control services that tend to offset some of the benefits
provided by the mosquito abatement district. Therefore, the benefit for properties in excess
of 20 units is determined to be 0.32 SFE per unit for the first 20 units and 0.10 SFE per each
additional unit in excess of 20 dwelling units.

TABLE 3 RESIDENTIAL ASSESSMENT FACTORS

Total Occupied Persons per|  Pop. Density SqFt Proposed

Population Households Household Equivalent Factor Rate

Single Family Res 444,691 147,465 3.02 1.00 1.00
Condominium 64,797 22,179 2.92 0.97 0.70 0.68
Multi-Family Resic 180,497 81,209 2.22 0.74 0.43 0.32
Mobile Home on € 6,108 2,851 2.14 0.71 0.30 0.21

Source: 2000 Census, San Mateo County and property dwelling size information from the San Mateo
County Assessor

COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL PROPERTIES

The commercial and industrial properties are generally open and operated for more limited
times, relative to residential properties. Therefore, the relative hours of operation can be
used as a measure of benefits, since residents and employees also provide a measure of
the relative benefit to property. Since commercial and industrial properties are typically open

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 34

and occupied by employees approximately one-half the time of residential properties, it is
reasonable to assume that commercial land uses receive one-half of the special benefit on
a land area basis relative to single family residential property.

The average size of a single family home with 1.0 SFE factor in San Mateo County is 0.20
acres. Therefore, a commercial property with 0.20 acres receives one-half the relative
benefit, or a 0.50 SFE factor.

The SFE values for various commercial and industrial land uses are further defined by using
average employee densities because the special benefit factors described previously are
also related to the average number of people who work at commercial/industrial properties.

To determine employee density factors, this Report utilizes the findings from the San Diego
Association of Governments Traffic Generators Study (the “SANDAG Study”) because these
findings were approved by the State Legislature which determined the SANDAG Study to
be a good representation of the average number of employees per acre of land area for
commercial and industrial properties. As determined by the SANDAG Study, the average
number of employees per acre for commercial and industrial property is 24. As presented
in Table 4, the SFE factors for other types of businesses are determined relative to their
typical employee density in relation to the average of 24 employees per acre of commercial

property.

Commercial and industrial properties in excess of 5 acres generally involve uses that are
more land intensive relative to building areas and number of employees (lower coverage
ratios). As a result, the benefit factors for commercial and industrial property land area in
excess of 5 acres is determined to be the SFE rate per fifth acre for the first 5 acres and the
relevant SFE rate per each additional acre over 5 acres. Institutional properties that are
used for residential, commercial or industrial purposes are also assessed at the appropriate
residential, commercial or industrial rate.

Table 4 below lists the benefit assessment factors for business properties.
TABLE 4 COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL BENEFIT ASSESSMENT FACTORS

Average SFE Units SFE Units
Type of Commercial/Industrial Employees per per
Land Use Per Acre ' Fraction Acre * Acre After 5
Commercial 24 0.500 0.500
Office 68 1.420 1.420
Shopping Center 24 0.500 0.500
Industrial 24 0.500 0.500
Self Storage or Parking Lot 1 0.021
Golf Course 0.80 0.033
Cemeteries 0.10 0.004
Agriculture 0.05 0.002

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 35

* SFE rate shown is for the first 5 acres of parcel size. Additional acreage is benefited at the rate
1. Source: San Diego Association of Governments Traffic Generators Study.

2. The SFE factors for commercial and industrial parcels indicated above are applied to each fifth acre of
land area or portion thereof. (Therefore, the minimum assessment for any assessable parcel in these
categories is the SFE Units listed herein.)

VACANT PROPERTIES

The benefit to vacant properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding
benefits for similar type developed properties. However, vacant properties are assessed at
a lower rate due to the lack of active benefits. A measure of the benefits accruing to the
underlying land is the average value of land in relation to improvements for developed
property. An analysis was conducted by the Engineer of the assessed valuation data from
the County of San Mateo found that 50% of the assessed value of improved properties is
classified as land value. It is reasonable to assume, therefore, that approximately 50% of
the benefits are related to the underlying land and 50% are related to the day-to-day use of
the property. Using this ratio, the SFE factor for vacant parcels is 0.50 per parcel.

OTHER PROPERTIES

Article XIIID stipulates that publicly owned properties must be assessed unless there is clear
and convincing evidence that those properties receive no special benefit from the
assessment. All properties that are specially benefited are assessed. Public right-of-way
parcels, well, reservoir or other water rights parcels that cannot be developed into other
improved uses, limited access open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area
parcels typically do not generate employees, residents, customers or guests. Moreover,
many of these parcels have limited economic value and, therefore, do not benefit from
specific enhancement of property value. Such parcels are, therefore, not specially benefited
and are not assessed.

Other publicly owned property that is used for purposes similar to private residential,
commercial, industrial or institutional uses is benefited and assessed at the same rate as
such privately owned property.

Certain parcels such as, church parcels and properties used for educational purposes,
typically generate employees on a less consistent basis than other non-residential parcels.
Many of these parcels also provide some degree of on-site amenities that serve to offset
some of the benefits from the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District. In
addition, the District maintains reciprocal use arrangements with many educational
properties that allow for the public, recreational use of these properties. Such public use
tends to reduce the use and wear of District facilities. Therefore, these parcels receive
minimal benefit and are assessed an SFE factor of 1.

APPEALS AND INTERPRETATION

Any property owner who feels that the assessment levied on the subject property is in error
as a result of incorrect information being used to apply the foregoing method of assessment,

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 36

may file a written appeal with the District Manager of the San Mateo County Mosquito and
Vector Control District or his or her designee. Any such appeal is limited to correction of an
assessment during the then current Fiscal Year or, if before July 1, the upcoming fiscal year.
Upon the filing of any such appeal, the District Manager or his or her designee will promptly
review the appeal and any information provided by the property owner. If the District
Manager or his or her designee finds that the assessment should be modified, the
appropriate changes shall be made to the assessment roll. If any such changes are
approved after the assessment roll has been filed with the County of San Mateo for
collection, the District Manager or his or her designee is authorized to refund to the property
owner the amount of any approved reduction. Any dispute over the decision of the District
Manager, or his or her designee, shall be referred to the Board of Trustees. The decision of
the Board of Trustees shall be final.

DURATION OF ASSESSMENT

It is proposed that the Assessment be levied for fiscal year 2020-21 and every year
thereafter, so long as mosquitoes remain in existence and the San Mateo County Mosquito
and Vector Control District requires funding from the Assessment for its Services in the
Annexation Area. As noted previously, if the Assessment and the duration of the Assessment
are approved by property owners in an assessment ballot proceeding, the Assessment can
be levied annually after the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District Board
of Trustees approves an annually updated Engineer’s Report, budget for the Assessment,
Services to be provided, and other specifics of the Assessment.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ——
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ‘ o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 37

ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM

The North and West County Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment District include all
properties within the boundaries of the Annexation Area. The boundaries of the North and
West County Mosquito and Disease Control Assessment District are displayed on the
following Assessment Diagram. Zone A parcels are shown in orange and Zone B parcels
are shown in blue.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ———
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



PAGE 38

San Francisco
County

San Francisco Bay

Existing District

Santa Clara
County

Pacific Ocean

Legend
- Benefit Assessment - Zone A

- Benefit Assessment - Zone B
Santa Cruz

County [:] Existing District - Special Tax
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT MANAGER AN ASSESSMENT WAS CONFIRMED AND LEVIED BY F\L[DYH\' - 2017 AT THE
OF THE SAN MATEO C uiTo THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SAN MATEO M. IN THE OFFICE OF
AND VECOTR CONTROL ugvs oumv OF SAN MATEO, COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECT STR F THE COUNTY OF
CALIFORNIA, THIS 14tn DAY OF JUNE, 2

TISTRICT MANAGER DIAGRAM AND THE ASSESSMENT ROLL
FISCAL YEAR WERE FILED IN THE OF
RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF Mtln,m- T .uumv AU H!HRA\I» mr COUNTY OF COUNTY AUCKTOR, COUNTY OF SANMATEQ
NAGER OF THE SAN MATEQ

N THI Y Of
T COUNTY REI'EREN-\E ws NEIIEE( MADE TO SAID REC! hnom Nete.

IATEMENT DISTR

AN MATEO, CALIFORNIATHIS 14th DAY SSE ROLL FOR THE EXACT AMOUNT OF EACH REFERENCE |5 HEREBY MADE TO THE MAPS AND DEEDS
OF JUNE, 2017 ASSESSUENT LEVIED AGANST EACH PARCEL OF LAND QF RECORD N THE OFFICE OF THE ASSESSOR OF THE
COUNTY Of EO FOR A DETAILED DESCRIFTION

- OF THE LIN ONS OF ANY PARCEL SHOWN
e DISTRICT MANAGER HEREIN. THOSE LL GOVERN FOR ALL EETAIL;
DISTRICT MANAGER C uN- ERNING THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF St

ELS EACH PARCEL S TOENTIFED IN SAID MAPS BY
T GISTINCTIVE ASSESSORS PARC EL NUMBER

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

Pagn 1011 NORTH AND WEST COUNTY
AT 901 CONMULTING FR0LP MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
SRR Ch e ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER'S REPORT, FY 2023-24

O ——
SCIConsultingGroup



PAGE 39

ASSESSMENT RoLL

Reference is hereby made to the Assessment Roll in and for said assessment proceedings
on file in the office of the District Manager of the District, as said Assessment Roll is too
voluminous to be bound with this Engineer's Report.

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

e ———
NORTH AND WEST COUNTY MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT o —
PRELIMINARY ENGINEER’S REPORT, FY 2023-24 onsuftingtaroup



SAN MATEO COUNTY Burlingame. CA 94010
| CONTROL DISTRICT P e (650) 3443843
FProtecting public health since 1916 www.smemved.org

RESOLUTION M-021-23

A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO LEVY ASSESSMENTS, PRELIMINARILY
APPROVING THE ENGINEER’S REPORT, FOR THE NORTH AND WEST COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND DISEASE CONTROL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FY 2023-24

WHEREAS, the San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District (formerly known as the
San Mateo County Mosquito Abatement District) (“District”) was established in 1953 as a special
district of the State of California covering certain portions of San Mateo County; and

WHEREAS, the mission of the District is to protect the public health by controlling mosquitoes
and other disease carrying insects and monitoring and testing for diseases transmitted by insects
and rodents; and

WHEREAS, the District’s previous jurisdictional boundaries include the cities and communities
of Atherton, Belmont, Burlingame, Foster City, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Millbrae, Portola
Valley, Redwood City, San Carlos, San Mateo, Woodside, Burlingame Hills, East Palo Alto,
Emerald Lake, Fair Oaks, Ladera, Los Trancos Woods, the Highlands of San Mateo, Redwood
Shores, certain parcels in San Bruno, and other unincorporated areas in San Mateo County
generally located east of Interstate 280; and

WHEREAS, in 2003, the District annexed the cities of Brisbane, Colma, Daly City, South San
Francisco and most parcels in San Bruno; and communities located west of I-280 such as Ano
Nuevo, Half Moon Bay, El Granada, and Pacifica, and other unincorporated areas in San Mateo
County generally located west of Interstate 280 (the “North and West County Areas”); and

WHEREAS, an Engineer’s Report (“Report”) has been submitted to the District Board (“Board™)
by SCI Consulting Group, Inc. (formerly Shilts Consultants, Inc.), in which an assessment is
proposed to fund the cost of providing services in the North and West County Areas. This
proposed assessment shall be described as the “North and West County Mosquito and Disease
Control Assessment District” hereinafter the (“Assessment District”) of the San Mateo County
Mosquito and Vector Control District.

1 of 3



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that SCI Consulting Group., the Engineer of Work,
prepared Report in accordance with Article XIIID of the California Constitution and the Health
and Safety Code. This Report has been made, filed with the Board and duly considered by the
Board and is hereby deemed sufficient and preliminarily approved. Report shall stand as the
Engineer’s Report for all subsequent proceedings under and pursuant to the foregoing resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Board intends to continue to levy and collect annual assess-
ments within the Assessment District to fund the cost of providing mosquito and disease control
services and the proposed projects and services set forth in the engineer’s report. Within
Assessment District, the proposed projects and services are generally described as mosquito and
vector control services such as surveillance, source reduction, larvicide and adulticide applications,
disease monitoring, public education, reporting, accountability, research and interagency
cooperative activities.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Assessment District consists of the lots and parcels shown
on the assessment diagram of the Assessment District, on file with the San Mateo County Mosquito
and Vector Control District Manager, and reference is hereby made to such diagram for further
particulars.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that reference is hereby made to the Report for a full and detailed
description of the proposed projects and services, the boundaries of the Assessment District and
the proposed assessments upon assessable lots and parcels of land within the Assessment District.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the estimated fiscal year 2023-24 cost of providing the
District’s services is $1,554,301. This cost results in a proposed assessment rate of TWENTY
DOLLARS AND SEVENTY-NINE CENTS ($20.79) per single-family equivalent benefit unit for
Zone A, and TWENTY DOLLARS AND FORTY-ONE CENTS ($20.41) for Zone B, for fiscal
year 2023-24. This is a 5% increase over the rate that was levied last year. The assessments are
proposed to be levied annually.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Assessment may be levied annually and may be adjusted
by up to the maximum annual CPI adjustment without any additional assessment ballot
proceeding. The change in the CPI in 2022 was 4.8818% therefore, the maximum authorized
assessment rate per single-family equivalent benefit unit for Fiscal Year 2023-24 is $24.54 for
Zone A and $24.09 for Zone B. The assessment will be levied at the rate of $20.79 and $20.41,
respectively, for fiscal year 2023-24. If the proposed assessments are approved and confirmed by
the Board, the assessments may increase in future years by an amount equal to the annual change
in the Bay Area Consumer Price Index, not to exceed 3% (three percent) per year without a further
vote or balloting process- The District still has an additional 20.39% in reserve that it may apply
in future years.

The foregoing resolution was duly passed by the Board of Trustees of the San Mateo County
Mosquito and Vector Control District at a regular meeting by the following vote on a roll call:

20f3



APPROVED AND DATED this 10" day of May 2023 after its passage.

ATTEST:

<
&

No

Abstain Absent

Mason Brutschy
Chuck Cotten
Carolyn Parker
Rena Gilligan
Laura Walsh
Glenn R. Sylvester
Donna Rutherford
Paul Norton

Kati Martin

Dr. D. Scott Smith
Catherine Carlton
Muhammed Baluom
Peter DedJarnatt
Raymond Williams
Kathryn Lion
Robert Riechel
Ron Collins

Ed Degliantoni

A. Desiree LaBeaud,
Michael Yoshida
Paul Fregulia

aoauuauaaaaaaoaaaaaaaaaa
aaadauauaaaaaaoaaauauaaaaaaa

Vote Totals:

aaauauauaaaaaaoaaaauaaaaaaa

aaauuauaaaaaaaauaaaaaaaa

Secretary

APPROVED:

President

30of3



San Mateo County MVCD
Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 7A

BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

SUBJECT: Finance Committee Meeting of the Board of Trustees

Finance Committee members attended a meeting on May 1, 2023. Attendees
included Committee Chair Mason Brutschy, Robert Riechel, Ray Williams, and
Carolyn Parker. Staff attending included District Manager Brian Weber, Finance
Director Richard Arrow, Information and Technology Director Matthew Nienhuis,
and Operations Director Casey Stevenson.

e Reviewed the Financial Report for FY 22-23 as of March 31, 2023. Highlights
were discussed with the committee by Finance Director Richard Arrow. The
Finance Committee recommended approval of these reports to be submitted to the
Board of Trustees for consideration at their meeting on May 10, 2023.

o Staff presented the first version of the FY 23-24 budget as well as an update on
financial activities for FY 21-22 Finance Director, Richard Arrow reviewed in
detail
the estimate of carryover fund balance into FY 23-24. It was noted that the surplus
was agreed that at this time would be added to the Real Estate Acquisition Reserve
for use relative to the construction project at 1215 N. Carolan. Highlights of budget
assumptions relative to FY 23-24 were explained to committee members. Chairman
Brutschy led a discussion on the idea of increasing the Special Benefit Assessment
included in FY 23-24 to a greater amount other than 5% of what was recommended.
It was finally agreed that the 5% increase would be used at this time. In addition,
Chairman Brutschy discussed on the possibility of budgeting Excess ERAF since the
revenue is not “guaranteed” but subject to changes by state law. The Finance
Committee recommended that we continue to budget this significant revenue source
until there is a justifiable reason to change current practice.

e The first draft of the District’s Engineers Report applicable to FY 23-24 along with
the accompanying Board resolution was presented and discussed. It was agreed that
the draft of the FY 23-24 Engineer’s report would be recommended for approval by
the Board of Trustees.

e Staff recommended reserve levels to be allocated by June 30, 2023. Discussion
ensued that any surplus of District funds as of June 30, would be allocated to the
Real Property Acquisition Reserve for use on behalf of construction costs of 1215
N. Carolan, Burlingame.
1|Page



San Mateo County MVCD
Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

e The Committee discussed the District joining the Fire Risk Management
Services joint powers agreement. This will replace the current JPA with the Fire
Districts Association of California Employment Benefits Association. Staff noted
that this Joint Powers Association name change only. There will be no change in
fringe benefit structure or costs or liabilities associated with entering into the new
agreement. The Finance Committee recommended that the Joint Powers
Agreement be forwarded to the Board of Trustees for approval.

e District Staff discussed and recommended that purchases of Larvicide Oil, and I
Pads for the Operations Division be forwarded to the Board of Trustees for
approval. In addition, recommended that contracts with the City of San Mateo
for rodent control services and Ag-Air for mosquito control application services
be approved by Board of Trustees.

2|Page



1351 Rollins Road

SMAONSF‘QAﬁ‘;EO@ C{,%g?g: Burlingame, CA 94010

&

CONTROL DISTRICT e (650) 344-3843

Protecting public health since 1916 www.smcmvced.org
Item 7B

Monthly Financial Report
Month Ending March 31, 2023

Staff Recommendation: Motion to recommend approval of the March 31, 2023, Financial Report.

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance

Total revenues received from July 1 through March 31, 2023 (YTD) were $ 4.5 million; total expenditures YTD
were $ 4.3 million, and the change in fund balance was S 215,811 thousand. The District had
S 8.6 million in cash available in County Treasury.

General Capital Total
Fund Fund Funds

Beginning Fund Balance 7/1/2022: $ 8,001,587 $ 749,944 $ 8,751,531
Revenues/Resources $ 4,515,413 § 7,044 $ 4,522,457
Due To (From) Funds $ (276,044) $ 276,044 $ -
Expenditures $ 4,107,794 $ 198,853 $ 4,306,647
Change in Fund Balance 131,575 84,236 $ 215,811
* Ending Fund Balance $ 8,133,162 $ 834,180 $ 8,967,341
* Components of Fund Balance:
Nonspendable (Inventory) $ 143,930.00 $ - $  143,930.00
Assigned (Capital Improvements) - 834,180 834,180
Public Health Emergency Fund 800,000 - 800,000
Natural Disaster Emergency Fund 650,000 - 650,000
Real Property Acquisiton Fund 1,134,670 - 1,134,670
Debt Service Repayment Fund 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Unrestricted Fund Balance 4,404,562 - 4,404,562
Total $ 8,133,162 $ 834,180 $ 8,967,341

Budget Variances

Revenues

Actual revenues received through March 31, 2023, were over budget by $ 455,759 resulting from the receipt
of a portion of excess ERAF in August 2022 (S 574,500), as well as timing differences of other revenue

sources.




1351 Rollins Road

SMAg]sgﬁ;EOO&%?ng; Burlingame, CA 94010
CONTROL DISTRICT P et 31

Protecting public health since 1916 www.smcmvced.org

Expenditures

Expenditures through March 31, 2023, were under budget by $ 646,634 primarily due to the timing of
expenditures contained in the table below:

Over/ % of YTD
Budget Category Under | Variance Budget Explanation
New employees costs under budgeted
Salaries & Wages Under 548,978 97.8% |positions.
Employee Benefits Over $41,813| 106.0% |Increase of expenditures over budget
Administration Under $136,381| 64.4% |UnspentHR, professional and legal services
Unspent consulting and timing of hardware,
Computer Hardware & Software | Under $23,688| 54.3% |and Map Vision licensing expenditures
Timing of pesticide and helicoptor
Operations Under $24,541| 87.5% |expenditures
Laboratory Under $27,496| 57.4% |Timing of Laboratory expenditures
Public Qutreach Under $25,859| 72.6% |Timing of media and promotion expenditures
Capital Improvements Under $358,649| 35.7% |Timing of building improvement exp.

The Board’s budget level of control is at the category level, for example Salaries, Benefits, Admin.,
Operations, etc. The above table provides explanations for variances over $15,000.

Questions

Please direct all inquiries related to this financial reporting package to the District Manager, Brian Weber,
before the board meeting to allow for adequate research. He can be reached at the District office at
(650) 344-8592 or via email at bweber@smcmvcd.org.

Approval

This month’s financial statements are fairly presented. The District Manager and Finance Director approved
all disbursements and the monthly bank reconciliation. A Board Officer and the District Manager signed all
checks.



mailto:bweber@smcmvcd.org

SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO & VECTOR
CONTROL DISTRICT

Protecting public health since 1916

1351 Rollins Road
Burlingame, CA 94010

phone (650) 344-8592
fax (650) 344-3843

www.smcmvcd.org

Attachments:

1. Statement of Financial Position/Balance Sheet

2. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance

3. Budget Variance Reports

Month
YTD
YTD compared with adopted budget.

4, Accounts Receivable Aging Summary

On the March 2023 summary, accounts receivable outstanding greater than 90 days total is $ 0.

Currently, accounts receivable total $ $3,399.

5. Cash Activity & Reconciliation to County

The District’s accounting system is fully reconciled with the County statement.

6. Payroll Disbursement

All payroll disbursements were made to employees and trustees for their monthly stipends. All

employees were paid per District salary and wage schedule and longevity policies.

7. Check Detail

This month, the District wrote General Fund checks numbers from 22521 to 22581. Last month’s
check number ended at 22520. All checks written were to vendors on account, retired employees, or

reimbursements to current employees, per District policy. In March 2023, 61 checks written from
the General Fund totaled $ 209,082.46. In addition, the District wrote 1 check from the Capital Fund

totaling $ 3,588.49 (check number 1101).

8. Purchase Card Report and Bank Statement

All card purchases for the month were from commercial vendors and met the District purchase card

policy. A copy of the purchase card bank statement is attached. Also, descriptions of all purchases

from Amazon are included in the attached detailed purchase card transactions report.




San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District
Balance Sheet

As of Mar 31, 2023 Total General Capital
Mar 31, 23 Fund Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1010 - Cash-County Treasury-GF x2706 7,752,685 7,752,685
1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 (67,257) (67,257)
1020 - Cash-County Treasury-CPF x2705 833,640 833,640
1025 - Checking -Union Bank - CPF x6913 - -
1016 - County Funds - FMV (259,384) (259,924) 540
1030 - Petty Cash 400 400
1035 - PARS Pension Rate Stabilization 110,183 110,183
Total Checking/Savings 8,370,268 7,536,088 834,180
Accounts Receivable
1100 - Accounts Receivable 4,135 4,135
1105 - Interest Receivable - - -
Total Accounts Receivable 4,135 4,135 -
Other Current Assets
1220 - VCJPA-Member Contingency Fund 469,114 469,114
1230 - Pesticide Inventory 176,476 176,476
Total Other Current Assets 645,590 645,590 -
Total Current Assets 9,019,993 8,185,814 834,180
TOTAL ASSETS 9,019,993 8,185,814 834,180

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 - Accounts Payable 52,652 52,652 -
Total Accounts Payable 52,652 52,652 -
Credit Cards

1040 - US Bank Purchase Card - -
Total Credit Cards - - -
Other Current Liabilities

2200 - Accrued Wages - -
Total Other Current Liabilities - - -

Total Current Liabilities 52,652 52,652 -
Total Liabilities 52,652 52,652 -
Fund Balance
Beginning Fund Balance, 7/1/2022 8,751,531 8,001,587 749,944
Due To (From) Funds - (276,044) 276,044
Revenues Over Expenditures 215,811 407,619 (191,808)
Ending Fund Balance * 8,967,341 8,133,162 834,180
TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 9,019,993 8,185,814 834,180

* COMPONENTS OF ENDING FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable (Inventory) 143,930 143,930 -
Assigned (Capital Improvements) 834,180 - 834,180
Public Health Emergency Fund 800,000 800,000 -
Natural Disaster Emergency Fund 650,000 650,000 -
Real Property Acquisiton Fund 1,134,670 1,134,670 -
Debt Service Repayment Fund 1,000,000 1,000,000 -
Unrestricted Fund Balance (Includes Working Capital) 4,404,562 4,404,562 -
Total Fund Balance 8,967,341 8,133,162 834,180

Page 1 of 30



Statement of Revenues, Expenditures Budget vs. Actual
July 2022 through June 2023

Month of Report:
Mar, 2023

GENERAL FUND:

Ordinary Revenues/Expenditures

Revenues

Total 4000 -
Total 4100 -
Total 4200 -
Total 4300 -

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Total 5000 -
Total 5100 -
Total 5200 -
Total 5300 -
Total 5400 -
Total 5450 -
Total 5500 -
Total 5550 -
Total 5600 -
Total 5700 -
Total 5800 -
Total 5900 -

Total 6500 -

PROGRAM REVENUES
PROPERTY TAX REVENUES
OTHER TAX REVENUES
OTHER REVENUES

SALARIES & WAGES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
TRAINING - BOARD & STAFF
ADMINISTRATION
INSURANCE

COMPUTER HARDWARE & SOFTWARE
FACILITIES MAINTENANCE
UTILITIES

FLEET MAINTENANCE
OPERATIONS

LABORATORY

PUBLIC OUTREACH

DEBT SERVICE

Total Expenditures

General Fund Net Revenues Over Expenditures

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND:

Total 6000 -
Total 6000 -

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS REVENUE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS EXPENDITURES

Capital Improvement Fund Net Revenue Over Expenditures

Annual YTD Annual YTD YTD Monthly Monthly Monthly
Budget Actual Variance % Budget Variance % Budget Actual Variance %
2,452,750 1,579,326 (873,424) 64.4% 1,588,653 (9,327) 99.4% 115,385 117,195 1,810 101.6%
3,197,480 2,177,068  (1,020,412)  68.1% 2,118,914 58,154  102.7% 157,599 167,700 10,101  106.4%
841,578 706,733 (134,845) 84.0% 225,000 481,733 314.1% - - - 0.0%
187,848 52,285 (135,563)  27.8% 127,087 (74,802)  41.1% 31,250 506 (30,744) 1.6%
| 6,679,656 4,515,413 (2,164,243) 67.6% 4,059,654 455,759 111.2% 304,234 285,401 (18,833) 93.8%|
3,031,167 2,174,492 856,675 71.7% 2,223,290 (48,798) 97.8% 332,424 330,499 (1,925) 99.4%
887,416 743,670 143,746  83.8% 701,857 41,813 106.0% 61,853 50,639 (11,214) 81.9%
87,973 54,096 33,877 61.5% 64,911 (10,815) 83.3% 19,804 4,235 (15,569) 21.4%
593,988 247,021 346,967 41.6% 383,402 (136,381)  64.4% 49,445 13,671 (35,774) 27.6%
143,254 138,306 4,948 96.5% 143,254 (4,948) 96.5% - - - 0.0%
70,365 28,106 42,259 39.9% 51,794 (23,688)  54.3% 3,036 1,269 (1,767) 41.8%
51,547 36,060 15,487 70.0% 38,659 (2,599) 93.3% 4,296 4,821 525 112.2%
77,617 50,054 27,563 64.5% 58,210 (8,156)  86.0% 6,469 5,427 (1,043) 83.9%
59,891 40,307 19,584 67.3% 44,918 (4,611) 89.7% 4,991 1,988 (3,003) 39.8%
262,067 172,009 90,058 65.6% 196,550 (24,541) 87.5% 21,839 62,150 40,311 284.6%
85,668 37,073 48,595 43.3% 64,569 (27,496) 57.4% 7,033 3,858 (3,175) 54.9%
125,820 68,506 57,314 54.4% 94,365 (25,859)  72.6% 10,485 10,309 (176) 98.3%
330,000 318,094 11,906 96.4% 330,000 11,906 96.4% - - - 0.0%
| 5,806,773 4,107,794 (1,698,979) 70.7% 4,395,779 (287,985) 93.4% 521,675 488,867 (32,808) 93.7%|
| 872,883 407,619 (465,264) (336,125) 743,744 (217,441)  (203,466) 13,975 |
- 7,044 (7,044) 0.0% - 7,044 0.0% - - - 0.0%
2,007,554 198,853 1,808,701 9.9% 557,502 (358,649) 35.7% 4,166 3,615 (551) 86.8%
| (2,007,554) (191,808) 1,815,746 (557,502) 365,694 (4,166) (3,615) 551 |




San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

A/R Aging Summary
As of March 1, 2023

City of Pacifica Public Works Wastewater
City of San Francisco, Public Utilities
City of San Mateo, Wastewater Treatment
City of South San Francisco Water Quality
San Francisco Int'l Airport
Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside
Silicon Valley Clean Water

TOTAL

San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

A/R Aging Summary
As of April 26, 2023

City of Pacifica Public Works Wastewater
City of San Francisco, Public Utilities
City of San Mateo, Wastewater Treatment
San Francisco Int'l Airport
Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside
Silicon Valley Clean Water

TOTAL

03/31/2023
Current 1-30 31-60 61 - 90 > 90 TOTAL
0.00 156.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 156.16
0.00 1,512.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,512.99
0.00 168.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 168.06
0.00 168.06 84.03 0.00 0.00 252.09
0.00 1,237.21 886.88 0.00 0.00 2,124.09
0.00 156.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 156.16
0.00 327.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 327.80
0.00 3,726.44 970.91 0.00 0.00 4,697.35
04/26/2023
Current 1-30 31-60 61 -90 > 90 TOTAL
0.00 78.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.08
0.00 512.45 735.19 0.00 0.00 1,247.64
0.00 84.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.03
0.00 1,818.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,818.10
0.00 78.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 78.08
0.00 93.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 93.47
0.00 2,664.21 735.19 0.00 0.00 3,399.40

Page 11 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District GF-Mar
Cash Activity & Reconciliation to County Statement 2023

General Fund
March 31, 2023

Beginning Cash per District as of Feb 28, 2023 7,904,611
Reductions
Payroll Related (ADP) (289,917)
Checks Written (209,082)
County FY22-23 Accounting Fees (6,088)
Bank Fee (58)
Total Reductions (505,146)
Additions
Quarterly Interest -
Abatement Services 3,310
Property Tax Revenue 167,700
ERAF Rebate -
RDA/RPTTF -
Special Benefit Assessment 89,992
Special Mosquito Tax 24,455
Misc Deposit 506
Total Additions 285,963
Ending Cash per District as of Mar 31, 2023 7,685,429
Cash per County General Fund Statement 7,685,429
Difference -
COUNTY OF SAN MATEO Verbose [DETAILED TRIAL BALANCE] 03,/01/2023-03/31/2023 Page 2

WED, APR 12, 2023, 9:53 BAM --req: VALENCIR--leg: GL JL--loc: CONTROL---job:16146211 J7535---prog: GLS01 «1.86»--report id: GLTBALOL

SORT ORDER: SUB ACCT within SUB UNIT

SELECT ORG SUB UNIT: 02705-02706

Lg SUB UNIT Title Director 5t Tr FDGP FUND SUE FUND DEPT DIVISICON SECTICN PROGRAM BUDGZET
GL 02706 County Mosquito Rbatemen Controcller ) 07 02706 02706 00140 o0ooon ooooo 00000 00000
SUB ACCT Date primary Ref. Transaction Description Debit Credit Balance
0111 Claim on Cash Prior to 03/01/23 11,881,564.31 3,976,553.01 7,904,611.30
03/15/23 JES3421% AutoID: JZE315E3 Job: 16105 JE 0.00 &,088.30 7,858,523.00
03/16/23 RJ1SCFT2 Daily cash Fleoat Tsfr-op Fd JE L, 454.24 0.00 7,904,017.24
03/20/23 JE534337 RutoID: JME320A3 Job: 16101 JE 0.00 57.94 7,903,959.30
03/28/23 SpPS3zel RutoID: ITX32BA3 Job: 16110 JE 7,097.34 0.00 7,911,056.64
03/28/23 RJ1SCFT2 Daily Cash Float Tsfr-op Fd JE 2,339.23 0.00 7,913,385,87
03/30/23 SEC3303 RutoID: ITX330A3 Job: 16089 JE 266,994.00 0.00 8,180,389.87
03/30/23 UCP3303 RutoID: ITX330E3 Job: 16092 JE 0.00 571.12 8,17%,818.75
03/30/23 UCC3303 RutoID: ITX330C3 Job: 16092 JE 4, 609.60 0.00 8,184 428.35
03/31/23 JES34%05 AutcoID: JRV403A3 Job: 16134 JE 0.00 498,59%59.61 7,685,428.74
DR * SUR ACCT Total * 12,168,058, 72+ 4,482 ££9.98% 7,685, 428 T4+

Page 12



San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District CPF-Mar
Cash Activity & Reconciliation to County Statement 2023

Capital Project Fund
March 31, 2023

Beginning Cash per District as of Feb 28, 2023 837,254
Reductions
Checks Written (3,588)
Bank Fee (26)
Transfer-Out to General Fund -
Total Reductions (3,615)
Additions

Quarterly Interest -
Transfer-In from General Fund -

Total Additions -

Ending Cash per District as of Mar 31, 2023 833,640
Cash per County Capital Project Fund Statement 833,640
Difference -
COUNTY COF SAN MATEO verbose [DETAILED TRIAL EALANCE] 03/01/2023-03/31/2023 Page 1

WED, APR 12, 2023, 9:53 AM --req: VALENCIR--leg: GL JL--loc: CONTROL---job:16146211 J75395---prog: GLS01 <1.Bé&>--report id: GLTBALOL
SORT ORDER: SUB ACCT within SUB UNIT

SELECT ORG SUE UNIT: 02705-02706

Lg SUB UMIT Title Director st Tr FDGP FUND SUB FUND DEPT DIVISION SECTION PROGRAM BUDZET
GL 02705 SMC Mosg Abate-CP Proj F controller A 07 02705 02705 00140 ooooo o0oo0o o0oo0o o0oo0o
SUB ACCT Date Primary Ref. Transaction Description Debit Credit Balance
0111 claim on cash Prior to 03/01/23 1,032,492,.33 195,238.00 B37,254.33
03/20/23 JE534337 RutolID: JME320A3 Job: 16101 JE 0.00 26.17 B37,228.16
03/31/23 JE534905 AutolD: JRV403A3 Job: 16134 JE 0.00 3,588.49 833,639.67
DR * SUB ACCT Total * 1,032,492.33% 198,852.66% B33,639.67*

Page 13



San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District

ADP Payroll Disbursement
March 31, 2023

March 3, 2023

March 17, 2023

March 31, 2023

Payroll ACH Disbursement (including Net Pay & Taxes )

Total Net Pay 70,249 71,256 76,038
Federal W/H Tax 13,225 13,340 14,922
Social Security Tax - 174 -
Medicare 3,151 3,191 3,181
CA W/H Tax 5,473 5,493 6,211
CA SUI/DI 1,041 1,077 987
Total 93,139 94,531 101,339
ADP Process Fee PPE 1/28, 2/11 & 2/25 245 300 241
ADP Time & Attendance - 122 -
Total amount for the period 93,383 94,954 101,580
Total amount for the month: 289,917

Footnotes:

A. Social Security expenditure incurred for seasonal employees and Trustees stipends

Mar
2023

Footnotes:




San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

GF-Mar

Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount
22521 03/09/2023 Charles P. Hansen Retiree Health Insurance Reimb-Mar '23 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -580.68
03012023 03/01/2023 Retiree Health Insurance Reimb-Mar '23 5160 - Retirees - HRA & Medical Reimb 580.68
TOTAL 580.68
22522 03/09/2023 Dennis J Jewell Retiree Health Insurance Reimb-Mar '23 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -580.68
03012023 03/01/2023 Retiree Health Insurance Reimb-Mar '23 5160 - Retirees - HRA & Medical Reimb 580.68
TOTAL 580.68
22523 03/09/2023 Great-West Life & Annuity Co Group No. 98368 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -6,515.01
02252023 02/25/2023 Employee Deferred Comp PPE 02/25/2023 5185 - Actives - Deferred Compensation 6,515.01
TOTAL 6,515.01
22524 03/09/2023 San Mateo County Retirement Assoc SM M.A.D. 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -21,732.41
02252023 02/25/2023 Employee Contribution Pay Period 02/12/2023-02/25/2023 5115 - Retirement - Employee Contribut 9,378.97
Employer Contribution Pay Period 02/12/2023-02/25/2023 5110 - Retirement - Employer Contribut 12,353.44
TOTAL 21,732.41
22525 03/09/2023 U.S. Bank PARS Account # 6746022 Agency Name: San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District PF 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -572.18
6746022400-PP2-2 02/25/2023 Alternate Retirement System for Richard Arrow PPE 02/25/2023 5116 - Alternate Retire-Employee Contr 572.18
TOTAL 572.18
22526 03/09/2023 Aim To Please Janitorial Services Invoice #58 - Feb 2023 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -2,628.25
58 02/28/2023 1351 Rollins Janitorial Services-Feb 2023 5340 - Janitorial/Household Expense 1,200.00
1415 N Carolan Janitorial Services 5340 - Janitorial/Household Expense 325.00
1415 N Carolan Restroom Cleaning 5340 - Janitorial/Household Expense 108.25
Floor Refinishing/Tech Room 2/18/23 5340 - Janitorial/Household Expense 995.00
TOTAL 2,628.25
22527 03/09/2023 Airgas Dry Ice 4317638 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -533.02

Page 15 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Mar
Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount
9135047423 02/14/2023 Dry Ice (200 Ibs) 5820 - Dry Ice 266.61
135490712 03/09/2023 Dry Ice (200 Ibs) 5820 - Dry Ice 266.41
TOTAL 533.02
22528 03/09/2023 Amazon Capital Services Account # ARX6UTA334C06 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -2,275.47
17GX-VWGV-4GD 02/28/2023 Shop tools 5610 - Garage Tools 501.91
Fleet maintenance supplies 5620 - Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 358.81
Drone trailer supplies 5630 - Ops Equipment & Repairs 527.44
Boggs and belts for techs 5725 - Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 289.71
Mosquito fish pond maint supplies 5730 - Mosquito Fish 110.66
Lab supplies 5805 - Disease Surveillance 199.26
Outreach school supplies, less $72.42 Return Cr 5910 - Media and Network 287.68
TOTAL 2,275.47
22529 03/09/2023 Cintas Corporation #464 Payer #15914933 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -562.84
15914933 Feb-202 02/28/2023 Uniform Services 02/01/23 Inv #4145315172 5725 - Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 189.58
Uniform Services 02/08/23 Inv #4145899705 5725 - Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 124.42
Uniform Services 02/15/23 Inv #4146591262 5725 - Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 124.42
Uniform Services 02/22/23 Inv #4147410827 5725 - Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 124.42
TOTAL 562.84
22530 03/09/2023 City of Burlingame, Water 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -954.54
53-310176-Feb23  02/23/2023 Fireline 12/27/22-02/22/23 5565 - Water 13.15
53-133346-Feb23  02/23/2023 1 1/2 Inch 12/27/22-02/22/23 5565 - Water 583.06
53-485494-Feb23 ( 02/23/2023 1 Inch meter 12/27/22-02/22/23-1415 N. Carolan Ave 5565 - Water 204.39
53-310184-Feb23  02/23/2023 3/4 Inch 12/27/22-02/22/23 5565 - Water 153.94
TOTAL 954.54
22531 03/09/2023 Comcast AIC #8155200280283815 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -169.33
815520028028381: 03/03/2023 Business Internet 03/08/23-04/07/23 (1351 Rollins) 5575 - Phone - Land Line-AT&T/Comcast 169.33
TOTAL 169.33

Page 16 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

GF-Mar

Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount
22532 03/09/2023 Compu-Data, Inc. Inv #64148 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,366.50
64148 01/17/2023 SonicWall Gateway Security Suite 1Yr (PO 02706-1851) 5460 - Computer Hardware 715.84
Advanced Gateway Security Suite 5460 - Computer Hardware 650.66
TOTAL 1,366.50
22533 03/09/2023 Eco Medical Inc. Invoice #17115 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -104.00
17115 02/28/2023 28 Gal. Bio-waste container pick-up - Feb 2023 5830 - Lab Biowaste Disposal 104.00
TOTAL 104.00
22534 03/09/2023 FDAC EBA 51 - SMCMVCD Billing Period Mar-2023 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -34,268.18
FDAC0423-SMCM  03/08/2023 Medical Insurance for Apr-2023 5125 - Actives - Medical Insurance 30,107.88
Dental Insurance 5135 - Actives - Dental Insurance 2,754.18
Vision 5145 - Actives - Vision Insurance 482.02
Hartford Group Life 5150 - Group Life Insurance 104.50
Dental-Rachel Jan-Mar 5135 - Actives - Dental Insurance 701.19
Vision-Rachel Jan-Mar 5145 - Actives - Vision Insurance 118.41
TOTAL 34,268.18
22535 03/09/2023 Flyers Energy, LLC Account 700895 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,418.92
CFS-3345273 02/28/2023 Fuels 02/16/2023-02/28/2023 5735 - Fuel 1,418.92
TOTAL 1,418.92
22536 03/09/2023 Harrington Industrial Plastics LLC  Inv #003S4899 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -108.24
00354899 02/22/2023 Gasket for BVA Tank 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 108.24
TOTAL 108.24
22537 03/09/2023 Home Depot A/C #6035-3225-3190-9392 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -42.80
603532253190939. 02/21/2023 Bldg maint tools and ant baits 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 42.80
TOTAL 42.80

Page 17 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Mar
Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount
22538 03/09/2023 Kone Inc. Customer #N191941 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,853.40
962466428 03/01/2023 Elevator Maintenance 03/01/2023-05/31/2023 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 1,548.84
Emergency Monitoring & Wireless Service 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 304.56
TOTAL 1,853.40
22539 03/09/2023 Napa Auto Parts A/C #5644 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -28.11
153432 02/24/2023 Fog light bulb for Nissan Frontier 5620 - Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 28.11
TOTAL 28.11
22540 03/09/2023 O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Customer #1275593 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -499.67
2581-Stmt 02/28/2: 02/28/2023 Fleet maintenance supply 5620 - Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 88.38
Snow Chains (2) to Reno AMCA Annl Conf 5630 - Ops Equipment & Repairs 411.29
TOTAL 499.67
22541 03/09/2023 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Servi 0076-7976-00-4 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -209.35
3105978966 02/25/2023 Postage meter rental 01/01/23-03/31/23 5380 - Copier and postage 209.35
TOTAL 209.35
22542 03/09/2023 Quench USA, Inc. AIC #D322868 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -205.00
INV05410941 03/01/2023 Water Dispenser Rental - Mar 2023 5335 - Office Expense 205.00
TOTAL 205.00
22543 03/09/2023 Recology San Mateo County A/C #731001072 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -456.00
48863427 02/27/2023 Garbage Service - Feb 2023 5340 - Janitorial/Household Expense 456.00
TOTAL 456.00
22544 03/09/2023 San Mateo Daily Journal Account #3560 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -3,032.00
3560 02/23/2023 Outreach to report water under houses - 2/2-2/17/2023 (PO#02706-1853) 5910 - Media and Network 3,032.00

Page 18 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

GF-Mar

Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount
TOTAL 3,032.00
22545 03/09/2023 Spark Creative Design Inv #2739 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -800.00
2739 03/04/2023 District brochures, annual report & CASPER setup 5910 - Media and Network 800.00
TOTAL 800.00
22546 03/09/2023 Streamline Invoice No: 112D6F75-0025 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -370.00
112D6F75-0025 03/01/2023 Streamline Web 3/1/2023-4/1/2023 5475 - Website Hosting / Microsoft 370.00
TOTAL 370.00
22547 03/09/2023 The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co. AIC #632593-0001 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,180.41
184-1098435 02/27/2023 2 sets of tires for CB Jeeps (PO#02706-1860) 5620 - Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 1,180.41
TOTAL 1,180.41
22548 03/09/2023 Tick Key International Invoice #4043582 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -5,250.00
202336 02/15/2023 Tick Keys & logo engraving (Qty 1500) (P.O. #02706-1857) 5910 - Media and Network 5,250.00
TOTAL 5,250.00
22549 03/09/2023 Verizon Wireless AIC #271667168-00001 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,361.17
9928659475 02/26/2023 Services for period 01/27/23-02/26/23 (CalNet) 5580 - Phone - Mobile Devices-Verizon 1,361.17
TOTAL 1,361.17
22550 03/09/2023 U.S. Bank 4246-0445-5564-6391 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -12,406.13
02222023 02/22/2023 District Credit Card Payment PE 02/22/2023 1040 - US Bank Purchase Card 12,406.13
TOTAL 12,406.13
22551 03/23/2023 Great-West Life & Annuity Co Group No. 98368 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -6,515.01
03112023 03/11/2023 Employee Deferred Comp PPE 03/11/2023 5185 - Actives - Deferred Compensation 6,515.01
TOTAL 6,515.01

Page 19 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

GF-Mar

Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount
22552 03/23/2023 San Mateo County Retirement Assoc SM M.A.D. 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -21,732.42
03/11/2023 03/11/2023 Employee Contribution Pay Period 02/26/2023-03/11/2023 5115 - Retirement - Employee Contribut 9,378.97
Employer Contribution Pay Period 03/26/2023-03/11/2023 5110 - Retirement - Employer Contribut 12,353.45
TOTAL 21,732.42
22553 03/23/2023 U.S. Bank PARS Account # 6746022: Agency Name: San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District PF 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -572.18
6746022400-PP3-* 03/11/2023 Alternate Retirement System for Richard Arrow PPE 03/11/2023 5116 - Alternate Retire-Employee Contr 572.18
TOTAL 572.18
22554 03/23/2023 Adapco, Inc. Cust #20200 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -33,849.57
133644 03/17/2023 Metalarv S-PT 40LB bag (Qty 26) (P.O. #02706-1858) 5705 - Pesticides 33,849.57
TOTAL 33,849.57
22555 03/23/2023 American Fidelity Assurance Payor: 56840 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -457.98
D570601 03/20/2023 Life/Acc/Cancer EE Insurance for Mar-2023 5170 - Actives - Other Benefits 457.98
TOTAL 457.98
22556 03/23/2023 Angela Nakano 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -323.36
MVCAC-P.Diem-3/ 03/21/2023 Per Diem @ MVCAC Spring Mtg 3/21-3/22/2023 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 103.50
MVCAC-Hotel-3/21 03/22/2023 Hotel @ MVCAC Spring Mtg 3/21-3/22/2023 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 219.86
TOTAL 323.36
22557 03/23/2023 Bay Alarm A/C #4676626; Inv# 20412180 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -614.25
20412180 03/15/2023 Security Alarm Monitoring 04/01/23-06/30/23 (1351 Rollins Rd) 5385 - Security and fire alarm 614.25
TOTAL 614.25
22558 03/23/2023 Califonia Municipal Treasurers Assa Invoice #200004269 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -325.00
200004269 03/21/2023 2023 CDIAC & CMTA's Public Funds Investing (R. Arrow) 5220 - Staff Training 325.00

Page 20 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District GF-Mar
Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount
TOTAL 325.00
22559 03/23/2023 Clarke Mosquito Control Products, | Customer # 002486 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -23,058.42
5103587 03/15/2023 Natular G30 Granule 40lb bg (25 Bags) (P.O. #02706-1859) 5705 - Pesticides 21,240.48
Natular G 40Ib bg (5 Bags) 5705 - Pesticides 1,817.94
TOTAL 23,058.42
22560 03/23/2023 Colorprint 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -743.80
32906 03/07/2023 Tick rack cards 2 versions - 1,000 ea 5910 - Media and Network 410.00
32905 03/07/2023 Tick kit cards (1,000) 5910 - Media and Network 227.06
32968 03/14/2023 Employee name badges (7) 5910 - Media and Network 106.74
TOTAL 743.80
22561 03/23/2023 Comcast AIC #8155200280658818 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -179.28
815520028065881 03/15/2023 Business Internet 03/20/23-04/19/23 (1415 N Carolan) 5575 - Phone - Land Line-AT&T/Comcast 179.28
TOTAL 179.28
22562 03/23/2023 Compu-Data, Inc. Inv #64215 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -402.87
64215 03/14/2023 Govt 1 Yr Rnwl Protection Essen'tl Clouds-on-Prem (22 Lic) 5465 - Computer Software 262.87
Acquire, register and activate contract (1hr) 5455 - |IT Consulting - Compu-Data 140.00
TOTAL 402.87
22563 03/23/2023 County San Mateo - Human Resourc Invoice: SD20-071 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -880.00
SD20-071 03/22/2023 Writing for the Workplace Training (11) 5220 - Staff Training 880.00
TOTAL 880.00
22564 03/23/2023 David Allen Per Diem @ AMCA Annl Mtg 2/27-3/3/2023 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -310.50
AMCA_mtg-2/27-3, 03/21/2023 Per Diem @ AMCA Annl Mtg 2/27-3/3/2023 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 310.50
TOTAL 310.50

Page 21 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

GF-Mar

Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount
22565 03/23/2023 Flowers Electric & Service Co., Inc. Customer #1798 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -675.93
22212027 03/14/2023 Repair lighting in main lobby 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 675.93
TOTAL 675.93
22566 03/23/2023 Flyers Energy, LLC Account 700895 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -2,098.44
CFS-3356077 03/15/2023 Fuels 03/01/2023-03/15/2023 5735 - Fuel 2,098.44
TOTAL 2,098.44
22567 03/23/2023 Fusion, LLC Customer No. 3789973 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -537.01
9657697 03/16/2023 Phone System Apr-2023 5570 - Phone - VOIP - Fusion/MegaPath 537.01
TOTAL 537.01
22568 03/23/2023 Grainger 809934680 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,399.93
7108480703 03/05/2023 Building repair & maint supply 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 350.01
Truck key fob batteries 5620 - Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 13.96
Water jusgs for Ops 5630 - Ops Equipment & Repairs 80.34
Safety supplies for Ops 5720 - Safety Equipment 232.53
Hip waders 5725 - Apparel - Uniforms & Boots 95.78
Respirators & labels for rodent survey 5805 - Disease Surveillance 627.31
TOTAL 1,399.93
22569 03/23/2023 Heluna Health AIC #26001, Inv #2108069 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,372.00
2108069 03/08/2023 Chicken Sera Testing FY2023-70% (Qty: 137.20 x $10) 5810 - Sentinel Chicken Flocks/Supply 1,372.00
TOTAL 1,372.00
22570 03/23/2023 Irena Gilligan Reimb Exp @ MVCAC Conf 1/29/23-2/1/23 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -354.75
MVCAC-1/29-2/1/2 03/16/2023 Reimb Exp @ MVCAC Conf 1/29/23-2/1/23 5210 - Conferences / Workshops Board 354.75
TOTAL 354.75
22571 03/23/2023 James Barry Inv #593155 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -150.00

Page 22 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

GF-Mar

Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount
593155 03/18/2023 Fish pond maintenance 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 150.00
TOTAL 150.00
22572 03/23/2023 Jarvis Fay LLP Invoice 17393 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -2,536.50
17393 02/28/2023 Board Matters (8.9 hrs) - Legal Services thru Feb-2023 5350 - Legal Services 2,536.50
TOTAL 2,536.50
22573 03/23/2023 Lampire Biological Laboratories, Inc A/C # SANMAT 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -349.00
462657 03/07/2023 Chicken Blood (PO# 02076-1847) 5815 - Mosquito Blood 349.00
TOTAL 349.00
22574 03/23/2023 MVCAC Inv #7364003 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -147.00
7364003 03/13/2023 N. Red Leg Horn Chickens (Qty 14) 5810 - Sentinel Chicken Flocks/Supply 147.00
TOTAL 147.00
22575 03/23/2023 PG&E 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -3,035.53
5584709654-6 Fet 02/27/2023 1351 Rollins Site 01/27/2023-02/27/2023 5560 - Gas & Electricity - PG&E 2,314.54
5594119880-0 Feb 02/27/2023 PGE Elec & Gas for 1415 N Carolan 01/27/23-02/27/2023 5560 - Gas & Electricity - PG&E 720.99
TOTAL 3,035.53
22576 03/23/2023 Public Agency Retirement Services | Customer #SAN400 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -312.12
52686 03/09/2023 PARS Alternate Retirement System Fees PE 01/31/2023 5325 - HR & Finance Consultant 312.12
TOTAL 312.12
22577 03/23/2023 RMT Landscape Contractors, Inc.  Customer #M332 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -790.00
2023033 03/10/2023 Landscape Maintenance Mar-2023 (1351 Rollins Rd) 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 495.00
Landscape Maintenance (1415 N Carolan Ave) 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 295.00
TOTAL 790.00

Page 23 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

GF-Mar

Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Account Original Amount
22578 03/23/2023 World Oil Environmental Services Invoice # 1500-00908804 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -95.00
1500-00908804 03/08/2023 Used oil disposal service 3/1/2023 5620 - Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 95.00
TOTAL 95.00
22579 03/23/2023 Brian Weber Hotel @ MVCAC Annl Conf 1/29/23-2/1/23 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -944.19
MVCAC-1/29-2/1/2 03/23/2023 Hotel @ MVCAC Annl Conf 1/29/23-2/1/23 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 944.19
TOTAL 944.19
22580 03/23/2023 Kathleen A. Martin Reimb Exp @ MVCAC Legislative Days 3/20-3/22/2023 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -658.13
MVCACLegis-3/20- 03/23/2023 Reimb Exp @ MVCAC Legislative Days 3/20-3/22/2023 5210 - Conferences / Workshops Board 658.13
TOTAL 658.13
22581 03/23/2023 California Department of Tax & Fee : SU BH 102-905010 1015 - Checking -Union Bank - GF x9757 -1,598.00
102905010-UseTa: 03/23/2023 OPS Online Purchase Use Tax 5620 - Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile 461.00
LAB Online Purchase Use Tax 5845 - Lab PCR Supplies 154.00
OUTREACH Online Purchase Use Tax 5910 - Media and Network 983.00
TOTAL 1,598.00
CHECK TOTAL 209,082.46

Note: Previous month's check numbers were 22448-22520. Current month's check numbers are 22521-22581 (61 checks).

Page 24 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

GF-Mar

Check Detail 2023
March 2023
Num Date Name Memo Original Amount
1101 03/09/2023 Enterprise FM Trust Customer No. 458563 1025 - Checking -Union Bank -CPF x6913 -3,588.49
FBN4698381 03/03/2023 22NCN8-2018 NISS Frontier- Mar 2023 6030 - Vehicle Leases 298.49
22NCNB-2018 NISS Frontier 6030 - Vehicle Leases 298.49
22NCNF-2018 NISS Frontier 6030 - Vehicle Leases 33.70
22NCNJ-2018 NISS Frontier 6030 - Vehicle Leases 33.70
23CDWEF-2020 Subaru Forester 6030 - Vehicle Leases 318.64
23LVXF-2019 NISS Frontier (Kim) 6030 - Vehicle Leases 405.59
23LW6S-2019 NISS Frontier (Lab) 6030 - Vehicle Leases 455.33
23MVV2-2020 NISS Frontier 6030 - Vehicle Leases 391.87
23MVW3-2020 NISS Frontier 6030 - Vehicle Leases 391.88
25QSHX-2022 FORD Explorer 6030 - Vehicle Leases 492.81
266LKM-2021 RAM 2500 6030 - Vehicle Leases 467.99
TOTAL 3,588.49
CHECK TOTAL 3,588.49

Note: Previous month's check number was 1100. Current month's check number is 1101 (1 check).

Page 25 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District Mar

Credit Card Transaction Detail by Account 2023
March 2023
Type Date Name Memo Split Amount
1040 - US Bank Purchase Card

1045 - US Bank Visa Brian x2315
Credit Card Charge 02/23/2023 Misc-Admin Speedway-Gas for Brian's vehicle to VCJPA mtg in Santa Cruz 2/22 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 70.19
Credit Card Charge 02/23/2023 Misc-Admin Gilda's-Lunch for Brian & Rich-VCJPA mtg in Santa Cruz 2/22 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 61.85
Credit Card Charge 02/23/2023 Misc-Admin Grand Sierra Resort-hotel reserv for Matthew-AMCA conf. 3/1-3/3 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 431.75
Credit Card Charge 02/25/2023 Misc-Admin Grand Sierra Resort-hotel reserv for David-AMCA conf. 3/1-3/3 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 431.75
Credit Card Charge 02/25/2023 Misc-Admin Grand Sierra Resort-hotel reserv for Stephanie-AMCA conf. 3/1-3/3 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 431.75
Credit Card Charge 02/25/2023 Misc-Admin Grand Sierra Resort-hotel reserv for Ryan-AMCA conf. 3/1-3/3 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 431.75
Credit Card Credit 02/25/2023 Misc-Admin Grand Sierra Resort-refund for Vanessa's hotel rm-AMCA conf. 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff -141.25
Credit Card Charge 02/28/2023 Craigslist Job postings for the Vector Control Aide position 5335 - Office Expense 150.00
Credit Card Charge 03/01/2023 Holiday Inns Hotel room for Ryan two nights - AMCA conf. 2/27-3/1 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 207.74
Credit Card Charge 03/01/2023 Holiday Inns Hotel room for Rachel two nights - AMCA conf. 2/27-3/1 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 207.74
Credit Card Charge 03/01/2023 Holiday Inns Hotel room for Matt two nights - AMCA conf. 2/27-3/1 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 207.74
Credit Card Charge 03/01/2023 Holiday Inns Hotel room for Stephanie two nights - AMCA conf. 2/27-3/1 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 207.74
Credit Card Charge 03/01/2023 Holiday Inns Hotel room for David two nights - AMCA conf. 2/27-3/1 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 207.74
Credit Card Charge 03/01/2023 Holiday Inns Hotel room for Vanessa two nights - AMCA conf. 2/27-3/1 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 207.74
Credit Card Charge 03/01/2023 Misc-Admin Original Joe's - Dinner for the March Board Meeting 5305 - Board Meeting Expenses 589.07
Credit Card Credit 03/04/2023 Misc-Admin Grand Sierra Resort - refund for two nights David - AMCA conf. 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff -282.52
Credit Card Credit 03/04/2023 Misc-Admin Grand Sierra Resort - refund for two nights Stephanie - AMCA conf. 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff -282.52
Credit Card Credit 03/04/2023 Misc-Admin Grand Sierra Resort - refund for two nights Ryan - AMCA conf. 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff -282.52
Credit Card Charge 03/20/2023 Misc-Admin La Terraza-Dinner for Brian & Casey-MVCAC spring mtg Sacramento 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 75.08
Credit Card Charge 03/21/2023 Misc-Admin Statehouse Outpost-Dinner Kati, Brian & Casey-MVCAC spring mtg Sacramento 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 66.38
Credit Card Charge 03/21/2023 Uber Ride for Brian and Casey - MVCAC spring meetings Sacramento 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 11.99

Total 1045 - US Bank Visa Brian x2315 3,009.19

1050 - US Bank Visa Admin x5992
Credit Card Charge 02/23/2023 Misc- Outreach Hoot Judkins - shelves for the book cases 5910 - Media and Network 131.70
Credit Card Credit 02/25/2023 Misc-Admin Grand Sierra Resort - refund for one night Matthew - AMCA conf. 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff -141.25
Credit Card Charge 02/27/2023 Intuit Sample check order for two new acct. numbers with US Bank 5335 - Office Expense 91.14
Credit Card Charge 02/27/2023 Intuit Sample check order for two new acct. numbers with US Bank 5335 - Office Expense 91.13
Credit Card Charge 02/28/2023 Best Buy USB to USB data cable for drone 5630 - Ops Equipment & Repairs 32.80
Credit Card Charge 02/28/2023 Mosyle Business Premium license 5465 - Computer Software 30.00
Credit Card Charge 03/07/2023 Cresco Equipment Ren LP for lift truck 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 37.27
Credit Card Charge 03/07/2023 Misc- Ops South Bay Recycling - drop off tree branches and stump from fallen tree 5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint 50.00

Page 26 of 30



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District

Mar

Credit Card Transaction Detail by Account 2023
March 2023

Type Date Name Memo Split Amount
Credit Card Charge 03/08/2023 FasTrak Toll charges for District vehicles 5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff 25.00
Credit Card Charge 03/08/2023 Misc- Outreach L.L. Bean - custom embroidered items for staff 5910 - Media and Network 459.91
Credit Card Charge 03/08/2023 Misc- Outreach L.L. Bean - custom embroidered items for staff 5910 - Media and Network 150.77
Credit Card Charge 03/08/2023 Safeway Store Cookies for March Board Meeting 5305 - Board Meeting Expenses 18.07
Credit Card Charge 03/09/2023 Ebay Replacement chain covers for operations electric cordless chainsaws 5630 - Ops Equipment & Repairs 24.53
Credit Card Charge 03/09/2023 Summit Racing Equipm Large size needles and seats for Airboat carburetor tuning 5630 - Ops Equipment & Repairs 94.21
Credit Card Credit 03/09/2023 Misc- Ops AGspray.com - fillrite pump suction tube for cocobear tank 5630 - Ops Equipment & Repairs -54.74
Credit Card Credit 03/14/2023 Best Buy USB cable for drone 5630 - Ops Equipment & Repairs -32.80
Credit Card Charge 03/14/2023 Rock Auto Replacement airbag clockspring for CB jeep drivers side airbag Credit 362.84
Credit Card Charge 03/14/2023 Craigslist Job postings for seasonal lab assistant position 5335 - Office Expense 150.00
Credit Card Charge 03/20/2023 Zoom Standard pro annual membership 5465 - Computer Software 299.80
Total 1050 - US Bank Visa Admin x5992 1,820.38
4,829.57

TOTAL 1040 - US Bank Purchase Card

Page 27 of 30



34.5% 25-6343 ACCOUNT NUMBER
STATEMENT DATE
AMOUNT DUE

HNEW BALANCE

PAYMENT DUE OM RECEIPT — _—

O e T T SR A A S T T TR TR
OD001547 D1 SP 0.600 106481898135233 P

Mar
2023

SMCMVCD

ATTHN DISTRICT MAMAGER

1351 ROLLINS RD

BURLINGAME CA 94010-2409
U.5. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS
P.0O. BOX 790428
5T. LOUIS, MO &2179-0428

I, 000452457 0004824957

Pleace tear payment coupon 2t perforation.

CORPORATE ACCOUNT SUMMARY
Purchases Cash Lafe

EMCMAD Pravious And Omer Cash Advance Faymeni MNew
] Balance + Charges + Advances = Fees = Charges - Credis - Faymenis | = Ealance
Company Total 312, 406.13 SETERS.42 000 .00 S0.00 51,5935.55 S1Z2406.13 54 83957
CORPORATE ACCOUNT ACTIVITY
SMCMAD TOTAL CORPORATE ACTIVITY
$12. 406 13CR
Post Tram - L
Date Date Reference Mumber Transaction Description Amount
03-21 0319 74TRE263030000D00000974 PAYMENT - THAME YOL 00000 C 1240813 PY
HEW ACTIVITY
CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITY
W 522879 204217 S0.00 51.820.38
Post Tram B L
Date Date Reference Mumber Transaction Description Amount
02-23 02-23 240113430540000056880931 HOOT JUDKINS FURNITURE WWW HOOTJUDKI CA 131.70
02-27 02-25 T4TR4BT ED_?QW-D 0373435 GRAND SIERRA AD‘-.I' DEP 999 ifnfnfE-ElEE MW 141.25 CR
02-28 02-27 24 163053101286670283 INTUIT "CHECKS | FORMS C UIT.COM CA 21.14
0301 02-28 24302003059503012307380 BESTEBUYCOMA0GTASTE4T. iE BBBEIESTEIUT MM 32.80
0301 D2-28 248021683050102056564223 INTUIT "CHECKS ! FORMS CL.NTUIT.COM CA 21.13
ACCOUNT NUMBER ACCOUNT SUMMARY
CUSTOMER SERVICE CALL
PREVIOLUS E.P.LAHI:E 2 405.13
I -
800-344-5696 CITHERCHAHGE.:. 6578542
ITATEMENT DATE HRFUTED AMOUNT | CASH ADWVAMCES it
D223 Do CASH ADVAMNCE FEES L]
LATE FATHRENT
S K]
SEND BILLING INGUIRIES TO: CREDITS 1,835 88
‘G INQUIRE AMOUNT DUE =
U5, Bank Mational Association PAYMEMNTS 2 405.13
Cro s Eancnlg:u Purc:"aslr‘%l:ard Program A4 879.57
Fargo, ND 5812585335 ' ) ACCOUNT BALANCE 4, 829 .57

Page 1 of 3




Mar
2023

Company Mame: SMCMYCD

Corporate Account Nurnl:-er:_

Statement Date: 03-22-2023

HEW ACTIVITY

Post Tran B L

Date Date  Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

03402 03-01 24482163081000003071112 MOSYLE BUS" MOSYLE BUS HTTPSBUSINESS FL 30.00

0309 0307 24321043087046700213344 CRESCO EQUIPMENT RENTALS BURLINGAME CA T

0302 03-08 24431D63087081301BE0933 FASTRAK CSC 415-480-2588 CA 25.00

0309 0308 24787003087535201460600 LLBEAN-DIRECT 207-3854751 ME 45001

0302 03-08 24787003087535201528091 LLBEAMW-DIRECT 207-3854781 ME 150.77

0302 03-07 24841663087021000000113 SOUTH BAY RECY SAN CARLOS CA 50.00

03-10 03-09 24204203003005027024944 EBAY O'0B-08302 M JOSE CA 2453

03-10 03-08 242316B83003337001515335 SAFEWAY #2578 MILLBERAE CA 18.07

03-10 03-09 24445003009000077228753 SUMMIT RACING MAIL ORDER B00-230 242

03-14 D3-09 T4ATES423072730804562501 FIMCO SCHABEM AGSPRAY NORTH SI0UX C 5D 74 CR

03-15 03-14 v43E20030732250030682352 BEST BUY  00DDBT30 COLMA CA 3280 CR

03-15 03-14 24085233073319754722898 ROCK AUTO ROCKAUTC.COM W1 352 .94

03-15 03-14 24802163073102546458775 CRAIGSLIST.ORG 415-308-5200 CA 150.00

03-21 03-20 24011343072000040812452 Z00OM.US 335-720-D688 WWW.Z00OM.US CA 29230

CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITY
51,707 71825 5000 53,00

Post Tran ) L

Date Date Reference Mumber Transaction Description Amount

02-24 02-22 24034543054002455188029 SPEEDWAY 4114 CAMPEBELL CA 70,19

02-24 02-22 24802163054108274260749 TST" GILDAS SAMNTA CRUZ CA 51.85

02-27 02-25 24TR4BT3057200010370333 GRAND SIERRA ADV DEP REMO NV 431.75
443651300428 ARRIVAL- 02-27-23

02-27 02-25 24T7TB4BT3057200010370495 GRAWD SIERRA ADV DEP REMO NV 431.75
443851 ARRIVAL- 02-27-23

02-27 02-25 247TB4BT73057200010370529 GRAMND SIERRA ADV DEP REMD NV 431.75
44365130 ARRIVAL- 02-27-23

02-27 02-25 24T24B730572300010370573 GRAMD SIERRA ADV DEP RENO 42075
4430537 ARRIVAL- 02-27-23

02-27 02-25 24724BT73057200010370610 GRAMD SIERRA ADV DEP REMO NV 23850
4405018163E0 ARRIVAL- 02-27-23

02-27 02-25 247T24BT73057200010370044 GRAND SIERRA ADV DEP REMO MV 431.75
440501818511 ARRIVAL- 02-27-23

03401 02-28 248021630599101263762559 CRAIGSLIST.ORG 415-388-5200 CA 75.00

0301 02-28 24802163059101283812743 CRAIGSLIST.ORG 415-300-5200 CA 75.00

03403 03-01 248430030817 0E53D628109 HOLIDAY IMN AUBURMN ALUBURM CA 207.74
11483257 ARRIVAL- 02-27-23

0303 03-01  24843003081708530671865 HOLIDAY IMN AUBURN ALUBURN CA 207.74
11433358 ARRIVAL- 02-27-23

0303 03-01  24843003081708530672012 HOLIDAY IMN AUBURMN ALUEURN CA 207.74
11483 RIVAL- 02-27-23

03403 03-01 242430030817 0EE3IDET2145 HOLIDAY IMN AUBURMN ALUBURM CA 207.74
11483362 ARRIVAL- 02-27-23

0303 03-01  2424300308170853D675387 HOLIDAY IMN AUBURN ALUBURN CA 207.74
11433 RIVAL- 02-27-23

03403 03-01 248430030817 0EEIDETE5593 HOLIDAY IMN AUBURMN ALUBURM CA 207.74
11483381 ARRIVAL- 02-27-23

0308 03-02 T4TEB4B73002900011135440 GRAMD SIERRA ADY DEP DO0-S2ER000 NV 42075 CR

0308 03-02 74T24B73002900011135457 GRAND SIERRA ADY DEP RO0-Z2ER000 NV 141.25 CR

0304 03-02 74TB4BTI002900011135405 GRAMD SIERRA ADY DEP BO0-Z2ERE0D NV 238.50 CR

0308 03-04 T4TR4B73004200017487308 GRAMD SIERRA RSRETACASING 229-0000000 NV 23252 CR

0304 03-04 T4TE4BTI004900017487421 GRAMD SIERRA RSRTACASING B99-2000000 NV 23252 CR

0308 03-04 v4T24B7300490001 7487852 GRAMD SIERRA RSRTACASING BO0-0022000 NV 23252 CR

0308 0307 248021630001077Z7EE1243 TST" ORIGIMAL JOES - WES 650-T55-7400 CA 530.07

03-22 03-20 24012303020002236712025 LA TERRAZA MEXICAMN RESTAU SACRAMENTO CA 75.08

03-22 03-21 24137463030200180815538 TST' STATEHOUSE QUTPOST SACRAMENTO CA 656,33

03-22 03-21 24482153030358111724709 UBER TRIP HELF.UBER.COM CA 11.89

Page 2of 3



Mar
2023

Company Mame: SMCMYCD

Corporate Account Number: _—

Statement Date: 03-22-2023

Department: 00000 Total: I 54 5205
Diwisson: 00000 Total 4 528

Page 3 of 3




San Mateo County MVCD
Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 7C

SUBJECT: Status of FY 23-24 Draft Budget and Update on FY 22-23
Revenue and Expenditures

Status of FY 22-23 Revenue and Expenditures:

District staff, including the District Manager, Finance Director, and departmental managers, review revenue
and expenditure patterns by comparing the approved budget to actual results of each account category to
determine how estimated year-end results will appear. The below table gives a summary of revenue and
expense totals anticipated by June 30, 2023:

Components of Surplus (FY 22-23)

General Fund:
Over Realized Revenue: S 20,278
Salary and Wage Savings: S 21,536
Employee Benefit Savings: S (17,735)
Conference & Training Savings: S 19,095
Administration Savings: S 183,385
Insurance Savings: S 448
Computer & Haredware Savings: S 18,689
Utilitity Savings: S 16,990
Fleet Maintenance Savings: S 9,407
Operations Savings: S 12,241
Laboratory Savings: S 13,244
Debt Service Savings: S 11,906
Total: S 309,484

Capital Fund:
Use of R.E. Reserve less than budgeted: S (1,134,670)
Capital Budget Savings: S 1,693,602
Total: S 558,932

All Fund Savings: S 868,416

In the chart attached to this staff report, each revenue and expenditure account contains FY 21-22 actual
activity, FY 22-23 approved budget, the estimate for actual revenue and expenditures for FY 22-23, and the
budget request for FY 23-24.

The following revenue highlights are described below:

» Anticipated Program Revenue to increase by 6% from the prior year.
» Ad Valorum Property Taxes are expected to increase by 6% from FY 22-23.



>
>

>

Excess ERAF is expected to remain unchanged from FY 22-23 to FY 23-24.

Other Revenues are expected to come in less than anticipated, principally due to significant interest
and VCJPA reimbursements reductions.

The Real Property Acquisition Reserve was not used in the amount of $1,134,670 for FY 22-23.
However, the staff recommends that the excess of $868,416 anticipated in FY 22-23 be used to
increase the Real Property Acquisition Reserve to $2,003,086 at June 30, 2023.

The following expenditure highlights from FY 22-23are described below:

5000 Salaries & Wages categories, expecting savings of $ 21,536 mainly from unfilled seasonal
employee positions.

5100 Employee Benefits are expected to be over budget by $17,735 due to present employees fully
utilizing their health and dental benefits. Staff requests an FY 22-23 budget adjustment at the June
2023 Board of Trustees meeting.

5200 Training — Board & Staff will yield a surplus of $ 19,095 principally from savings in Board
conferences and workshops.

5300 Administration is anticipating $183,385 in savings primarily from the HR Financial
Consultant, Professional Services, Legal Services, and facility lease.

5450 Computer Hardware & Software savings are expected at § 18,689. In part due to savings
from the IT Consultant (Compu-Data).

5550 Utilities savings are expected at $ 16,990, principally from PG&E charges and mobile devices
from Verizon.

5700 Operations savings are expected to be $ 12,241, principally from the helicopter and fuel
accounts.

6000 Capital Improvements savings are expected at $ 1,693,602 due to the anticipated construction
costs of the North Carolan property, savings on Lab Equipment, and MapVision expenses that will be
re-budgeted next year.

Initial Presentation of FY 23-24 Budget

In preparing the proposed FY 23-24 budget, the Finance Director collaborated with the District Manager and
operational department heads in the last several months to present the Board with a balanced budget. This

would not have been possible without the cooperative efforts and expertise of staff and the support of our
District manager.

Highlights of the proposed FY 22-23 budget include the following:

YV VYV VYV YVVYVYVY

Service Abatement Revenue is expected to increase by 6%

Staff is proposing to increase the Special Benefit Assessment by 5%

It is estimated that Property Tax Revenue will increase by 5.6%

It is estimated that Other Tax revenue will remain unchanged.

Interest and VCJPA misc. income will remain unchanged.

Due to approved collective bargaining agreements, staff proposes increasing salaries by 6%.

It is anticipated that Training — Board & Staff will increase by 6% due to general inflation.
Insurance expenditures are expected to increase by 32% per VCJPA anticipated district billings.

In Computer Hardware and Software, Staff is planning for a budget increase in IT hardware,
software, license, and website hosting and a significant decrease in IT consulting services.



» Staff provides inflationary estimates averaging 6% over the prior year for most other expenditure
categories.

The following Capital Improvements are also included in the proposed FY 23-24
budget:

Components of Capital Budget (FY 23-240:
Improvements to North Carolan S 2,365,698
Air Conditioning Units (Rollins Road) S 70,000
Mapvision Software: S 80,000
Fire Trailer: S 14,000
Vehicle Leases: S 69,928
Total: S 2,599,626

The following chart describes the major components of the proposed FY 23-24 budget:

San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District
Major Components Of The Proposed FY 23-24 Budget
RESOURCES:
Program Revenue: S 2,504,538
Property Tax Revenue: $ 3,591,855
Other Tax Revenue: S 799,499
Other Revenue: S 98,331
Use of Real Property Acquisiton Reserve S 2,003,086
Total Resources; S 8,997,309
Expenditures:
Salaries & Wages S 3,277,707
Employee Benefits S 1,346,079
Training - Board and Staff S 73,011
Administration S 394,064
Insurance S 188,516
Computer Hardware & Software: S 102,816
Facility Maintenance S 54,640
Utilities: S 64,265
Fleet Maintenance S 64,650
Operations: S 284,821
Laboratory S 95,653
Public Outreach S 133,369
Debt Service S 318,094
Capital Expenditures: S 2,599,626
Total Expenditures: S 8,997,309




A discussion of the recommended reserve levels is contained in the Staff report on recommended reserve
levels for FY Ending June 30, 2023.

This report is a “snapshot” to date and the best estimate of where we will end this fiscal year. If any
developments materially change these projections, we will bring them to your committee and the Board at
the time they occur.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the Board approve the FY 23-24 draft budget

Attachment

cc: Brian Weber, District Manager



San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes- Budget vs. Actual
July 2021 through June 2023

ACTUAL FY 22-23 To Date Estimated Bud to Est. Request % Inc. Budget % Inc. Budget
Jul'21 - Jun 22 Budget 4/5/2023 FY 22-23 Variance FY 23-24 To Budget To Estimate
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - PROGRAM REVENUES

4010 - Service Abatement Revenue -2451 S 276,456 S 246,748 S 135,986 $ 193,734 S (53,014) $ 205,358 -16.8% 6.0%

4020 - Special Benefit Assessmnt-2031 S 163191 S 1,719,858 S 1,037,470 S 1,719,858 S - S 1,813,036 5.4% 5.4%

4030 - Special Mosquito Tax - 2439 S 487,599 S 486,144 S 292,692 S 486,144 S - S 486,144 0.0% 0.0%
Total 4000 - PROGRAM REVENUES S 2,396,016 $§ 2,452,750 S 1,466,148 S 2,399,736 S (53,014) S 2,504,538 2.1% 4.4%
4100 - PROPERTY TAX REVENUES

4105 - Current - Secured - 1021 S 2,891,276 S 2,991,139 $§ 1,840,655 S 3,136,193 S 145,054 S 3,324,365 11.1% 6.0%

4110 - Current - Unsecured - 1031 S 102,172 S 128,812 S 97,956 $ 127,411 S (1,401) S 129,990 0.9% 2.0%

4115 - Prior Year - Unsecured - 1033 S (527) S - S 1,702 S 1,702 S 1,702 S 1,000 -41.2%

4120 - Current -Secured SB813-1041 S 96,900 S 65,000 S 63,243 S 124,486 S 59,486 S 124,000 90.8% -0.4%

4130 - Prior Y. Unsecured SB813-1042 S 360 S 500 S 726 S 726 S 226 S 700 40.0% -3.6%

4140 - State Homeowner Prop-1831 S 10,266 S 12,029 S 5,087 S 11,850 S (179) S 11,800 -1.9% -0.4%

4160 - Prior Year - 1043, 1045 S 3,193 S - S - S - S - 0.0% 0.0%
Total 4100 - PROPERTY TAX REVENUES S 3,103,640 S 3,197,480 S 2,009,369 S 3,402,368 S 204,888 S 3,591,855 12.3% 5.6%
4200 - OTHER TAX REVENUES

4210 - ERAF Rebate-1046 S 616,578 S 616,578 S 574,499 S 574,499 S (42,079) S 574,499 -6.8% 0.0%

4220 - Redevelop Passthrough-1024,2647 S 237,722 S 225,000 S 132,234 § 225,000 S - S 225,000 0.0% 0.0%

4230 - Other In-Lieu Tax Distribution S 80 S - S - S - S - 0.0% 0.0%
Total 4200 - OTHER TAX REVENUES S 854,380 S 841,578 S 706,733 S 799,499 S (42,079) S 799,499 -5.0% 0.0%
4300 - OTHER REVENUES

4310 - Interest Earned (Cnty GF+VCIPA) $ 17,445 $ 110,000 $ 43,000 $ 68,000 $ (42,000) $ 68,000 -38.2% 0.0%

4311 - Interest Earned (Cnty Cap Fund) S 8,883 § 15,000 S 7,044 S 14,000 S (1,000) S 14,000 -6.7% 0.0%

4322 - Capital Lease Financing S 3,825,000 S - S - S - S - S -

4323 - Sublease S - S - S - S - S - S -

4340 - VCJPA / Misc. Income -2658 S 59,093 S 62,848 S 9,285 § 16,331 S (46,517) S 16,331 -74.0% 0.0%
Total 4300 - OTHER REVENUES S 3,910,420 S 187,848 S 59,329 S 98,331 S (89,517) S 98,331 -47.7% 0.0%
4309 - County Funds Interest - FMV S (298,336) S - S - S - S - S -

4800 - GRANT REVENUE S -
4810 - Operating Grants S 91,298 $ - S - S - S - S -
Total 4800 - GRANT REVENUE S 91,298 S - S - S - S - S -
Total Income S 10,057,419 S 6,679,656 S 4,241,579 S 6,699,934 S 20,278 S 6,994,223 4.7% 4.4%
Expense
5000 - SALARIES & WAGES

5010 - Permanent Employees S 2,275,742 S 2,634,295 S 1,925,327 S 2,626,125 S 8,170 S 2,871,641 9.0% 9.3%

5015 - Limited Term Employees S 188,231 S 198,354 S 145,714 S 198,354 S - S 210,257 6.0% 6.0%

5020 - Seasonal Employees S 135,474 §$ 174,317 S 90,951 S 160,951 S 13,366 S 170,608 -2.1% 6.0%

5040 - Board Trustees Meeting Stipend S 16,200 S 24,200 S 12,500 S 24,200 S - S 25,200 4.1% 4.1%

5050 - Vacation Accrual S 2,119 S - S - S - S - S -

Total 5000 - SALARIES & WAGES S 2,617,765 S 3,031,166 $ 2,174,492 S 3,009,630 S 21,536 S 3,277,706 8.1% 8.9%
5100 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

5110 - Retirement - Employer Contribut S 281,308 S 318,750 S 243,483 S 317,602 S 1,148 S 719,633 125.8% 126.6%

5115 - Retirement - Employee Contribut S - S - S -

5116 - Alternate Retire-Employee Contr S - S (572) S - S - S -

5125 - Actives - Medical Insurance S 303,025 S 296,876 S 252,751 S 341,512 S (44,636) S 355,172 19.6% 4.0%

5130 - Actives - HRA Health Reimb Acct S 13,752 S 12,760 S 13,727 § 13,727 S (967) S 14,276 11.9% 4.0%

5135 - Actives - Dental Insurance S 31,834 S 31,776 S 22,450 S 31,776 S - S 33,047 4.0% 4.0%

5140 - Actives - Dental Reimbursement S 864 S 1,200 S 403 S 403 S 797 S 419 -65.1% 4.0%

5145 - Actives - Vision Insurance S 5,698 S 5713 S 3,968 S 5,650 S 63 §$ 5,876 2.9% 4.0%

5150 - Group Life Insurance S - S - S 1,045 S 1,360 S (1,360) S 1,414

5155 - Retirees - HRA & Prescrip Reimb S - S - S 5381 § - S - S -

5160 - Retirees - HRA & Medical Reimb S - S - S 30,579 S - S - S -

5165 - Long Term Disability - Standard S 14,345 S 15,156 S 12,403 S 16,780 S (1,624) S 17,451 15.1% 4.0%

5170 - Actives - Other Benefits S - S - S 1,967 S - S - S -

5175 - Social Security & Medicare Tax S 48,397 S 54,561 S 37,716 S 52,381 $ 2,180 S 57,360 5.1% 9.5%

5180 - CA Unemployment/Disability Tax S 14,932 S 18,187 S 11,419 $ 14,454 S 3,733 § 16,389 -9.9% 13.4%

5182 - Workers Compensation S 120,397 S 132,437 S 109,506 S 109,506 S 22,931 S 125,041 -5.6% 14.2%

5185 - Actives - Deferred Compensation S - S - S -

Total 5100 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS S 834,552 S 887,416 S 746,225 S 905,151 S (17,735) S 1,346,079 51.7% 48.7%
5200 - TRAINING - BOARD & STAFF

5205 - Coastal Regional Continuing Ed. S 3,121 S 4280 S 3,437 S 3,437 S 843 § 3,643 6.0%

5210 - Conferences / Workshops Board S 15,999 §S 34,980 $ 16,071 $ 20,000 $ 14,980 S 21,200 -39.4% 6.0%

5215 - Conferences / Workshops Staff S 25,015 S 42,000 S 31,084 S 42,000 $ - S 44,520 6.0% 6.0%

5220 - Staff Training S 5,327 S 6,713 S 1,441 S 3,441 S 3,272 S 3,647 -45.7% 6.0%

5200 - TRAINING - BOARD & STAFF - Other S - S 85 S - S - S -

Total 5200 - TRAINING - BOARD & STAFF S 49,463 S 87,973 S 52,117 S 68,878 S 19,095 S 73,011 -17.0% 6.0%
5300 - ADMINISTRATION

5305 - Board Meeting Expenses S 3953 S 6,000 S 4439 § 6,000 S - S 6,360 6.0% 6.0%

5310 - Background / drug screening S 1,603 S 1,000 S 536 S 1,000 S - S 1,060 6.0% 6.0%

5315 - County Accounting Service Chgs S 143,677 S 153,193 S 16,013 $ 153,193 S - S 162,385 6.0% 6.0%

5325 - HR & Finance Consultant S 21,880 S 27,108 S 2,797 S 4,000 S 23,108 S 4,240 -84.4% 6.0%

5330 - Memberships & Subscriptions S 34,041 S 33,118 S 25,830 S 30,000 S 3,118 § 31,800 -4.0% 6.0%

5335 - Office Expense S 15,903 S 19,962 S 9,813 § 13,084 S 6,878 S 13,869 -30.5% 6.0%

5340 - Janitorial/Household Expense S 24,656 S 27,577 S 20,722 S 27,577 S - S 29,232 6.0% 6.0%

5345 - Prof. Services - Engineer Rpt S 31,707 S 101,883 S 22,461 S 22,461 S 79,422 S 49,210 -51.7% 119.1%

5350 - Legal Services S 57,348 S 69,987 S 12,816 S 19,224 S 50,763 S 20,377 -70.9% 6.0%

5355 - Property Tax Stormwater Assess S 5,981 S 5,350 S 3,360 S 5350 S - S 5,671 6.0% 6.0%

5360 - Permits S 8,017 S 8,578 S 4,544 S 7,500 S 1,078 S 7,950 -7.3% 6.0%

5375 - Audit S 29,025 S 31,057 $ 25,625 S 25,625 $ 5432 S 32,280 3.9% 26.0%

5380 - Copier and postage S 5,919 S 6,101 S 4,489 S 6,101 $ - S 6,467 6.0% 6.0%

5385 - Security and fire alarm S 11,529 S 14,467 S 8,587 S 11,809 S 2,658 S 12,518 -13.5% 6.0%

5390 - Payroll Service S 8,031 S 8,605 S 7,128 S 8,605 S - S 9,121 6.0% 6.0%

5395 - Bank Fees (County General Fund) S 1,068 S 1,204 S 659 §$ 1,204 S - S 1,276 6.0% 6.0%

5396 - Bank Fees (County Capital Fund) S 445 S 566 S 234 S 234 S 332 S 248 -56.2% 6.0%

5399 : Facility Lease S 121,132 S 78,232 S 67,636 S 67,636 $ 10,596 S - -100.0% -100.0%
Total 5300 - ADMINISTRATION S 525,914 S 593,988 S 237,687 S 410,603 S 183,385 S 394,064 -33.7% -4.0%
5400 - INSURANCE

5410 - Liability Insurance - VCJPA S 91,973 S 101,171 S 98,808 S 98,808 S 2,363 S 120,591 19.2% 22.0%

5415 - Auto Physical Damage S 2,333 S 2,566 S 2,401 S 2,401 S 165 S 3,909 52.3% 62.8%

5420 - Group Property Program S 11,233 S 12,356 S 19,768 S 19,768 S (7,412) S 41,730 237.7% 111.1%

5425 - VCJPA - General Fund Allocation S 5,307 S 5,838 $ 3,737 S 3,737 S 2,101 S 1,984 -66.0% -46.9%

5430 - Group ACIP & Deadly Weapon S 6,331 S 6,964 S 6,014 S 6,014 S 950 S 7,016 0.7% 16.7%

5435 - Non-owned Aircraft S 5,781 S 6,359 S 4,625 S 4,625 S 1,734 S 5,088 -20.0% 10.0%

5436 - Cyber Liability S 2,272 S 7,500 S 2,953 S 7,453 S 47 S 8,198 9.3% 10.0%

5445 - Business Travel Accident Ins S - S 500 S - S - S 500 S - -100.0%

Total 5400 - INSURANCE S 125,230 S 143,254 S 138,306 S 142,806 S 448 S 188,516 31.6% 32.0%
5450 - COMPUTER HARDWARE & SOFTWARE

5455 - IT Consulting - Compu-Data S 7,164 S 14,702 S 700 S 700 S 14,002 S 7,000 -52.4% 900.0%

5460 - Computer Hardware S 23,916 S 18,926 S 3,256 § 19,256 S (330) $ 25,000 32.1% 29.8%

5465 - Computer Software S 12,596 S 12,504 S 14,297 S 14,297 S (1,793) S 35,000 179.9% 144.8%

5470 - Database & Mapping - License S 6,090 S 15,000 S - S 7,700 S 7,300 S 25,000 66.7% 224.7%

5475 - Website Hosting / Microsoft S 9,219 S 9,233 § 9,732 S 9,723 S (490) S 10,816 17.1% 11.2%
Total 5450 - COMPUTER HARDWARE & SOFTWAR $ 58,984 S 70,365 S 27,985 S 51,676 S 18,689 S 102,816 46.1% 99.0%
5500 - FACILITIES MAINTENANCE

5505 - Facility - Repairs & Maint S 47,756 S 51,547 $ 35,210 S 51,547 $ - S 54,640 6.0% 6.0%
Total 5500 - FACILITIES MAINTENANCE S 47,756 S 51,547 S 35,210 S 51,547 S - S 54,640 6.0% 6.0%

Page 1 of 2



ACTUAL FY 22-23 To Date Estimated Bud to Est. Request % Inc. Budget % Inc. Budget

Jul'21 - Jun 22 Budget 4/5/2023 FY 22-23 Variance FY 23-24 To Budget To Estimate
5550 - UTILITIES
5560 - Gas & Electricity - PG&E S 21,707 S 30,511 $ 18,485 S 22,171 S 8,340 S 23,501 -23.0% 6.0%
5565 - Water S 5777 S 7,824 S 4,051 §$ 6,330 S 1,494 S 6,710 -14.2% 6.0%
5570 - Phone - VOIP - Fusion/MegaPath S 6,057 S 6,811 S 4,730 § 6,341 S 470 S 6,721 -1.3% 6.0%
5575 - Phone - Land Line-AT&T/Comcast S 4985 § 5,522 S 3,077 S 4,291 S 1,231 S 4,548 -17.6% 6.0%
5580 - Phone - Mobile Devices-Verizon S 23,942 S 26,949 S 15,169 §$ 21,494 S 5,455 S 22,784 -15.5% 6.0%
Total 5550 - UTILITIES S 62,469 S 77,617 S 45,513 S 60,627 S 16,990 S 64,265 -17.2% 6.0%
5600 - FLEET MAINTENANCE
5610 - Garage Tools S 8,389 S 8,500 S 8,448 S 8,500 S - S 9,010 6.0% 6.0%
5615 - Garage Repairs Outside S 8,864 S 7,984 S 3,993 § 7,984 S - S 8,500 6.5% 6.5%
5620 - Auto, Hotsy, Plug, Boat, Traile S 16,575 S 17,000 S 16,697 S 19,000 S (2,000) S 20,140 18.5% 6.0%
5630 - Ops Equipment & Repairs S 10,322 S 15,000 S 10,742 S 15,000 S - S 16,000 6.7% 6.7%
5635 - Vehicle Accident Insur Claims S 1,398 S 11,407 S - S - S 11,407 S 11,000 -3.6%
Total 5600 - FLEET MAINTENANCE S 45,547 S 59,891 S 39,880 S 50,484 S 9,407 S 64,650 7.9% 28.1%
5700 - OPERATIONS
5705 - Pesticides S 155,863 S 135,313 S 88,554 § 135,313 S - S 140,000 3.5% 3.5%
5715 - Helicopter S 29,717 S 38,508 S 17,267 S 21,267 S 17,241 S 45,000 16.9% 111.6%
5720 - Safety Equipment S 7,551 S 7,814 S 4511 S 7,814 S - S 8,283 6.0% 6.0%
5725 - Apparel - Uniforms & Boots S 12,875 S 14,432 S 9,066 S 14,432 S - S 15,298 6.0% 6.0%
5730 - Mosquito Fish S 2,850 S 4,000 S 1,640 S 4,000 S - S 4,240 6.0% 6.0%
5735 - Fuel S 66,577 S 62,000 $ 48,960 S 67,000 $ (5,000) S 72,000 16.1% 7.5%
Total 5700 - OPERATIONS S 275,433 S 262,067 S 169,998 $ 249,826 S 12,241 S 284,821 8.7% 14.0%
5800 - LABORATORY
5805 - Disease Surveillance S 9,714 S 10,700 S 2,010 S 10,700 S - S 11,342 6.0% 6.0%
5810 - Sentinel Chicken Flocks/Supply S 3,087 S 3,210 S 2,198 S 3,000 S 210 §$ 3,180 -0.9% 6.0%
5815 - Mosquito Blood $ 3,696 $ 4,173 $ 2,910 $ 4276 $ (103) $ 4,533 8.6% 6.0%
5820 - Dry Ice S 9,598 S 11,700 S 8,054 S 12,200 S (500) S 13,000 11.1% 6.6%
5825 : Lab Supplies S 7,020 S 9,095 S 3,982 S 9,000 S 95 $§ 9,540 4.9% 6.0%
5830 : Lab Biowaste Disposal S 656 S 1,300 S 956 S 1,300 S - S 1,378 6.0% 6.0%
5835 - Lab Equip. Repair S 1,572 S 2,000 S 948 S 948 S 1,052 S 2,000 0.0% 111.0%
5840 - Lab Equip. Maintenance S 2,615 S 3,000 S 1,035 S 3,000 S - S 3,000 0.0% 0.0%
5845 - Lab PCR Supplies S 27,160 S 28,890 S 14,714 S 28,000 S 890 S 29,680 2.7% 6.0%
5850 - Lab PCR Maintenance S 9,804 S 11,600 S - S - S 11,600 S 18,000 55.2%
Total 5800 - LABORATORY S 74,922 S 85,668 S 36,807 S 72,424 S 13,244 S 95,653 11.7% 32.1%
5900 - PUBLIC OUTREACH
5910 - Media and Network S 69,667 S 114,352 S 55,481 $ 114,352 S - S 121,213 6.0% 6.0%
5920 - Promotion & Printing S 9,277 S 11,468 S 13,795 S 11,468 S - S 12,156 6.0% 6.0%
Total 5900 - PUBLIC OUTREACH S 78,944 S 125,820 S 69,276 S 125,820 S - S 133,369

6000 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

6005 - Real Estate Acquisition S 7,543,113 S - S -
6010 - Building Improvements S 83,061 $§ 1,787,554 S 116,744 S 158,971 S 1,628,583 S 2,435,698 36.3% 1432.2%
6020 - Equipment - Operations & Admin S 107,727 S 60,000 $ 49,981 §$ 49,981 $ 10,019 S 14,000 -76.7% -72.0%
6025 - Software S - S 110,000 S - S 55,000 $ 55,000 $ 80,000 -27.3% 45.5%
6030 - Vehicle Leases S 45,153 S 50,000 S 31,868 S 50,000 S - S 69,928 39.9% 39.9%
6035 - Vehicle Purchases S 33,978 S - S -
Total 6000 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS S 7,813,031 $§ 2,007,554 S 198,593 S 313,952 S 1,693,602 S 2,599,626 29.5% 728.0%
6500 - DEBT SERVICE
6510 - Principal Payments S - S 210,000 S 207,169 S 207,169 S 2,831 S 213,177 1.5% 2.9%
6520 - Interest Payments S - S 120,000 S 110,925 §$ 110,925 S 9,075 §$ 104,917 -12.6% -5.4%
Total 6500 - DEBT SERVICE S - S 330,000 S 318,094 S 318,094 S 11,906 S 318,094 -3.6% 0.0%
Total Expense S 12,610,011 S 7,814,326 S 4,290,186 S 5,831,518 S 1,982,808 S 8,997,308 15.1% 54.3%
Net Ordinary Income S (2,552,592) S (1,134,670) S (48,606) S 868,416 S (2,003,086) S (2,003,086) 76.5% -330.7%
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Transfer (To)/From Reserves S - S 1,134,670 S - S (868,416) S 2,003,086
Total Other Income S - $ 1,134,670 S - S (868,416) S - $ 2,003,086
Net Other Income S - S 1,134,670 S - S (868,416) S 2,003,086 S 2,003,086
Net Income $ (2,552,592) $ - S (48,606) S (0) S 0o $ 0

Page 2 of 2



Agenda Item 7D

STAFF REPORT

DATE: May 10, 2023

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Richard Arrow, Finance Director

SUBJECT: Recommended Reserve Levels for FY Ending 6/30/2023
Summary:

Prior to the close of each fiscal year, the Board of Trustees discuss reserve balances within the General and
Capital Project funds and determine the amount of Fund Balance to be allocated to each reserve. The current
reserves and balances authorized by the Board as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

> Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund S 125,133

> Public Health Emergency Reserve Fund S 800,000

> Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund S 650,000

» Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund $1,134,670

» Capital Projects & Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund S 884,533

» Debt Service Repayment Reserve $ 1,000,000
Discussion:

The purpose of each of the above reserve funds is as follows:

Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve

This reserve provides funding for the District to protect against future fluctuations in the required employer
contribution toward employee pensions, as witnessed this year. Following the economic downturn of 2008,
the District’s Employer Contribution rate for employee pensions increased. This rate was brought down
dramatically by the Board’s action to pay down its unfunded liability through prepayment allocations.
Additional increases may occur due to changes in the assumed rate set by SamCERA, an economic downturn,
or other factors. This reserve was created in 2015 to set aside available funds to pay for future pension costs
if needed. Funding may be provided at the end of the year from budget surpluses from prior fiscal years.

Public Health Emergency Reserve

The purpose of the Public Health Emergency Reserve Funds is to accumulate sufficient financial reserves
necessary to meet the requirements within the California Mosquito-Borne Virus Surveillance and Response
Plan when we reach Level 2 (Emergency Planning) or Level 3 (Epidemic Conditions relative to the California
Invasive Aedes Response Plan) or to respond to any other vector-borne disease outbreak as determined by the
Board of Trustees.



Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve

The Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Funds aims to accumulate sufficient financial reserves to ensure the
District has the means to continue operating after a Natural Disaster. A natural disaster is defined in the policy
as a major adverse event resulting from natural processes of the Earth; examples include but are not limited to
wildfires, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, and other disasters. This reserve fund will facilitate rebuilding the
damaged structures due to natural disasters. Immediate repair of the District’s buildings and infrastructure will
allow the District’s essential services to be maintained after natural disasters, including fires, floods, and
earthquakes.

Real Property Acquisition Reserve

The Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund aims to accumulate funds to acquire real property. Safe, reliable,
and up-to-date real estate assets are essential for the District to provide services to protect public health and
safeguard District equipment from hazards, including fire, flood, theft, earthquake, and other loss. The Real
Property Acquisition Reserve Fund allows the District to acquire real estate to meet the needs outlined in the
District’s Real Estate Needs Assessment, as approved by the Board of Trustees in 2019.

Capital Projects & Equipment Replacement Reserve

The purpose of the Capital Project and Equipment Replacement Reserve Funds is to accumulate sufficient
financial reserves necessary to ensure timely replacement and upgrade of the District’s buildings, structures,
vehicles, mobile equipment, laboratory equipment, operational equipment, administrative equipment (CPUs,
PC’s, laptops, etc.) and appurtenances thereto. Safe, reliable, and up-to-date vehicles and equipment in good
working order are essential for the District to meet its mission of providing public health services promptly and
professionally. The Capital Projects & Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund will allow for replacement and
upgrades to buildings, structures, and operational, administrative, and laboratory equipment if lost due to a
disaster. In addition, this reserve provides for upgrading and replacing buildings, structures, vehicles, and
other District equipment as needed.

Debt Service Repayment Reserve

The purpose of the Debt Service Repayment Reserve Fund is to accumulate funds and allow for the
prepayment of balances of District issued debt in connection with acquiring real property. This reserve fund
shall be reviewed and updated by the Board of Trustees regularly.

Decision Point for the Board

1. Does the Board wish to adopt recommend changes to the allocation of District Fund Balance
among reserve funds?

Recommendations:

1. Staff reccomeds the FY 22-23 General Fund anticipated excess of $ 886,416 be allocated to the Real Property
Acquisition Reserve for a Reserve balance of $ 2,003,086 to finance future construction costs at
1415 North Carolan.

Materials Attached:

1. Proposed Allocation of Reserve Balances
2. District Policy 6120 District Reserves



SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

ESTIMTED RESERVE BALANCES FOR FY 22-23

Estimated Estimated
Approved General Fund Capital Fund
Target 6/30/2022 FY 22-23 FY 2223 6/30/2023 6/30/2023
RESERVE FUND NAME Type Levels Balance Additions Deletions. Reserve Balances Reserve Balance
[inventory and Prepaids Nonspendable NA $ 179502 [ $ - $ -3 179,502
Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve Restricted $100,000 $ 125133 | $ - 8 - 8 125,133
Public Health Emergency Reserve Committed __ $500,000 to $1,000,000 $ 800,000 | $ -8 -3 800,000
Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund Assigned $500,000 to $1,000,000 $ 650,000 | $ -8 -3 650,000
Real Property Acquisition Reserve Assigned $100,000 to $5,000,000 $ 1,134,670 | $ 868,416 $ 2,003,086
Debt Service Repayment Reserve Assigned $50,000 to $ 2,300,000 $ 1,000,000 - s 1,000,000
Capital Asset & Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund Assigned $500,000 to $1,000,000 $ 844,533 $ -8 844,533
60% of Operational
Expenditures, Not
Working Capital (Basic Liquidity) Unassigned Including Capital $ 3,131,806 $ 3,131,806
f i Unassi $ 3,397,004 S 3,397,004
Total $ 11,262,648 [ $ 868,416 S -8 11,286,531 $ 844,533




1351 Rollins Road

iAAoNSAQAG:::EOO&CVgg{'\Ic;; Burlingame, CA 94010
CONTROL DISTRICT o (650) 3443843
Protecting public health since 1916 www.smcmvcd.org

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

TITLE: District Reserve Fund and Working Capital Policy
NUMBER: 6120
OVERVIEW

The District recognizes the importance of adopting policies for the management of its financial
reserves. Formalizing written financial policies for designation of reserve funds is a critical
element of sound fiscal management and a cornerstone of long-term financial planning.

This policy provides for the prudent accumulation and management of reserve funds to facilitate
the attainment of long term program and financial goals. This Reserve Fund Policy was
developed to identify how each of the reserve categories will be managed and that are consistent
with the District’s mission statement and philosophy of the Board of Trustees.

OBJECTIVES

>

To assure continued operation and solvency of the District, allowing it to carry out its
stated mission.

» To maintain and enhance the sound fiscal condition of the District, maintain its ability to
obtain credit and maintain a high bond rating.

» To maintain sufficient financial flexibility to be able to adapt to change, and to permit an
orderly adjustment to unanticipated events.

» To maintain a diversified and stable long-term financial plan.

» To accumulate and maintain an amount equal to the stated target fund level for each
specific reserve fund created by the District.

» To provide for periodic review of financial reserve funds to make appropriate changes,
additions and/or deletions.

» To clearly define how financial reserves will be accumulated and put to use.

RESERVE FUND POLICY

In order to achieve the objectives of this Policy, the Board of Trustees shall adhere to the
following guidelines:




Reserve funds may be established from time to time by the Board of Trustees as an important
component of sound financial management to meet both short and long-term financial objectives,
and to ensure prudent financial management practices.

Reserve funds may be designated by the Board of Trustees as “restricted reserve funds” or “non-
restricted reserve funds.”

Restricted reserve funds shall be segregated, and limited in use to specific and designated
purpose(s) as defined and established by the Board of Trustees. As of January 2011, under GASB
Statement 54 under the Government Accounting Standards Board the restricted fund balance
classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally enforceable constraints.
These constraints may be imposed by grantors, bondholders, or higher levels of government,
through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

“Nonrestricted” reserve funds may be classified as “Committed Reserve Funds” , “Assigned
Reserve Funds” or ”Unassigned Reserve Funds” and thus shall have no reference to specific
accounting assets. These funds do not require the physical segregation of funds, but maybe
segregated if desirable.

Committed Reserve Funds are subject to internal constraints. These constraints are imposed by
the District itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e. Board of Trustees).

Committed Reserve Funds cannot be used for any other purpose unless the District takes the same
highest level action to remove or change the constraint.

Assigned Reserve Funds are those that the District intends to use for a specific purpose. This
intent can be expressed by the Board of Trustees or by an official or body to which the Board of
Trustees delegates the authority

Unassigned fund balance includes all balances that have not been assigned to other funds and are
not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.

All investment earnings from restricted and non-restricted reserve funds shall be credited to the
District General Fund, unless otherwise stated herein.

The Board of Trustee approval shall be required prior to the expenditure of restricted and
committed reserve funds.



v' If the Board of Trustees finds that the funds in a committed reserve are no longer required for the
purpose for which it was established, the Board of Trustees may, by a four-fifths vote of the total
membership of the board of trustees, discontinue the committed reserve or transfer the funds that
are no longer required from the committed reserve to the uncommitted balance in the District's
general fund.

RESERVE FUNDS

The Board of Trustees hereby establishes and designates the following reserve funds:

=  Working Capital (Basic Liquidity) Attachment 1. *
= Public Health Emergency Reserve Fund Attachment 2.
= Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund Attachment 3.
= Capital Project and Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund  Attachment 4.
= Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund Attachment 5.
= Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund Attachment 6.
= Debt Service Repayment Reserve Fund Attachment 7

* Not a reserve pursuant to GAAP Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund

TARGET FUND LEVELS

The Board of Trustees shall establish a stated target fund level for each designated reserve fund.
See Attachment 7 for a summary of the District’s established target funds and the designated
target level for each fund.

ANNUAL EVALUATIONS

The District Manager and Finance Director shall review and analyze each reserve fund balance
and activity for presentation to the Board of Trustees (through the Finance Committee), as part of
the annual budget. Upon any significant change to expenditures from a designated reserve fund,
or for any other reason that it is determined that a reserve balance target needs to be revised, then
a recommendation from the Finance Director and District Manager will be made.

Original Issue Date: March 12, 2014

Board Approval October 11, 2017
Board Approval October 10, 2018
Board Approval November 14, 2018
Board Review and Amendment September 2019

Board Review and Amendment June 2021



ATTACHMENT 1

SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
WORKING CAPITAL (GENERAL LIQUIDITY)
Fund Purpose:

The Working Capital (General Liquidity) is necessary because the District receives the majority of its
funding from the property taxes and benefit assessment collected by the County of San Mateo. These
revenues are not transmitted to the District until January, six months into the fiscal year. Therefore, it is
imperative that the District have an operating fund to fulfill its general operating costs. The Working
General provides the District with funds to cover general operating costs from the beginning of the fiscal
year on July 1 until the first receipt of tax revenue in January. The seasons for vector mosquitoes in San
Mateo County extend throughout the year and the delay in receiving funding could inhibit the District’s
ability to provide services and protect public health. This liquidity will preserve credit worthiness, ensure
adequate financial resources are available for timely payment of District obligations, and provide liquidity
throughout the fiscal year.

Policy:

In order to achieve the objectives of this policy the Board of Trustees shall adhere to the following
guidelines:

1. The balance shall be known as the “Working Capital — General Liquidity.”

2. This Working Capital /General Liquidity shall be designated as “unassigned fund balance”.

3. The Working Capital/ General Liquidity may be invested in financial institutions and instruments
which maintain the highest level of liquidity, such as checking, savings, and LAIF.

4. This policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the Finance Committee and the Board for
long-term adequacy and use restrictions.

Target Fund Level:

The target level for Working Capital (General Liquidity) is to maintain a minimum General Fund balance
for operations equal to 60% of annual budgeted expenditures, as of July 1% of each fiscal year. This target
fund level was established based upon the following general guidelines:

1. At the beginning of each fiscal year, the District shall have a balance in the Working General
Fund equal to approximately sixty percent of budgeted expenditures for the fiscal year.
2. For the purpose of this policy, budgeted expenditures shall include all expenditures associated
with the following:
a. Salaries and Employees Benefits
b. Services and Supplies



ATTACHMENT 2

SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY RESERVE FUND

Fund Purpose:

The purpose of the Public Health Emergency Reserve Funds is to accumulate sufficient financial reserves
necessary to meet the requirements within the California Mosquito-Borne Virus Surveillance and
Response Plan when we reach Level 2 (Emergency Planning) or Level 3 (Epidemic Conditions relative to
the California Invasive Aedes Response Plan), or any other vector-borne disease response plan distributed
by state or federal public health agencies that may apply to the District.. The California Health and Safety
Code Section 2070 provide the Board of Trustees authorization to include a restricted reserve for public
health emergencies. The District’s Restricted Public Health Emergency Reserve Fund may only be spent
when an increased threat to public health is threatened, as defined in one of the Response Plans described
above.

Policy:

In order to achieve the objectives of this policy the Board of Trustees shall adhere to the following
guidelines:

1. This reserve fund shall be known as the “Public Health Emergency Reserve Fund.”

2. The Public Health Emergency Reserve Fund shall be designated as a committed reserve fund.

3. The Public Health Emergency Reserve Fund shall be expended solely for the purpose of
responding to and maintaining District entomological operations during a public health
emergency as defined within the California Mosquito-borne Virus Surveillance and Response
Plan, the Invasive Aedes Response Plan, or any other vector-borne disease response plan
distributed by state or federal public health agencies that may apply to the District.

4. Authorization by the Board of Trustees is required prior to expenditure of Public Health
Emergency Reserve Funds. The Board of Trustees can hold a special Board Meeting to provide
this authorization to the District Manager to approve the expenditure of these funds for required
essential services in response to a public health emergency.

5. If expenditures from this designated reserve fund are subsequently recovered, either partially or
fully, from FEMA, OES, State, insurance and/or any other sources, said revenue shall be utilized
solely for the purpose of refunding the Public Health Emergency Reserve Fund.

6. All investment earnings from the Public Health Emergency Reserve Fund shall be credited to the
District’s General Fund.

7. The Public Health Emergency Reserve Fund may be invested in financial institutions and
instruments which maintain the highest level of liquidity, such as checking, savings, and LAIF.

8. This policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the Finance Committee and District Board for
long-term adequacy and use restriction.

Target Fund Level:

The target level for the Public Health Emergency Fund shall be equal to a minimum of $500,000 to a
maximum of $1,000,000 as of July 1 of each fiscal year unless otherwise directed by the Board of
Trustees at a public meeting.




ATTACHMENT 3

SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
NATURAL DISASTER EMERGENCY RESERVE FUND

Fund Purpose:

The purpose of the Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Funds is to accumulate sufficient financial
reserves necessary to ensure a timely response by the District to natural disasters. A natural disaster is a
major adverse event resulting from natural processes of the Earth; examples include but not limited to
wildfires, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, and other disasters. This reserve fund will facilitate rebuilding
of the damaged structures due to the natural disasters. Immediate repair of the District’s buildings and
infrastructure will allow the District’s essential services to be maintained after natural disasters, including
fires, floods and earthquakes.

Policy:

In order to achieve the objectives of this policy the Board of Trustees shall adhere to the following
guidelines:

1. This reserve fund shall be known as the “Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund.”

2. The Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund shall be designated as an assigned reserve fund.

3. The Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund shall be expended solely for the purpose of
repairing damaged buildings and furnishings.

4. The District Manager is authorized to approve the expenditure of Natural Disaster Emergency
Reserve Funds without prior approval of the Board of Trustees, for purposes of restoration and/or
maintenance of essential service levels in response to a natural disaster. However, a detailed
report of fund expenditures will be made to the Board of Trustees for ratification.

5. If expenditures from this designated reserve fund are subsequently recovered, either partially or
fully, from FEMA, OES, State, insurance and/or any other sources, said revenue shall be utilized
solely for the purpose of refunding the Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund.

6. All investment earnings from the Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund shall be credited to
the District’s General Fund.

7. Health and Safety Code 2071(d) states if the Board of Trustees finds that the funds in a restricted
reserve are no longer required for the purpose for which the restricted reserve was established, the
Board of Trustees may, by a four-fifths vote of the total membership of the Board of Trustees,
discontinue the restricted reserve or transfer the funds that are no longer required from the
restricted reserve to the District’s General Fund.

8. The Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund may be invested in financial institutions and
instruments which maintain the highest level of liquidity, such as checking, savings, and LAIF.

9. This policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the Finance Committee and Board of
Directors for long-term adequacy and use restriction.

Target Fund Level:

The target level for the Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund shall be equal to a minimum of
$500,000 to a maximum of $1,000,000 as of July 1 of each fiscal year unless otherwise directed by the
Board of Trustees at a public meeting.




ATTACHMENT 4

SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT CAPITAL PROJECT
AND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVE FUND

Fund Purpose:

The purpose of the Capital Project and Equipment Replacement Reserve Funds is to accumulate
sufficient financial reserves necessary to ensure a timely replacement and upgrade of the District’s
buildings, structures, vehicles, mobile equipment, laboratory equipment, operational equipment,
administrative equipment (CPU’s, PC’s, laptops, etc.) and appurtenances thereto. Safe, reliable and up-
to-date vehicles and equipment, in good working order, are essential for the District to meet its mission of
providing public health services in a timely and professional manner. The Capital Project and Equipment
Replacement Reserve Fund will allow for replacing and upgrades to buildings, structures, vehicles,
operational, administrative, and laboratory equipment if lost due to a disaster. In addition, due to the need
for depreciation and replacement of buildings, structures, vehicles and other District equipment it is
desirable for the District to set aside funds on an on-going basis for this purpose.

Policy:

In order to achieve the objectives of this policy the Board of Trustees shall adhere to the following
guidelines:

1. This reserve fund shall be known as the “Capital Project and Equipment Replacement
Reserve Fund.”

2. The Capital Project and Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund shall be designated as an
assigned reserve fund.

3. The initial procurement for new vehicles and/or equipment (not replacement of existing) shall
be paid for from the District’s General Fund not by the Capital Project and Equipment
Replacement Reserve Fund.

4. FEach adopted budget of the District shall contain an allocation in the sum of $50,000 for the
replacement and/or upgrade of existing vehicles (outright purchase or lease) and District
equipment.

5. Inany one (1) fiscal year, whenever the total actual expenditures for replacement and/or
upgrade of existing vehicles and District equipment is less than said $50,000 allocation, the
remaining balance shall be transferred to the Capital Project and Equipment Replacement
Reserve Fund.

6. Inany one (1) fiscal year, whenever the total actual expenditures for replacement and/or
upgrade of existing vehicles and District equipment exceed said $50,000 allocation, the
necessary balance to accomplish the procurement(s) shall be provided by the Capital Project
and Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund.

7. Funds transferred from the Capital Project and Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund shall
be expended solely for the purpose of replacement and upgrade of existing District buildings,
structures, vehicles and District equipment.

8. The District Manager is authorized to approve the expenditure of Capital Project and
Equipment Replacement Reserve Funds, without prior approval of the Board of Trustees, in
accordance with approved budget authorizations.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Upon expenditure of any Capital Project and Equipment Replacement Reserve Funds, the
District Manager shall notify the Board of Directors at the earliest possible opportunity.

If expenditures from this designated reserve fund are subsequently recovered, either partially
or fully, from FEMA, OES, State, insurance and/or any other sources, said revenue shall be
utilized solely for the purpose of refunding the Capital Project and Equipment Replacement
Reserve Fund.

All investment earnings from the Capital Project and Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund
shall be credited to the District’s General Fund.

The allocation amount shall be reviewed annually by the Finance Committee and Board of
Trustees for appropriate vehicle and equipment retention schedules, depreciation schedules,
and acquisition costs.

The Capital Project and Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund may be invested in financial
institutions and instruments which maintain the highest level of liquidity, such as checking,
savings, and LAIF.

Target Fund Level:

The target level for the Capital Project and Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund shall be equal to a
minimum of $500,000 to a maximum of $1,000,000 as of July 1 of each fiscal year unless otherwise
directed by the Board of Trustees at a public meeting.



ATTACHMENT 5

SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
PENSION RATE STABILIZATION RESERVE FUND

Fund Purpose:

This reserve provides funding for the District to protect against future fluctuations in the employer
contribution toward employee pensions as witnessed in past years. Over the past few years the
District’s Employer Contribution for employee pensions has increased and additional increases may
occur in the future as a result of changes in the assumed rate set by SamCERA, an economic downturn or
other factors. This reserve is created to set aside funds, as available, to pay future pension costs if
needed. Funding may be provided at the end of the year from budget surpluses from prior fiscal years.

Policy: The District Board created this reserve to address future increase in its District’s Unfunded
Actuarially Accrued Liability (UAAL) resulting in increases to the employer contribution rate. In order to
achieve the purpose of this policy, the Board of Trustees shall adhere to the following guidelines:

1. This reserve fund shall be known as the “Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund.”

2. The Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund shall be designated as a committed reserve fund.

3. The Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund shall be expended solely for the purpose of paying
the Employer share of contributions to the San Mateo County Employee Retirement Association.

4. Expenditure of the Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund requires prior approval of the Board
of Trustees.

5. All investment earnings from the Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund shall be credited to the
Fund itself.

6. The Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund may be invested in financial institutions and
instruments which maintain the highest level of liquidity, such as checking, savings, and LAIF.

7. This policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the Finance Committee and Board of
Directors for long-term adequacy and use restriction.



ATTACHMENT 6

SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION RESERVE FUND

Fund Purpose:

The purpose of the Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund is to accumulate funds to acquire real
property. Safe, reliable and up-to-date real estate assets are essential for the District to meet its mission of
providing services to protect public health, and safeguard of District equipment from hazards including
fire, flood, theft, earthquake and other loss. The Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund will allow the
District to acquire real estate to meet the needs outlined in the District’s Real Estate Needs Assessment, as
approved by the Board of Trustees in 2019. This Reserve Fund, and the Needs Assessment it is based on,
shall be reviewed and updated by the Board on a regular basis.

Policy:

In order to achieve the objectives of this policy the Board of Trustees shall adhere to the following
guidelines:
1) This reserve fund shall be known as the “Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund”

2) The Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund shall be expended solely for the purpose of
acquiring, District real estate as determined by the Board of Trustees.

3) The Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund shall be designated as a assigned fund as of June 30,
2019 and a committed reserve fund in FY 2019-20

4) Authorization by the Board of Trustees is required prior to expenditure of Real Property
Acquisition Reserve Funds.

5) All investment earnings from the Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund shall be credited to the
District’s General Fund.

6) The Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund may be invested in financial institutions and
instruments which maintain the highest level of liquidity, such as checking, savings, and LAIF.

7) This policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the Finance Committee and District Board for
long-term adequacy and use restriction.

Target Fund Level:

The target level for the Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund shall be equal to a minimum of $100,000
to a maximum of $5,000,000 as of July 1 of each fiscal year unless otherwise directed by the Board of
Trustees at a public meeting.



ATTACHMENT 7

SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
DEBT SERVICE REPAYMENT RESERVE FUND

Fund Purpose:

The purpose of the Debt Service Repayment Reserve Fund is to accumulate funds and allow for the
prepayment of balances of District issued debt in connection with the acquisition of real property. This
reserve fund shall be reviewed and updated by the Board of Trustees on a regular basis.

Policy:

In order to achieve the objectives of this policy the Board of Trustees shall adhere to the following
guidelines:

1)

2)

3)

4)

S)

6)

7)

This reserve fund shall be known as the “Debt Service Repayment Reserve Fund.”

The Debt Service Repayment Reserve Fund shall be expended solely for the purpose of retiring
District debt obligations in connection with financed real property obligations as approved by the
Board of Trustees.

The Debt Service Repayment Reserve Fund shall be designated as an assigned fund as defined by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board

Authorization by the Board of Trustees is required prior to expenditure of the Debt Service
Repayment Reserve Funds.

All investment earnings from the Debt Service Repayment Reserve Fund shall be credited to the
District’s General Fund.

The Debt Service Repayment Reserve Fund may be invested in financial institutions and
instruments which maintain the highest level of liquidity, such as checking, savings, and LAIF.

This policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the Finance Committee and District Board for
long-term adequacy and use restriction.

Target Fund Level:

The target level for the Debt Service Repayment Reserve Fund shall be equal to a minimum of $ 50,000
to a maximum of $2,300,000 as of July 1 of each fiscal year unless otherwise directed by the Board of
Trustees at a public meeting.



ATTACHMENT 8

SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT

SUMMARY OF RESERVE FUND

TARGET LEVELS
RESERVE FUND NAME Type TARGET LEVEL (As of
July 1 of each year)
Working Capital General Liquidity * Uncommitted $ 2,500,000 $4,000,000 ! (60% of
annual Operational Expenditures
not including capital)
Public Health Emergency Reserve Fund Committed $ 500,000 to $ 1,000,000
Natural Disaster Emergency Reserve Fund Assigned $ 500,000 to $1,000,000
Capital Project and Equipment Replacement | Assigned $ 500,000 to $1,000,000
Reserve Fund
Pension Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund Committed $ $100,000
Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund Committed? $ 100,000 to $5,000,000

' Not a reserve pursuant to GAAP

2 The Real Property Acquisition Reserve Fund is an Assigned Fund in Fiscal year 2018-19, and a
committed in Fiscal year 2019-20



San Mateo County MVCD
Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 7E

BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

SUBJECT: Ad Hoc Electric Vehicle Committee

The committee chair is Trustee Catherine Carlton. Members include Trustees Ron Collins, Scott
Smith, Glenn Sylvester, and Paul Norton.

The committee met on April 18, 2023, at 5:00 PM. The committee decided the Chair would be
Trustee Catherine Carlton. Staff gave an overview of past EV-associated and “green” projects
and the status of the current District fleet. Staff presented that although transitioning to EVs is
important, cost, availability, vehicle features, and the capital vehicle replacement schedule are all
hurdles to realizing an electric vehicle purchase in the near future. Staff will work with Peninsula
Clean Energy to acquire a free quote on upgrading the District’s electrical infrastructure to meet
future charging demand needs. The Committee decided to meet quarterly. Materials presented at
the meeting are available for review upon request.

The Committee’s next meeting will take place sometime in approximately three months.



San Mateo County MVCD

Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 7F

BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

SUBJECT: Ad Hoc Nominating Committee

The committee chair is Trustee Donna Rutherford. Members include Trustees Ron Collins, Rena
Gilligan, and Ed Degliantoni.

The committee met on April 25, 2023, 5:00 PM. The committee reviewed potential SMCMVCD
Board Officer Candidates and discussed the next steps in the Board Officer review process. The
Committee also agreed that they would recommend a slate of candidates, not one for each
position, because each Officer role had more than one interested Board member. Staff was
directed to circulate an email to all Board members stating that the last opportunity to have your
name considered by the SMCMVCD Ad hoc Board Officer Nominating Committee was
Tuesday, April 25, at 3 pm. Still, per current District policy, nominations can always come from
the floor during the election process at the end of the year.

The Committee’s next meeting will occur sometime in the next two months.



San Mateo County MVCD

Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 7G

BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

SUBJECT: Real Estate Committee Report

The Real Estate Committee members attended a meeting on April 20, 2023. Attendees included
Committee Chair Paul Norton, Kat Lion, Kati Martin, Michael Yoshida, and Paul Fregulia attending as
an observer. Staff attending included District Manager Brian Weber, Finance Director Richard Arrow,
Operations Director Casey Stevenson, and Facilities Manager Paul Weber.

The Committee reviewed meeting notes between the City of Burlingame, Aetypic, and Staff. The
Committee also considered three preliminary draft plans from the architectural firm Aetypic and
provided feedback. The main construction and financial issues facing the Carolan Avenue project are the
seismic and elevator code interpretations. These items and many others will be included in the final
pricing list that will guide the Committees’s final decision on one of three plans the architect drafted.

ATTACHMENTS

1. 1415 N. Carolan Ave. Project Management Report



SAN MATEO COUNTY
MOSQUITO & VECTOR
CONTROL DISTRICT

Protecting public health since 1916

1415 N. Carolan Ave. Project Management Report

Reporting date

4/1/23-4/31/23

Project objective(s)

Eliminate the need for leased property

Meet District space, parking, and equipment storage long and short-term needs
Develop a real estate strategy that spans up to ten years

Prioritize building projects based on need and cost

P

Work completed in April

1. Pertinent District staff met with Aetypic, and city of Burlingame staff, to clarify specific
code requirements related to 1415 N. Carolan preliminary draft plans

2. Held an Ad-hoc Real Estate Committee meeting on April 20, 2023, to solicit trustee
feedback on preliminary draft plans before costing submittal

Work planned to complete in May

1. Review the project list created by Aetypic before being submitted for construction
costing information

2. Work on finalizing preliminary draft plans and receive code interpretations regarding
elevator and seismic requirements

Outlook for the remainder of 2022

1. Choose a plan using parts of the three plans drafted by Aetypic
2. Create a financial plan using costing information from Aetypic and working with Real
Estate and Finance Committees.

Budget status and outlook

Budget spent to date: $120,719.58

Budget remaining: $29,280.42



% Agenda Item 8.A. - Operations
e Staff rogram Reporis

Field Operations May 2023

Mosquito Control and Trash Capture Devices

The San Mateo Stormwater Pollution Prevention Program was established in 1990 to reduce trash, debris, and
contaminants carried by stormwater into local creeks, the San Francisco Bay, and the Pacific Ocean. This
program includes each incorporated city and town in San Mateo County, all covered under the same National
Pollutant Discharge Eliminatfion System (NPDES) permit. As of 2018, this permit required the creation of baseline
trash maps in each city and unincorporated area in the county. If these areas had moderate to high trash
accumulation, they had to install a trash capture device in storm drains that eventually flowed to San Francisco
Bay. These frash capture devices reduce the amount of waste entering the stormwater system.

The Mosquito and Vector Control Association of California has been working closely with producers of these
devices and municipalities to ensure they are accessible to the vector confrol technicians that inspect and
control mosquitoes in storm drains throughout California. Through the California State Water Resources Confrol
Board, there is an approved list of certified trash capture devices that allow for vector control accessibility.
Municipalities may choose a device that fits their needs from this list. This list gets updated yearly based on
feedback from cities and vector control districts.

The San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District regularly monitors and controls mosquito breeding in
35,936 storm drains throughout San Mateo County. This work is done primarily by a seasonal team of six fo eight
catch basin technicians between May and October. San Mateo County has an estimated total of 2,396
installed trash capture devices. The District will acquire a map file of all frash capture locations to enable
Vector Control technicians to closely monitor and record any issues in the future. Currently, District operations
staff attend San Mateo County municipal maintenance meetings twice yearly to stay informed of any new
developments and to maintain working relationships with representatives from each city. Currently, the
installation of these devices has not negatively impacted the District’s ability to contfrol mosquitoes.

; TLOTATTT] Industrial Way

2 - e EEeN ) T

s EAE I T T YT R i 111 o

Map of locations of Trash Capture Devices in Belmont. The blue squares represent moderate to high trash  accumulation,
and Trash Capture Devices were installed to reduce frash from entering the storm drain system in these locations.




IO L VI
CONTROL DISTRICY

Examples of Trash Capture Devices

#%| Agenda ltem 8.A. - Operations

| Staff Program Reports

he storm drain and

nto the storm drain.

rash Capture Device- ARS
ingate is on the exterior of

Jprevents trash from going

Connector Pipe Screen is
a style of Trash Capture

Device w/ a hinged door
for pesticide applications




#%| Agenda Item 8.D. - Operations
— | Staff Program Reports

District Staff in Action

Vector Control Technician Devon MacDonald inspecting a sewer manhole for rodents in downtown Redwood City.



ﬁx’ Agenda ltem 8.D. - Operations
~ Staff Program Reports

Vector Control
Technicians Devon
MacDonald and
Vanessa
Hernandez
Pacheco are
preparing rodent
bait stations
placed in San
Mateo and San
Carlos residential
waterways. These
bait stations are
filled with non-
foxic bait to
identify locations
of high rodent
activity along
creeks this spring.

District Manager Brian
Weber presented
preliminary plans for
developing the District’s
property at 1415 North
Carolan Avenue. Staff
were able to provide
feedback and ask
questions about the
project.




1 Agenda ltem 8.D. - Operations
S’raff Program Reports

April 2023 Service Requests

Type of Request April 2023 5-year April
average

Mosquito 102 118
Rodents 34 39
Mosquito fish 22 17
Insect identification 18 9
Yellowjackets/wasps 15 38
Ticks 13 4
Dead birds 11 10
Wildlife 4 3
Other 26 17
Total 245 254

Total service requests this April are near the five-year average for this month (245 requests compared fo
an average of 254). However, the request types of insect identification, yellowjackets/wasps, and ticks
differed greatly from the average. The higher-than-usual insect identification requests may have resulted
from warmer weather after a particularly wet winter and spring, creating opfimal conditions for some
insects. Tick requests were also higher than average (13 requests compared to an average of 4). This was
because of follow-up visits to some residents who participated in the District’s residential tick survey in
winter. In contrast, yellowjacket and wasp requests are less than half the average amount in April (15
requests compared to an average of 38). This may indicate that the yellowjacket season is starting late
this year, possibly because holes used for nests were flooded.

The bulk of the "other” category consisted of requests regarding non-biting midges, which emerged from
the Foster City lagoon and other waterways around the bay. Requests in the “other” category also
included insect-related requests regarding bees and cockroaches and non-insect-related requests
involving mites.

Service Requests by Type - 2023
120
=N osquito
100 Rodents
Yellowjackets/Wasps
Dead birds
= |nsect ldentification

e\ osguito fish

E
n
=
z —Wildlife
o
oy
5 —Ticks
g A
= —Other
=

an

_-———-————-_-—.-.-—
lanuary February  March Apr May June July August September October Nowvember December

Service requests by type in April 2023



oY Agenda ltem 8.B. - Laboratory
— . Staff Program Reports

Lab Activities in April 2023

WNV 2023 Season

West Nile virus season has begun in California,
and surveillance for the disease is ramping up
as the weather warms. The District uses three
surveillance techniques to guard against West
Nile virus outbreaks: frapping adult
mosquitoes, collecting dead birds, and
monitoring two sentinel chicken flocks.
Chickens are useful for WNV surveillance
because while they can be infected with
WNYV, they do not become sick and die, which
means they can be tested regularly for
evidence of exposure. District vector
ecologists Tara Roth and Arielle Crews picked
up 14 sentinel chickens on April 27 to establish
two flocks in East Palo Alto and San Mateo.
From April until October, laboratory staff will
take blood samples from the chickens every
other week. These samples are tested for
antibodies against West Nile virus, western
equine encephalitis virus, and Saint Louis encephalitis virus. If present, these antibodies in the chicken
blood will inform us that these viruses are circulating in the area and allow us to take further steps to
protect the public.

g5 =
A 2023 flock of young sentinel chickens explore their
coop in East Palo Alto.

West Nile Virus Dead Bird Hotline

Would you like to help us protect against mosquito-borne ilinessese The California Department of Public
Health's West Nile virus call center is now open with live operators. Residents who find a dead bird in
good condition (head and eyes intact and not infested with flies or ants) should call 1-877-WNV-BIRD (1-
877-968-2473) or file a report online at westnile.ca.gov. If suitable for testing, a District staff member will
bring the bird back to the lab and test the carcass for the presence of mosquito-borne disease.



oY Agenda ltem 8.B. — Laboratory
— . Staff Program Reports

Tick Surveillance for Water Year 2022-2023

Tick Collections from parks and neighborhoods in Water Year 2022-2023 (through April 2023)

Number of Ix.
acificus nymphs

Park/Neighborhood Nearest City/Town Number of Ix.

acificus adults

Edgewood County Park Redwood City 116 55
Hidden Canyon Park Belmont 270

San Pedro Valley Park Pacifica 196

Mori Point Pacifica 0

Memorial Park Pescadero 39

Mills Canyon Park Burlingame 18

Milagra Ridge Pacifica 17

Frontierland Park Pacifica 245

Pescadero Marsh Pescadero 300

Burleigh H. Murray Ranch Half Moon Bay 394

North Hillsborough Hillsborough 263

Portola Redwoods La Honda 383

Portola Valley Ranch Portola Valley 409 126
Sweeney Ridge San Bruno 29

Wunderlich Park Woodside 45
Eaton Park San Carlos 60

Rk A it 5

{

/

N
[5.8R

woodland areas covered in leaf litter (right).

Adult ticks are often encountered in tall grass along frails (leff), while tick nymphs prefer shaded,




1 Agenda Item 8.B. — Laboratory
~ . Staff Program Reports

In April, laboratory staff continued spring surveillance for nymphal Ixodes pacificus (Western black-
legged ticks). Nymphal ticks are collected by flagging with a 1-meter square white sheet of flannel
aftached to a wooden dowel, in lecf litter areas, or on rocks and fallen logs. Ixodes pacificus ticks will
be tested for the presence of Borrelia burgdorferi (the causative agent of Lyme disease), as well as
Borrelia miyamotoi (the agent of hard-tick relapsing fever) and Anaplasma phagocytophilum (the
agent of granulocytic anaplasmosis).

Parks and neighborhoods surveyed in April include Edgewood Park in Redwood City, Portola Valley
Ranch community of Porfola Valley, Wunderlich Park in Woodside, and Eaton Park in San Carlos.
Additionally, the front and back yards of residences in Hillsborough, Woodside, and Pacifica were
flagged for nymphal ticks as a follow-up to a residential tick study conducted in the winter.

Borrelia miyamotoi

The District tests all western black-legged ficks collected during surveillance for the pathogens that
cause Lyme disease, anaplasmosis, and a type of hard-tick relapsing fever caused by a bacteria called
Borrelia miyamotoi. Relapsing fevers are defined as repeating cycles of fever for a few days followed by
several days without fever, repeating for multiple cycles (3-5 cycles are common) in a pattern. Other
symptoms of B. miyamotoi disease include chills, headache, joint and body pain, and fatigue. While B.
miyamotoi is related to Lyme disease, infections are far less common and less serious.

Cases of hard-tick relapsing fever have been documented in
Japan, Europe, and the eastern United States, but not from
California until recently. In 2021 a Marin County resident became
the first confirmed case of hard-fick relapsing fever in California.
The patient’s travel history, genetic analysis of the bacteria in his
blood, and comparison to pathogens collected from ticks
nearby indicate the pathogen was likely acquired from a fick
bite in Marin County. At the fime of exposure, the patient had
been undergoing medical tfreatments, which likely affected his
immune system and increased his risk of infection. He was
freated with antibiotics and recovered completely.

Ixodes pacificus is the West
Coast vector of the bacteria

The District lab has found B. miyamofoi throughout San Mateo Borrelia miyamotoi.

County at a minimum infection rate of 0.73% for adult ticks and
1.36% for nymphal ticks (average over the past 9 years). Unlike with the Lyme disease bacteria B.
burgdorferi, B. miyamotoi can be transmitted among ticks transovarially, meaning an infected female
can pass the bacteria to her eggs, and the hatching larvae are born with the bacteria without first
having to feed on an infected host. Luckily for Californians, many larval and nymphal Ixodes pacificus
ticks will feed on their favorite host, Western fence lizards. A substance in lizard blood neutralizes Borrelia
in the tick, resulting in fewer infected ticks and lowering the risk of people catching a tick-borne disease!

Read more about the Cadlifornia Borrelia miyamotoi case in Emerging and Infectious Diseases, published
by the CDC: https://wwwnc.cdc.gov/eid/article/29/5/22-1638 article.



https://wwwnc.cdc.gov/eid/article/29/5/22-1638_article

1 Agenda Item 8.B. — Laboratory
~ . Staff Program Reports

CO2 Traps - Average adult mosquitoes collected per trap per night

The following table and graphs show the average number of adult mosquitoes collected per CO2 trap
per night during April. Adult mosquito abundance began to rise in April, fypical in the spring, but overall
numbers remain low. Aedes sierrensis, a mosquito that breeds in freeholes, was first detected this year as
an adult in April. It will continue to be present until autumn. Culex erythrothorax has yet to be collected
in fraps in 2023, although on average, it is the most abundant mosquito in April. This mosquito breeds in
freshwater tule ponds and marshes. An unusually cold and wet winter and spring may have delayed its
emergence this year.

Species April 2023 5-year April average
Aedes washinoi 2.151 2.450
H Aedes sierrensis 1.679 1.765
= Culex pipiens 0.717 2.629
Culiseta incidens 0.377 1.417
] Culex tarsalis 0.198 1.195
B Culex erythrothorax 0 3.162
Average number of adult mosquitoes collected in CO2 traps
2023
e CX. pipiens
16
e Cx. erythrothorax
14
Cs. incidens
12 . X
/e, SiErrensis
.*q-'é 10 e Cx. tarsalis
E'; 8 Ae. washinoi
o
€ 6
bS]
3 4
Q0
€
3 2
0 /\ é
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Month

Average number of adult mosquitoes collected in CO2 traps per trap per night during 2023. The
graph shows the six most common species of mosquitoes trapped in San Mateo County.




1 Agenda Item 8.B. - Laboratory
~ . Staff Program Reports

Average number of adult mosquitoes collected in CO2 traps
5 year average

e CX. pipiens

= Cx. erythrothorax

20

18 Cs. incidens

16 — \c. Sierrensis
n 14 e Cx. tarsalis
8
*::j 12 Ae. washinoi
o 10
S
e 8
G 6
é 4
52— e

O T E———
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Month

Average number of adult mosquitoes collected in CO2 fraps per trap per night over the past five
years. The graph shows the six most common species of mosquitoes trapped in San Mateo County.

Larval Surveillance

During April, larval surveillance focused on monitoring
seasonal natural sources, such as freshwater impounds and
marshes, and surveillance of backyard sources that can
hold water year-round. District staff collected 155 larval
samples in April. Technicians use a dipper to take a water
sample and visually inspect it for mosquito larvae. If larvae
are present, the sample is taken back to the District
laboratory for species identification.

In 56% of samples, the most frequently occurring species
was the cool weather mosquito (Culiseta incidens). This
mosquito is found year-round in San Mateo County in many Mosquito larvae collected in the field
urban sources, especially fountains, and fishponds. Other are examined in the laboratory with
commonly collected species were the winter marsh a dissection microscope.
mosquito (Culiseta inornata) (10% of samples) and the
western encephalitis mosquito (Culex tarsalis (25% of
samples), both of which breed in a variety of freshwater sources such as marshes, ponds, and ditches.
Culiseta species are not known to transmit human diseases. In confrast, Culex tarsalis is an important
vector of West Nile virus. Conftrolling mosquitoes in the larval stage is the best way to prevent disease
during summer.




oY Agenda ltem 8.B. - Laboratory
— . Staff Program Reports

Larval Samples - April 2023
100
90 87
80
70
60
50

38
40

Number of Samples

30

20 15

1 5
O - || | | || — — —
i . (7
e & ' &

Mosquito Species

Number of larval samples containing each mosquito species from water samples collected in April
2023. Larval samples commonly contain mulfiple species.




1 Agenda Item 8.D. - Information Technology
-~ Staff Program Reports

Information Technology May 2023

Summary

M Security risks of Al

What is Artificial Intelligence?

At its core, Artificial Intelligence is a computer program designed to learn on its own and come 1o
complex resolutions. It's an algorithm that solves problems and digests large datasets fo make the
information more useful or relevant. The current landscape for Al is an open canvas. We are still realizing
the applications of this tfechnology. It is amazing to see how far this technology has come over the years
and just how robust it has become.

While Al is generally seen as a positive tool, we also must realize something. Bad actors also have access
to this same technology. So, while we can use it as a security tool, it can also be weaponized to attack
us. Some examples are more convincing phishing email templates or using them to find security platform
weaknesses.

In short, it's a valuable tool that can bolster your security and make many tasks much easier. We must be
mindful that it can also be used against us.

References:

1. https://www.ibm.com/topics/artificial-intelligence



https://www.ibm.com/topics/artificial-intelligence

S Agenda ltem 8.D.
~ . Staff Program Reports

Public Health Education and Outreach, April 2023

Outreach, Website Analytics/Social Media, & Post-Service Request Feedback

Ovutreach and Activities — -

o Staff visited 22 classes at schools in San Mateo, Redwood !w'

Shores, Millorae, Atherton, Portola Valley, and Menlo Park. : :
e Vector Ecologist Theresa and Rachel visited a school in San ! RV o
Mateo to talk to second grade students about insects. The %ﬂwiﬁ;’

students were excited to meet an entomologist! e I '
Rachel was invited fo present to MPH Environmental Health
students at UC Berkeley about mosquito control, her career
path, and job opportunities in vector control. She also
presented at career day at an elementary school in San
Mateo.
Collaboration with San Mateo County Libraries continued,
with programs provided at Millbrae and Atherton libraries this
month — children had fun hunting for mosquito larvae in
outdoor areas near the libraries. Staff arrived early to set out o+
planters, toys, tires, and other items typically found breeding Vector Ecologist Theresa teaches a
mosquitoes in backyards. Each item had a bit of water and class about insects.
mosquito larvae ‘planted’ for the children to find, collect, and then draw to learn about the
mosquito life cycle.
o Staff tabled the Belmont Earth Day event and happened to be placed at the table next to Mid

Peninsula Water District. We had an opportunity to see Trustee

Lion with her staff at the event.

o Staff tabled at the Coastal Wildflower Day at Half Moon Bay
State Beach. Despite being a cold, windy, and misty day, &
there were quite a few attendees, and District staff spoke with — KMG%M
many people about tick bite prevention and safety. -°°"“°‘ S —

~

. £

; - : Vector Ecologists Tara and Arielle are
Trustee Lion and Vector Control Vector Ecologist Tara ready for the public at Coastal

Technician Vanessa stop for a photo at talks about ticks in wildflower Day at Half Moon Bay State
the Belmont Earth Day event. Half Moon Bay. Beach.



1 Agenda Item 8.D.
~ . Staff Program Reports

Website Analytics & Social Media

¢ In April 2023, there were 4,901 visits to the website, which was a 37% increase over March 2023 (3,581
visits) and a 24% increase over April 2022 (3,952 visits).

e Top 10 pages for April 2023 included the homepage and pages on mosquito-like insects, service
requests page, yellowjackets and wasps, midges, insect identification, biting mites, rabies, bites of
unknown origin, and yellowjacket identification.

e Large numbers of midges in Foster City, Redwood Shores, and eastern San Mateo (near the lagoon)
received a lot of public attention this month. The District posted multiple times on Nextdoor and
Facebook to let residents know that these midges may resemble swarms of mosquitoes but that they
do not bite. Adjustments were made to the website and service request page to help direct and
inform people.

Post-Service Request Feedback
e “We really appreciate the service from San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Conftrol. I'm glad |
found out about you guys from Nextdoor, and hope that more people know about all the services
offered. Truly invaluable!! Tara and her team are AMAZING. Thanks again!”
¢ “Thank you! The tech came out extremely quickly, made sure the building gave him access and
called me back to let me know the status. He was very helpful, friendly, and efficient.”
e “Your employees were great! Very knowledgeable. LOVE the useful & informative Tick Kit! Thanks!”



San Mateo County MVCD
Board of Trustees Meeting

May 10, 2023

Agenda Item 9

MANAGER'’S REPORT

Upcoming Meetings

The California Special District Association (CSDA) will hold its Annual Conference on August
28 — 31, 2023, in Monterey, CA. This is recommended for all Board members to attend every 3-5
years but highly recommended for all new Board members.

The CSDA conference is the only place to learn about special districts and their governance. It
allows special district leaders from across the state to meet with industry suppliers and hear from
the best in special district-specific topics with over 30 breakout session options. Read more about
CSDA using the following Home - California Special Districts Association (csda.net).

On Monday, August 28, the CSDA conference will also include Governance Foundations, and
required training for all Board members to ensure the District receives the District Transparency
Certificate of Excellence from the Special District Leadership Foundation (SDLF) (read more
about SDLF and its certificates below). The instructor will lay the groundwork for good
governance in your district. Attendees will discover why good governance is so important. The
traits of effective board members. How to move your board from “I” to “we,” including how to
become an effective team, establish team standards, and essential conditions for team building.

The SDLF is an independent, non-profit organization that promotes good governance and best
practices among California’s special districts through certification, accreditation, and other
recognition programs. The SDLF and its activities are supported by the CSDA and the Special
District Risk Management Authority. Some of the certifications the District has obtained
regularly are the following:

District Transparency Certificate of Excellence

This program was created to promote transparency in the operations and governance of special
districts to the public and to allow special districts to showcase their efforts in transparency. This
certificate has no fees, and it is valid for three years. Three main subject areas: Basic
Transparency Requirements, Website Requirements, and Outreach Requirements - These are
only a sampling of all the requirements needed to complete the transparency certificate.

1|Page


https://www.csda.net/home

San Mateo County MVCD
Board of Trustees Meeting
May 10, 2023
Certificate in Special District Governance
Designed to honor special district board members and trustees and comprises two distinct parts:
the completion of the Special District Leadership Academy (SDLA) and 10 hours of continuing
education. The SDLA shall consist of four courses unique in that the curriculum has been
created by special districts and agreed upon as what governing officials of special districts

should know. SDLF has endorsed the Academy as California's core special district governance
training. Read more about SDLF and more by using the following Home - SDLF.

Neighboring District News

The County of Santa Clara Vector Control District will begin using unmanned aircraft systems
(UAS), or drones, to control mosquito larvae along San Francisco Bay and help prevent West
Nile virus and other vector-borne diseases the week of May 1, 2023. Most applications will
happen above Bxybee Park at the Palo Alto Baylands. To read more, please see a link to the
press release here County of Santa Clara Vector Control District (sccgov.org).

American Mosquito Control Association (AMCA)

Recently the American Mosquito Control Association has been sending District Managers
Curate scans to understand better what local topics related to vector control are important.
Curate software scans meeting minutes, agendas, planning documents, and more from local
government entities larger than 50,000 people throughout the U.S. This report's current search
terms are Drones, Mosquito Control, Mosquito-borne Diseases, Pesticide Chemicals, and
Pollinators. It then generates a sortable spreadsheet, map, and data “snapshots” as seen below.

Discussions Locations Topics
Can:
Filters % Import/Export Filter
. L]
& O
.S P .‘! (~ ,\“‘
®, ®ee o taie B
o ° e ®, -
e ® = Sustaining Member Nationwide =Show Filter Adjustments
:. o e
L5 Display Unread Topics Only
0
Drones Mosquito Control
24 Discussions across 22 Locations 74 Discussions across 49 Locations
Colombia
ot View Discussions View Discussions
Mosquito-Borne Diseases Pesticide Chemicals

6 Discussions across 6 Locations 5 Discussions across 4 Locations

View Discussions View Discussions

n‘ a7 Bt Pollinators
45 Discussions across 37 Locations
I (]

2|Page


https://www.sdlf.org/home
https://vector.sccgov.org/sites/g/files/exjcpb676/files/document/UAS%20Press%20Release%20Final.pdf

San Mateo County MVCD
Board of Trustees Meeting
May 10, 2023

This information can help the District better understand how to address the public and
government agencies.

California Class

After being approved by the SMCMVCD Board of Trustees at their March 8, 2023, meeting.
Staff worked with California Class or CalClass on completing everything necessary to use them
as an alternate depository for district reserve funds. Ultimately, during the last week of April, a
deposit in the amount of $200,000 was transferred from the San Mateo County Controller to the
CalClass interest bearing account. The fund is yielding 5.0258% as of May 4, 2023. Staff will
do more analysis and present it to the Finance Committee as soon as more interest earnings
accumulate.

3|Page



	000 May 10 2023 Agenda
	REGULAR MEETING
	OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	AGENDA


	Agenda Item 5B.1  Staff Report - Joint Powers Authority
	Agenda Item 5B.1.1 FRMS JPA Resolution
	Agenda Item 5B.1.2 FRMS Joint Powers Agreement & Approval Memo
	JPA Approval Memo 030123
	FRMS Joint Powers Agreement v 3.4

	Agenda Item 5C.1 Staff Report Purchase of BVA2 larvicide oil
	Agenda Item 5C.1.1 Azelis Solutions BVA 2 Quote 04-17-23
	Agenda Item 5C.1.2 Target Sales Quote BVA2_
	Agenda Item 5C.1.3 BVA 2 Purchase Order 1
	Purchase Requisition

	Agenda Item 5C.2 Purchase of thirteen iPads
	San Mateo County MVCD
	SUBJECT: Purchase of iPad Air tablets
	BACKGROUND AND STATUS
	RECOMMENDATION
	REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED


	Agenda Item 5C.2.1 iPad purcase CDW Quote
	Agenda Item 5C.2.2 iPad purcase Apple Gov Quote
	Agenda Item 5C.2.3 iPad purchase Verizon Quote
	Agenda Item 5C.3 Staff Report SM Vector Control Services Agreement San Mateo
	San Mateo County MVCD
	BACKGROUND AND STATUS
	RECOMMENDATION
	REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED:

	Agenda Item 5C.3.1 San Mateo Creek Rodent Control Services Agreement
	VECTOR CONTROL SERVICES AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
	Scope of Work
	WORK SCHEDULE AND TYPE OF TREATMENT
	Protective Bait Stations

	MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT
	Rodenticide
	Bromethalin a nerve toxin will be the primary rodenticide used. Bromadialone and Diphacinone, an anticoagulant, shall serve as the secondary rodenticide.   Fastrac (Bromethalin) should use 3-4 blocks per station  and each block  weighs .52 oz and cont...
	Target Specialty Products:  800-352-3870
	Caution Statement
	Caution: Bromodiolone/Diphacinone/Bromethalin Rat Bait Do Not Disturb
	Anchors
	Stake

	METHOD OF BAIT INSTALLATION
	BAIT INSPECTION, REPLACEMENT, REINSTALLATION AND REMOVAL
	RECORD OF WORK TO BE SUBMITTED
	Phase of work and dates performed.

	LICENSES
	NOTICES AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW
	PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE
	AMOUNT AND METHOD OF PAYMENT
	City of San Mateo
	1949 Pacific Blvd.

	Schedule of Performance and Annual Fee Schedule

	Agenda Item 5C.4 Staff Report AG-Air Inc. Services Agreement San Mateo
	San Mateo County MVCD
	BACKGROUND AND STATUS
	RECOMMENDATION
	REFERENCE MATERIALS ATTACHED:

	Agenda Item 5C.4.1  Ag Air Inc. Contract Agreement
	AGREEMENT FOR  CONTRACTOR SERVICES
	RECITALS
	ARTICLE 1 -  SCOPE OF SERVICES
	1.1. Scope of Services. Contractor agrees to provide the services set forth in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. In addition to the Basic Services, District may elect to have Contractor perform additional ...
	1.2. Compliance with Law. Contractor will perform the Services in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders.
	1.3. Professional Competence. District has relied upon the professional training and ability of Contractor to perform the services described in Exhibit A “Scope of Services” as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall there...
	1.4. Labor and Materials. Contractor shall furnish, at its own expense, all labor, materials, equipment, tools, transportation and services necessary for the successful completion of the Services, provided however that District shall provide the pesti...
	1.5. Review of Service.  Contractor shall furnish District with reasonable opportunities from time to time to ascertain whether the Services of Contractor are being performed in accordance with this Agreement.  All work done and materials furnished sh...
	1.6. Contract Administration.
	A. District.  The District Manager or his/her designee shall represent the District in all matters relating to the administration of this Agreement.  The District Manager or his/her designee shall have the authority to act on the District’s behalf to ...
	B. Contractor.  Contractor shall assign Brent Alger overall responsibility for the progress and execution of this Agreement for Contractor.  Contractor shall not change or replace Contractor’s Representative without the prior written consent of Distri...

	1.7. Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and will have control over its work and the means and methods by which the Services are performed. Contractor is not an employee of District, which has no employees, and neither Cont...
	1.8. Confidentiality. Contractor agrees to maintain in confidence and not disclose to any person, public entity, or private entity, without District's prior written consent, any trade secret or confidential information, knowledge or data relating to t...
	1.9. Ownership of Work Product. Except as may otherwise be specified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, all property rights, including copyrights, in any reports, studies, plans, specifications, drawings, diagrams, or other material prepared on behalf o...
	1.10. Documentation. Contractor will keep and maintain full and complete documentation and accounting records, employee time sheets, and correspondence pertaining to the performance of the Services, including Contractor costs to perform the Services, ...
	1.11. Testimony. Contractor agrees to testify at District’s request if litigation is brought against District in connection with the Services. Unless the action is brought by Contractor or is based upon Contractor’s alleged negligence or malfeasance, ...

	ARTICLE 2 -  COMPENSATION
	2.1. Compensation. District will compensate Contractor for all Services fully performed in compliance with this Agreement to District’s satisfaction, as further specified in Exhibit B, Compensation, and accompanying Exhibit B-1, Rate Schedule, both of...
	2.2. No Overtime or Premium Pay.  Contractor shall receive no premium or enhanced pay for work normally understood as overtime, i.e., hours that exceed forty (40) hours per work week, or work performed during non-standard business hours, such as in th...
	2.3. Invoices and Payment. Contractor must submit monthly invoices in a form satisfactory to District on or before the tenth day of each month for Services provided during the preceding calendar month. Each invoice must include, at a minimum, for each...
	2.4. Final Payment. District will not release the final payment to Contractor until the Services have been fully completed to District’s satisfaction, and District has received all Work Product and deliverables required pursuant to this Agreement. Con...

	ARTICLE 3 -  TIME OF PERFORMANCE
	3.1. Time. Time is of the essence in the performance of all requirements of this Agreement. Unless terminated early pursuant to Section 3.2, Termination, this Agreement will remain in full force and effect until the Services are completed, which must ...
	3.2. Termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, District may elect to terminate this Agreement before expiration of the Term as follows:
	A. Termination for Convenience. District may terminate this Agreement for convenience by giving seven business days written notice to Contractor. The notice of termination may include the effective date of the termination and instructions for submitti...
	B. Termination for Cause. If Contractor breaches this Agreement by failing to timely or satisfactorily perform any of its obligations or otherwise violates the terms of this Agreement, District may notify Contractor in writing of the breach, specifyin...
	C. District may also terminate this Agreement with cause, effective immediately upon written notice of such termination to Contractor, based upon the occurrence of any of the following events: (1) cessation of Contractor to be licensed, as required; (...

	3.3. Other Remedies. Nothing in this Article 3 will be deemed to limit District’s rights or remedies under this Agreement.
	3.4. Survival. The following provisions will survive expiration of the Term or termination of this Agreement: Section 1.8, Confidentiality; Section 1.9, Ownership of Work Product; Section 1.10, Documentation; Section 1.11, Testimony; Section 5.1, Inde...

	ARTICLE 4 -  DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES
	4.1. District’s Representative. District’s General Manager is District’s primary representative for this Agreement, with responsibility and authority for administering and interpreting the terms and conditions of this Agreement, for matters relating t...
	4.2. Contractor Representative. Contractor designates and District hereby approves Brent Alger as Contractor’s primary representative for this Agreement, with immediate responsibility for the performance of the Services and for all matters relating to...

	ARTICLE 5 -  INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE
	5.1. Indemnification. The terms and conditions set forth in subsection 5.1.A, Non-Design Professional, below, are applicable to this Agreement only if Contractor is not a “design professional” as that term is defined in and used in Civil Code section ...
	A. Non-Design Professional. Contractor will, to the full extent permitted by law, indemnify, hold harmless, and defend with counsel acceptable to District at Contractor’s sole expense, District, its Member Agencies, and their respective governing bodi...
	B. Design Professional. To the full extent permitted by law, and subject to the limitations set forth in Civil Code section 2782.8, Contractor will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend with counsel acceptable to District at Contractor’s sole expense, ...
	C. District Liability.  The District has no liability or responsibility for any accident, loss, or damage to any work performed under this Agreement whether prior to its completion or acceptance or otherwise.  No member of the District and no other of...

	5.2. Health and Safety. Contractor may perform part of the Services at sites which contain unknown working conditions and contaminated materials. Contractor is solely responsible for the health and safety of Contractor’s employees, agents, and subcont...
	5.3. Insurance.
	A. Contractor must procure, provide, and maintain at all times during the Term of this Agreement, and for such additional periods as described herein, the insurance coverage as specified in the attached Exhibit C, Insurance which is attached hereto an...
	B. Additional Coverage. Any insurance coverage carried by Contractor that is broader than or in excess of the specified minimum insurance requirements or limits specified above, including but not limited to any umbrella or excess insurance, will be av...
	C. Material Breach. If Contractor fails to maintain insurance coverage or provided insurance documentation which is required pursuant to this Agreement, it will be deemed a material breach of this Agreement. District, at its sole option, may terminate...
	D. Subcontractors. Before a subcontractor may perform Services pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor must submit evidence, including certificates of insurance and endorsements, that (1) the subcontractor is covered under Contractor’s required policie...


	ARTICLE 6 -  NOTICES
	ARTICLE 7 -  MISCELLANEOUS
	7.1. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms and conditions between the Parties regarding the Services specified herein, and supersedes all prior oral or written understandings or agreemen...
	7.2. Amendment. This Agreement may only be modified by a written amendment duly authorized and executed by both Parties, except for the limited exception set forth in Section 3.1, Time, for District’s discretionary, unilateral extension of the Term.
	7.3. Assignment and Successors. The Services are deemed unique and Contractor will not assign, transfer, subcontract or otherwise substitute its rights or obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in part hereunder without the prior written consen...
	7.4. Interest of Contractor.  Contractor represents and warrants to District that it presently has no interests, and covenants that it shall not acquire any interests, direct or indirect, financial or otherwise, which would conflict with the performan...
	7.5. Undue Influence.  Contractor declares and warrants that no undue influence or pressure is used against or in concert with any officer or employee of District in connection with the award, terms or implementation of this Agreement, including any m...
	7.6. Statement of Economic Interest.  If District determines Contractor comes within the definition of Contractor under the Political Reform Act (Gov’t Code § 87100), Contractor shall complete and file and shall require any other person doing work und...
	7.7. Nonexclusive Agreement.  Contractor understands that this is not an exclusive Agreement and that District shall have the right to negotiate with and enter into contracts with others providing the same or similar services as those provided by Cont...
	7.8. Severability. All parts of this Agreement shall in all cases be construed according to their plain meaning and shall not be construed in favor or against either of the parties. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be illegal, inval...
	7.9. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts and, when fully signed, such counterparts will have the same effect as if signed in one document.
	7.10. Choice of Law and Venue. This Agreement and all matters relating to it will be governed by the laws of the State of California without reference to its choice of laws principles, and venue will be in a court of competent jurisdiction in San Mate...
	7.11. Waiver. No failure on the part of either Party to exercise any right or remedy hereunder will operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that Party may have hereunder. No waiver of a breach, failure of any condition, or any right or remedy...
	7.12. Force Majeure. If either Party is delayed, hindered in, or prevented from performing any duty required under this Agreement due to an unforeseen event outside that Party’s control, including strikes, lockouts, power outage, riots, insurrection, ...
	7.13. Dispute Resolution. The Parties will attempt to resolve any disputes arising from or pertaining to this Agreement by informal negotiations, conducted in face-to-face meetings of the principal representatives of the Parties if possible. If the Pa...
	7.14. Attorney’s Fees. If any action at law or in equity, including an action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party will be entitled to recover from the other party its costs ...
	7.15. Interpretation. In the event this Agreement is ever construed in any dispute between the Parties, it and each of its provisions will be deemed to have been prepared jointly by the Parties. The rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities ...
	7.16. Provisions Deemed Included. Every provision required by Laws to be included in this Agreement will be deemed included, and the Agreement will be construed and enforced as though such any such required provision was fully set forth herein.
	7.17. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are included for convenience only and will not affect the construction of any provision in this Agreement nor affect any of the rights or obligations of the Parties.
	7.18. Authority. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of a Party represents that he or she is duly authorized to sign and deliver the Agreement on behalf of that Party and that this Agreement is binding on such Party in accordance with i...
	A. Corporation. If Contractor is a corporation, pursuant to Corporations Code section 313, the Agreement must be executed by two officers of the corporation as follows:
	(1) One signature by the chairperson, president, or any vice-president, and
	(2) One signature by the secretary, any assistant secretary, chief     financial officer, or any assistant treasurer.

	B. Limited Liability Company. If Contractor is a limited liability company (“LLC”), the Agreement must be executed by the chief executive of the LLC, or Contractor must attach a resolution of the LLC evidencing the authority of the signatory to bind t...
	C. Partnership. If Contractor is a partnership, the Agreement must be signed by the managing partner or a partner authorized to execute agreements of this type on behalf of the partnership.
	D. Sole Proprietorship. If Contractor is a sole proprietorship, the Agreement must be signed by the owner.

	7.19. Compliance with Laws.
	A. Legal Responsibilities.  Contractor shall keep itself informed of local, state and federal laws and regulations which in any manner affect those employed by it or in any way affect the performance of its service pursuant to this Agreement.  The Con...
	B. Licenses.  At all times during the term of this Agreement, Contractor shall have in full force and effect, all licenses and permits required by law for the performance of services described in this Agreement.  Permits and/or licenses shall be obtai...
	C. Labor Conditions.  District is a public entity in the state of California, and therefore, District and Contractor are subject to the provisions of the Government Code and the Labor Code of the state of California, including, but not limited to, the...
	D. Labor Requirements.  Contractor shall abide by all federal and California laws and regulations regarding wages, including, without limitation, the Fair Labor Standards Act and the California Labor Code, which, in part, require Contractor to pay the...
	E. Discrimination.  No person shall be excluded from employment in the performance of this Agreement on the grounds of race, creed, color, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, or place of national origin.  Contractor shall comply with all loc...
	F. District Not Responsible.  The District and its officers and employees shall not be liable at law or in equity occasioned by failure of the Contractor to comply with this Section.

	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as follows.

	EXHIBIT A
	SCOPE OF SERVICES
	EXHIBIT B
	Compensation
	EXHIBIT B-1

	Agenda Item 5C.4.2 Certificate Of Insurance - San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District
	Agenda Item 6 Draft Engineers Staff Report
	Agenda Item 6.1 San Mateo County MVCD ER 23-24 R1
	Agenda Item 6.2 San Mateo County MCVD RES- M-021-23 Resolution for Prelim Engineers Report May 10, 2023
	RESOLUTION M-020-23

	Agenda Item 7A  Finance Committee Report - May 1, 2023
	Agenda Item 7B March, 2023 Financial Report
	Agenda Item 4A.1 Mar-2023 Financials for Board Meeting.pdf
	Balance Sheet-Mar
	YTD Actuals vs. YRLY BUDGET-Mar
	AR Aging-Mar
	GF Cash Activity-Mar
	CPF Cash Activity-Mar
	Payroll-Mar
	GF Check Register-Mar
	CPF Check Register-Mar
	Credit Card Reporty-Mar
	Credit Card Stmt-Mar


	Agenda Item 7C FY 23-24 Budget and Updated Status of FY 22-23
	Agenda Item 7C
	SUBJECT:    Status of FY 23-24 Draft Budget and Update on FY 22-23
	Revenue and Expenditures

	Agenda Item 7C.1 Budget Worksheet FY 23-24
	Budget

	Agenda Item 7D Staff Report on Recommended Reserve Levels for FY Ending  6-30-2023
	Agenda Item 7D.1 FY 22-23 District Reserve Balances
	FY 22-23

	Agenda Item 7D.2 District Policy 6120 District Reserves 6-30-23
	POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
	NUMBER:  6120


	Agenda Item 7E Ad Hoc EV Committee Report
	Agenda Item 7F Ad Hoc Nominating Committee Report
	Agenda Item 7G Ad hoc Committee on Real Estate Report
	Agenda Item 7G.1 Ad hoc Committee on Real Estate Report
	Agenda Item 8A Operations May 2023
	Mosquito Control and Trash Capture Devices
	Staff Program Reports
	District Staff in Action


	Agenda Item 8B Laboratory May 2023
	West Nile Virus Dead Bird Hotline
	Tick Surveillance for Water Year 2022-2023
	Borrelia miyamotoi
	CO2 Traps – Average adult mosquitoes collected per trap per night
	Larval Surveillance

	Agenda Item 8C Information Technology May 2023
	Summary
	What is Artificial Intelligence?
	References:

	Agenda Item 8D Public Health Education May 2023
	Outreach and Activities
	Website Analytics & Social Media
	Post-Service Request Feedback

	Agenda Item 9 Managers Report



